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REVENUE REQUIREMENT AND REVENUE DEFICIENCY OR SUFFICIENCY

1. INTRODUCTION

This Schedule provides a summary of the revenue requirement being requested by Hydro Ottawa
for 2026-2030 in order to continue delivering electricity safely and reliably. The utility’s total Service
Revenue Requirement is offset by revenues obtained by sources other than distribution rates (i.e.
other revenue). The calculation of the revenue deficiency/sufficiency does not include the recovery
of deferral and variance accounts, as outlined in Schedule 9-3-1 - Disposition of Deferral and
Variance Accounts, or Low Voltage Charges as outlined in Schedule 8-2-1 - Retail Transmission
and Low Voltage Service Rates. As directed in the Chapter 2 Filing Requirements for Electricity
Distribution Rate Applications - 2025 Edition for 2026 Rate Applications, dated December 9, 2024,
costs and revenues related to the cost of power are kept separate from the determination of the

distribution revenue sufficiency/deficiency.

Detailed information on the calculation of revenue requirement for 2026-2030 can be found in the

Excel Revenue Requirement Workforms (RRWF) attached to this Schedule, as follows":

e Attachment 6-1-1(A) - OEB Workform - 2026 Revenue Requirement Workform
e Attachment 6-1-1(B) - OEB Workform - 2027 Revenue Requirement Workform
e Attachment 6-1-1(C) - OEB Workform - 2028 Revenue Requirement Workform
e Attachment 6-1-1(D) - OEB Workform - 2029 Revenue Requirement Workform
e Attachment 6-1-1(E) - OEB Workform - 2030 Revenue Requirement Workform

" Hydro Ottawa selected “2023" as the “Most recent year” in cell E95 of the Cost allocation tab in each of the revenue
requirement workform as that is the latest year option available; however, the values reflect 2025’s as that is the recent
approved year. In addition, Hydro Ottawa left cell E128 blank as the option to select years 2028-2030 were not available.
The file name has the year the RRWF relates to.
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1 2. CALCULATION OF DEFICIENCY OR SUFFICIENCY

3 For 2021-2025, Hydro Ottawa completed one cost allocation model therefore the revenue

4 deficiency/sufficiency for 2021-2025 was calculated using the following inputs:

6 e 2020 approved rates;

7 e 2021-2025 Approved load forecast and forecast of customers/connections; and

8 e 2021-2025 base revenue requirement, as per the Approved Settlement Agreement
9 governing Hydro Ottawa’s 2021-2025 rate term, including the mid-term adjustments.?

2Hydro Ottawa Limited, 2027-2025 Custom Incentive Rate-Setting Approved Settlement Agreement, EB-2019-0261
(September 18, 2020).
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Table 1 — Approved Revenue Deficiency/Sufficiency for 2021-2025 with Mid-Term Adjustments
($°000s)

Historical Years

Bridge Years

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Return on Rate Base $64,029| $68503| $70,886| $76,980| $79,365
Distribution Expenses (not including amortization) $90,600| $93,490| $96,846( $ 101,389 $ 104,927
Depreciation, amortization $51,956| $55472| $57,686| $59,039| $62,125
Payment in Lieu of Taxes $ 891 $2,131 $ 6,331 $ 10,539 $ 7,283
Service Revenue Requirement $ 207,476 $219,596| $231,749| $ 247,947 $ 253,700
Less Capital Stretch Factor - $776 $ 1,659 $ 2,701 $ 3,658
gfrx:: f:;’ti:"e Requirement Net of Capital | ¢ 507,476| §$218,820 $230,090| $245246| $ 250,042
Less Revenue Offsets $ 9,680 $ 9,397 $ 9,305 $ 9,791 $ 10,003
Base Revenue Requirement $197,796| $ 209,423 $220,785| $ 235,455 $ 240,040
Transformer Ownership Credit $ 1,065 $ 1,069 $1,073 $1,079 $ 906
Revenue Requirement from Rates $198,861| $ 210,492 $221,858| $ 236,534 $ 240,946
Forecasted Load at 2020 Rates $188,518| $189,731| $191,002| $192,415| $ 193,588
Yearly Revenue Deficiency over 2020 $(10,343)| $(20,761)| $(30,856)| $ (44,119)| $ (47,358)
Cumulative Revenue Deficiency (over 2020) $(10,343)| $(31,104)| $(61,960)|$ (106,079)|$ (153,437)

10

For 2026-2030, Hydro Ottawa completed a cost allocation model for each of the test years therefore

the revenue deficiency/sufficiency for each of these test years were calculated using the following

inputs:

e Applying prior year's historical or proposed rates; and

e Each year's forecasted revenue load and customer numbers.
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This calculation results in year-over-year requirement deficiencies shown in tables of this Schedule

and Revenue Requirement Workforms. Further details on the 2026-2030 load and customer

forecasts can be found in Schedule 3-1-1 - Revenue Load and Customer Forecast.

The Costs Allocated from Previous Study and Previously Approved Ratios on Sheet 11 Cost

Allocation in the RRWF Workforms refer to 2021 rate application. Please refer to Schedule 7-1-1 -

Cost Allocation for more details. In addition, the difference in Sheet 11 Cost Allocation between

columns (7C) and (7D) is the difference between allocated Base Revenue Requirement and

achieved Base Revenue Requirement.

Table 2 below shows 2026-2030 base revenue requirement calculations.

Table 2 — Revenue Deficiency/Sufficiency for 2026-2030 ($°000s)*

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

Return on Rate Base $91,549| $101,661| $113,928| $ 123,382 $ 130,196
Distribution Expenses (not including amortization)| $ 140,010| $ 147,263 $ 154,891 $ 162,914 $ 171,353
Depreciation, amortization $67,205| $75392| $82256| $88,364( $94,410
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILS) $ 6,638 $6,528| $12,204( $12,671| $15,432
Other Expenses - PILS Contribution $ 4,590 $ 4,596 - - -
Service Revenue Requirement $309,993| $335,440( $363,279| $ 387,331 $ 411,392
Less Revenue Offsets $11,018 $10,697( $10,859 $11,123| $ 11,460
Revenue Requirement from Rates $298,975| $324,743| $ 352,420 $376,208| $ 399,932
Forecasted Load at Prior Year Rates $249,050| $300,938| $327,932| $355,874| $ 379,297
Yearly Revenue Deficiency $ (49,926)| $(23,804)| $(24,488)| $(20,334)| $ (20,636)
Cumulative Revenue Deficiency $ (49,926)| $(73,730)| $(98,218)|$ (118,552)($ (139,187)

14

3 Totals may not sum due to rounding.
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1 3. YEAR-OVER-YEAR REVENUE DEFICIENCY/SUFFICIENCY
2 Table 3 below provides the 2025-2026 year-over-year revenue deficiency/sufficiency amounts and
3 major cost drivers. The references to other Schedules in this Application indicate where additional

4 details on year-over-year variance and cost drivers can be found.

Revenue Requirement and

Revenue Requirement and Revenue Deficiency or Sufficiency Deficiency or Sufficiency



Table 3 — 2025-2026 Revenue Deficiency Amounts & Cost Drivers ($°000s)*

2025 2026 Schedule
Driver of Deficiency OEB- Test Cost Drivers
Reference
Approved Year
$97.1M increase in average net fixed assets driven mainly by increased volume and 2-11,
Return on Rate Base complexity of non-discretionary growth, increased renewal work due to aging 2-5-1to
$79,365| $91,549| $ 12,184 |equipment and failures, major storms, and inflationary pressures. 2-5-9
Increase in distribution operations expenses, cloud and information technology
Distribution Expenses (not including cyber security 411
including amortization) Headcount growth and increases in compensation
$104,927| $ 140,010( $ 35,083 |Inflationary increases
Amortization Capital addition and increase in forecast capital additions to meet customer needs and 2-1-1
$62,125| $67,205 $ 5,080 |grid modernization
Payment in Lieu of Taxes $ 7,283 $ 6,638 $ (645) [Changes in capital additions and the associated CCA deductions available. 6-2-1
Other Expenses - PILS Proposed PILS capital contribution 6-11&
P | $4590]| $a590]| P P : 9-1-4
Service Revenue Requirement $ 253,700 | $ 309,993| $ 56,293
Less Capital Stretch Factor $ 3,658 -| $(3,658) Proposed Custom IR Rate Term does not include additional Capital Stretch Factor. 1-3-1
Service Revenue Requirement
Net of Capital Stretch Factor | $ 250,042 $ 309,993| $ 59,951
Less Revenue Offsets Changes to Other Operating Revenue rates 6-31&
$10,003| $11,018] §$1,015] 9 perating ' 6-3-4
Base Revenue Requirement $ 240,040 ( $ 298,976 $ 58,937
Transformer Ownership Credit $ 906 _ $ (906) Transformer Ownership Credit ends as of November 1, 2025.
Revenue Requirement from $ 240,946 $298,976| $ 58,031

4 Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Revenue Requirement and Revenue Deficiency or Sufficiency
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2025 2026
Driver of Deficiency OEB- Test Cost Drivers Schedule
Reference
Approved Year
Rates
Forecasted Load at 2020/2025 Increase in rates and changes to revenue load forecast 3118
Rates $193,588| $249,050| $ 55,462 9 ’ 8-2-1
Yearly Revenue Deficiency
(over 2025) $ (49,927)
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1 Table 4 provides the 2026-2030 year-over-year revenue requirement amounts, the increase or

2 decrease from prior Test Year, major cost drivers, and references to Schedules where further

3 information on the drivers can be found.
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1 Table 4 — 2025-2030 Revenue Deficiency Amounts & Drivers ($°000s)°
Approved Test Years . Schedule
T T B T B DU Drivers
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Reference
$ $79,365| $91,549( $101,661| $113,928| $ 123,382 $ 130,196 |Annual increase in net fixed assets and
Return on Rate Base i ital all 2-1-1 & 2-3-1
+/- $12,184| $10,112| $12,267| $9,454| §6,814|WOrKiNg capitalaliowance.
Distribution Expenses $ | $104,927| $140,010| $147,263| $154,891| $ 162,914 $ 171,353 |Increases in compensation 4-1-1 & 2-5-1 1o
(not including Inflationary increases 259
amortization) +/- $ 35,083 $ 7,253 $ 7,628 $ 8,023 $ 8,439 |Increase in distribution operations expenses
$ $62,125| $67,205( $75392| $82,256| $88,364| $94,410 . o
L Annual changes in amortization due to change
Amortization . . i 2-7-1
in capital additions
+/- $ 5,080 $ 8,186 $ 6,864 $ 6,108 $ 6,046
N $ $ 7,283 $ 6,638 $6,528| $12,204| $ 12,671 $ 15,432 |Annual changes in capital additions and the
.I?:dem in Lieu of associated CCA deductions available, 6-2-1
+/- $ (645) $ (110) $ 5,676 $ 467 $ 2,762 |compared to the accounting depreciation.
- $ $ 4,590 $ 4,596 - - -
Other Expenses - PILS 2026 and 2027 PILS approach to CCA 6-1-1 & 9-1-4
Contribution +/- $ 4,590 $6| $(4,596) - _
Less: Capital Stretch $ $ 3,658 B B B B " [Capital efficiencies have been built into the 1-3-1
Factor +/- $ (3,658) - - - - |capital forecast
Service Revenue $ | $250,042| $309,993| $335,440| $363,279| $387,331| $411,392 6-1-1 Attachment
Requirement +/- $59,951| $25446| $27,840| $24,052| $ 24,061 AE

5 Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Revenue Requirement and Revenue Deficiency or Sufficiency

Revenue Requirement and Deficiency or Sufficiency

9




2025

2026

Test Years (Cont’d)

2027

2028

2029

2030

2026-2030 Custom IR

Drivers (Cont’d)

EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 1
Schedule 1
ORIGINAL
Page 10 of 11

Reference
(Cont’d)

Services to third parties expected to generate

$ $10,003| $11,018| $10,697| $10,859 $11,123| $ 11,460
Less Revenue Offsets less revenue starting 2027 to promote safety 6-3-1 & 6-3-5
+/- $1,015 $ (321) $ 162 $ 264 $ 337 |and electrification
Base Revenue $ | $240,040| $298,975| $324,743| $352,420( $ 376,208| $ 399,932 6-1-1 Attachment
Requirement +/- $58,935| $25767| $27,678| $23,788| $23,724 AE
Transformer Ownership $ $ 906 - ) ) } " |Removal of Transformer Ownership Credit 8-1-1
Credit +/- $ (906) ) _ _ _|effective November 1, 2025
Revenue Requirement $ | $240,946| $298,975| $324,743| $352,420( $376,208| $ 399,932 6-1-1 Attachment
from Rates +/- $58,029| $25767| $27,678| $23,788| $23,724 AE
Forecasted Load at $ | $193,588| $249,050| $300,938| $327,932| $ 355,874 $ 379,297 [Expected annual growth in Revenue Load and
Prior Year Rates Customer Forecast; Annual changes in rates 3-1-1 & 8-2-1
+/- $55,462( $51,889 $26,994| $27,942| $ 23,422 |for Test Years
Cumulative Revenue $ |$(47,358) | $(49,926)| $(73,730)| $(98,218)($ (118,552)|% (139,187) 613
Deficiency (over 2025) | /. $ (2,568) |$ (23,804) |$ (24,488) |$ (20,334)| $ (20,636)

Revenue Requirement and Revenue Deficiency or Sufficiency
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4. PILS CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

Hydro Ottawa is required to maximize tax deductions and credits in the determination of taxes or
payment in lieu of taxes (PILS). As outlined in Section 7 of Schedule 9-1-4 - Account 1592 PILS and
Tax Variance, existing tax legislation allows for accelerated Capital Cost Allowance (CCA) for years
2026-2027. This allows Hydro Ottawa to deduct more CCA in the first years when the assets are
available for use thereby reducing PILS in the earlier years of the assets’ useful lives. Accelerated
CCA does not change the total amount of CCA that Hydro Ottawa can deduct over the tax life of the
eligible capital assets. This accelerated CCA is only available to be claimed in the first tax year that
the eligible capital assets are acquired and available for use. By claiming a larger CCA deduction in

the first year, Hydro Ottawa will have smaller CCA deductions available in future years.

Hydro Ottawa is proposing to include in revenue requirement for 2026 and 2027, as noted in Table
5 above, the decrease in Grossed Up PILS for 2026 and 2027 due to accelerated CCA rules; as
well as the impact in the decrease in accumulated Grossed Up PILS due to the 2021 immediate
expensing measure that has been recorded in Account 1592. This increase in revenue requirement
proposed is to be recognized as capital contribution in the corresponding year in the fixed asset
subledger. The PlLs capital contribution will be amortized over 36 years. This proposal has dual
benefits as it addresses the intergenerational equity issues that arise in the context of deferred
taxes when income tax decisions in the present have long-term tax implications for future
generations. This will smooth the benefit of the Grossed Up PILS difference for both the 2026 and
2027 Accelerated CCA and the 2021 immediate expensing measure over 36 years instead of
allocating and benefiting the entire decrease in Grossed Up PILS to current ratepayers. This
proposal will also allow customers to pay less through base rates over the asset life as rate base

will be lower over time instead of only during the first years of an asset life.

Please also see Schedule 9-1-4 - Account 1592 PILS and Tax Variance for additional details on the

historical treatment of these tax impacts.

Revenue Requirement and Revenue Deficiency or Sufficiency
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Attachment 6-1-1(A) - OEB Workform - 2026 Revenue

Requirement Workform

(Refer to the attachment in Excel format)
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Attachment 6-1-1(B) - OEB Workform - 2027 Revenue

Requirement Workform

(Refer to the attachment in Excel format)
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Attachment 6-1-1(C) - OEB Workform - 2028 Revenue

Requirement Workform

(Refer to the attachment in Excel format)
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Attachment 6-1-1(D) - OEB Workform - 2029 Revenue

Requirement Workform

(Refer to the attachment in Excel format)
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Attachment 6-1-1(E) - OEB Workform - 2030 Revenue

Requirement Workform

(Refer to the attachment in Excel format)
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PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES

1. INTRODUCTION
Hydro Ottawa is required to make Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILS) to the Ministry of Finance

based on its taxable income.

Hydro Ottawa has modified the Income Tax/PILS Workform (PILS Tax Model) supplied by the
OEB for 2025 Cost of Service Applications Filers. Hydro Ottawa modified the PILS Tax Model to
calculate the PILS for each of the 2026-2030 Test Years in one PILS Tax Model (Modified PILS
Tax Model) for all five Test Years instead of an individual PILS Tax Model per Test Year. The

modifications made to the PILS Tax Model are discussed later in this Schedule.

The amount of PILS included in the revenue requirements for each of the 2026-2030 Test Years
is summarized in Table 1. The Modified PILS Tax Model for 2026-2030 Test Years are appended
to this Schedule as the following Excel Attachment 6-2-1(B) - OEB Workform - 2026-2030

Income Tax/PILS Workform.

Table 1 - Grossed Up PILS for 2026-2030 Test Years ($°000s)

Test Year Income Taxes/PILS Grossed Up

2026 $ 6,638
2027 $ 6,528
2028 $ 12,204
2029 $ 12,671
2030 $ 15,432

As noted, modifications have been made to the PILS Tax Model supplied by the OEB for 2025
Cost of Service Applications Filers. Instead of calculating and completing an individual PILS Tax
Model for each 2026-2030 Test Years, the PILS Tax Model supplied by the OEB for 2025 Cost
of service Application Filers has been modified such that the PILS for each of the 2026-2030

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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Test Years are calculated in one complete PILS Tax Model. The following modifications were

Tab “Table of Contents” has been modified to include all new tabs added to the Modified
PILS Model and renamed tabs;
Tab S “Summary” has been modified to include summaries for 2026-2030 Test Years;
Tab A has been renamed as “A Data Input Sheet 26-30”. A calculation for the Return on
Rate Base has been added for 2027, 2028, 2029 and 2030 Test Years and are located in
cells K9 to AC19;
Two Bridge Years have been added as Tabs A for the 2024 Bridge Year and Tabs B for
2025 Bridge Year, specifically:

o Tabs A0 — A13 added and renamed for the 2024 Bridge Year

o Tabs B0 — B13 added and renamed for the 2025 Bridge Year

o The Modified PILS Tax Model now includes a 2023 Historical Year, a 2024 Bridge

Year, a 2025 Bridge Year and the 2026-2030 Test Years;

Tab “C1 PIL Tax Provision Test 27 - 30" has been added. This new Tab C1 shows the
PILS calculation for the 2027, 2028, 2029 and 2030 Test Years. This tab consolidates all
the calculations for PILS into one tab for the 2027, 2028, 2029 and 2030 Test Years;
Tabs TO to T13 show the PILS calculations for the 2026 Test Year;
Tab “C2 Sch 8 CCA Test 27” has been added. This tab calculates the Capital Cost
Allowance (CCA) deduction for the 2027 Test Year and includes the modifications made
to calculate Accelerated CCA for 2027 additions;
Tab “C3 Sch 8 CCA Test 28" has been added. This schedule calculates the CCA
deduction for the 2028 Test Year and has not been modified to include Accelerated CCA
as Accelerated CCA is no longer available for capital additions available for use after
2027,
Tab “C4 Sch 8 CCA Test 29" has been added. This schedule calculates the CCA
deduction for the 2029 test year and does not include the Accelerated CCA, as

Accelerated CCA is no longer available for capital additions available for use after 2027;

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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e Tab “C5 Sch 8 CCA Test 30” has been added.This schedule calculates the CCA
deduction for the 2030 Test Year and has not been modified to include Accelerated CCA,

as Accelerated CCA is no longer available for capital additions available for use after

2027,
e The following tabs were modified to calculate Accelerated CCA on assets acquired in
those Years :
o Tab “A8 Sch 8 CCA Bridge 24”
o Tab “B8 Sch 8 CCA Bridge 25”
o Tab “T8 Sch 8 CCA Test 26”
o Tab “C2 Sch 8 CCA Test 27”; and
e |n the PILS Tax Model supplied by the OEB for 2025 Cost of Service Applications Filers,
column Q “(14) Cost of acquisitions from column 13 that are accelerated investment
incentive properties” does not contain any data or formula. In the Modified PILS Tax
Model, column Q has been updated to align with column P “(13) Cost of acquisitions on
remainder of Class” to indicate that current year fixed asset additions are eligible as
accelerated investment incentive (or Accelerated CCA) properties.
2. PRUDENT MANAGEMENT OF PILS/TAXES
Hydro Ottawa exercises sound tax planning and manages its tax costs diligently in order to
minimize these costs. As required, the utility maximizes tax deductions such as CCA, and takes
advantage of available tax credits, such as apprentice tax credits, student co-op tax credits, and
scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) tax credits.
3. GENERAL METHODOLOGY
The methodology for calculating PILS is consistent with the principles set out in the Chapter 2
OEB'’s Filing Requirements for Electricity Distribution Rate Applications - 2025 Edition for 2026
Rate Applications, dated December 9, 2024. It is also consistent with the methodology
employed in prior years. In addition, PILS calculations reflect applicable current tax legislation
Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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and regulatory changes, including the recent legislative tax changes to CCA in Bill C-97, which

are further discussed in Section 6 below.

For the 2026-2030 Test Years, Hydro Ottawa has used a combined income tax rate of 26.5%,
which comprises a federal tax rate of 15.0% and a provincial tax rate of 11.5%. This rate is
applied to Hydro Ottawa’s regulatory taxable income determined through the PILS Tax Models
to calculate income taxes payable before the deduction of tax credits. Applicable tax credits are
then deducted to determine the Corporate PILS/Income Tax Provision for the given Test Year.
This amount is then grossed up by the 1 - tax rate formula to determine the PILS component of

the revenue requirement for each Test Year.

4. LOSS CARRY-FORWARDS
Hydro Ottawa does not have any non-capital loss or capital loss carry-forwards as at the end of

December 2023. Furthermore, the utility has not forecast any loss carry-forwards for the
2026-2030 Test Years.

5. NON-DISTRIBUTION ASSETS/NON-RECOVERABLE EXPENSES

Hydro Ottawa has excluded any non-distribution assets in its Modified PILS Tax Model.
Specifically, non distribution assets have been deducted in the 2023 historical year. Please see
Tab H8 in the Modified PILS Tax Model for details. The utility also confirms that non-recoverable
expenses and expenses disallowed for regulatory purposes have been excluded in the tax

calculation, such as donations.

6. CAPITAL COST ALLOWANCE

On June 21, 2019, Bill C-97 received Royal Assent. Bill C-97, the Budget Implementation Act,
2019, introduced changes to CCA, such as the new Accelerated CCA rules. These rules allow
enhanced first-year tax depreciation on eligible capital assets acquired and available for use

after November 20, 2018. Under the Accelerated CCA rules, Hydro Ottawa is able to deduct up

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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to three times the amount of tax depreciation that would otherwise be available in the year that
an asset is acquired and available for use. This is achieved by removing the “half-year” rule and
then applying the prescribed CCA rate at 1.5 times on the net qualifying additions for the given
year. This Accelerated CCA is available for assets acquired and available for use after
November 20, 2018 and before 2024.

A phase-out period will begin for property that becomes available for use after 2023. For assets
acquired after 2023 and before 2028, the “half-year” rule is still not applied and the Accelerated
CCA rules will allow Hydro Ottawa to deduct tax depreciation that is two times the amount of tax
depreciation that would otherwise apply in the year that an asset is acquired and available for

use. The Accelerated CCA rules will no longer be available for assets acquired after 2027.

Accelerated CCA does not change the total amount of CCA that Hydro Ottawa can deduct over
the tax life of the eligible capital assets. This Accelerated CCA is only available to be claimed in
the first tax year that the eligible capital assets are acquired and available for use. By claiming a
larger CCA deduction in the first year, Hydro Ottawa will have smaller CCA deductions available
in future years. Hydro Ottawa confirms that the Accelerated CCA rules from Bill C-97 have only
been applied in the PILS Tax calculations for the 2026 and 2027 Test Years because
Accelerated CCA is no longer available after 2027. Accelerated CCA for the 2026 & 2027 Test
Years have been reflected in the Modified PILS Tax Model. Please see tabs T8 and C2 in the
Modified PILS Tax Model for these details.

The regulatory taxable income in each Test Year includes forecasted CCA, which has been
calculated using the Accelerated CCA rules applicable in the 2023 Historical Year, 2024 and
2025 Bridge Years, and in the 2026 and 2027 Test Years. Accelerated CCA is no longer
available for the 2028, 2029 and 2030 Test Years. These forecasted CCA amounts are
calculated using the estimated ending Undepreciated Capital Cost (UCC) balance from the

previous year as the opening balance and then adding the net capital additions to determine the

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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UCC balance available for each Test Year. The “half-year” rule has not been applied in each of
the 2026 and 2027 Test Years on net qualifying additions. The Accelerated CCA rules allow
Hydro Ottawa to deduct two times the amount of tax depreciation that would otherwise apply on
qualifying new assets for the 2026 and 2027 Test Years. The Accelerated CCA rules will no
longer be available for assets acquired after 2027. The maximum allowable CCA has been
deducted for all 2026-2030 Test Years. The Federal Government announced an extension to the
Accelerated CCA rules in the Federal 2024 Fall Economic Statement. Further discussion about
the Accelerated CCA extension can be found in Schedule 9-1-4 - Account 1592 PILS and Tax

Variance.

7. TAX CREDITS — APPRENTICES & CO-OP STUDENTS

As in previous years, Hydro Ottawa continues to claim the Federal Apprenticeship Job Creation
Tax Credit and the Ontario Co-operative Education Tax Credit. The Federal Apprenticeship Job
Creation Tax Credit is 10% of salaries and wages paid to eligible apprentices, up to a maximum
of $2,000 per year per apprentice for the first two years of the apprenticeship contract. The
Ontario Co-operative Education Tax Credit is 25% of eligible expenditures up to a maximum of

$3,000 per student per year.

The Ontario Apprenticeship Training Tax Credit is no longer available and has not been included
in 2026-2030 Test Years. This credit was available during the first 36 months of the apprentice
program for programs that commenced before November 15, 2017. The 2020 Year was the last

year in which Hydro Ottawa claimed this credit.

Hydro Ottawa has forecasted the Federal Apprenticeship Job Creation Tax Credit and deducted
this tax credit in the PILS Tax Models for the 2026-2030 Test Years. The Ontario Co-operative
Education Tax Credit for each of the 2026-2030 Test Years has been calculated by forecasting
that 35 eligible co-op students will be hired per Test Year, with a tax credit per student of $3,000

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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(i.e. total credits of $105,000 per Test Year). These tax credits are summarized in Tables 2 and 3

below.

Table 2 — Total Federal Apprenticeship Job Creation and Ontario Co-operative
Education Tax Credits for 2026-2030 Test Years

Federal Apprenticeship

Ontario Co-op Education

Total Tax Credits

Tax Credit Tax Credit
2026 $ 10,000 $ 105,000 $ 115,000
2027 $ 20,000 $ 105,000 $ 125,000
2028 $ 10,000 $ 105,000 $ 115,000
2029 - $ 105,000 $ 105,000
2030 - $ 105,000 $ 105,000

Table 3 — Federal Apprenticeship Job Creation Tax Credits for 2026-2030 Test Years'

Hiring Year Tax Credits Received
Year Number Hired 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
2026 5 5 - -
2027 5 - 5 -
2028 - - - - -
2029 - - - - -
2030 - - - - -
TOTAL NUMBER OF 5 10 5 i
CREDITS/YR
TOTAL $ CREDITS/YR $10,000 $20,000 $10,000 -

' As a guide for interpreting the information presented in this table, please see the explanation on the applicability of
the Federal Apprenticeship Job Creation Tax Credit provided in Section 7 of this Schedule.

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes

Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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8. TAX CREDITS - SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH & EXPERIMENTAL DEVELOPMENT

Hydro Ottawa first filed for SR&ED tax credits for the 2017 tax year. The SR&ED tax credits for
2017 to 2019 have been assessed and audited. The SR&ED tax credits for 2020 to 2023 have
been assessed but not audited. For the 2026-2030 Test Years, the SR&ED tax credits have
been forecasted based on the average percentage of qualified SR&ED expenditures from 2017
to 2023. The 2026-2030 SR&ED amounts are presented in Table 4 below. The forecasted

SR&ED tax credits have been reflected as a reduction in capital expenditures and/or operations

and maintenance (O&M) expenses for each Test Year. This approach is consistent with Hydro

Ottawa’s 2021-2025 rate application proposal and approved as part of the Settlement

Agreement.?

Table 4 — Total Forecast SR&ED Tax Credits for 2026-2030 Test Years

SR&ED Credit Capital

SR&ED Credit O&M

SR&ED Credit Total

2026 $ 576,000 $ 223,000 $ 799,000
2027 $ 839,000 $ 323,000 $ 1,162,000
2028 $ 860,000 $ 332,000 $ 1,192,000
2029 $ 695,000 $ 268,000 $ 963,000
2030 $ 497,000 $ 193,000 $ 690,000

9. INTEGRITY CHECKS

The following integrity checks have been completed in respect of the Modified PILS Tax Model:

e Depreciation and amortization added back agreed with the numbers disclosed in the rate

base section of the Application.

e Capital additions and deductions agreed with the rate base section for Historical Years,

Bridge Years, and Test Years.

2 Hydro Ottawa Limited, 20271-2025 Custom Incentive Rate-Setting Approved Settlement Agreement, EB-2019-0261

(September 18, 2020).

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes

Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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Schedule 8 of the most recent 2023 tax return year filed with the Application has a
closing December 31 UCC balance that agrees with the historical year UCC balance at
December 31.

Non-distribution assets have been removed from the Modified PILS Tax Model in the
2023 Historical Year.

The CCA deductions in the Modified PILS Tax Model for Historical Years, Bridge Years,
and Test Years agree with the numbers in Schedule 8 of 2023 to 2030.

Other post-employment benefits and pension expenses are added back on Schedule 1.
The income tax rate used to calculate the tax expense is consistent with the current
legislated rate.

The maximum allowable CCA has been deducted for all 2026-2030 Test Years, including
Accelerated CCA in 2026 and 2027 Test Years.

A corporation can claim a deduction from its net income for charitable donations made to
qualified donors. From 2024 to 2030, all donation expenses were added back to taxable
income. OEB-qualified donations were deducted from net income for tax purposes in
order to determine taxable income.

Hydro Ottawa has estimated its SR&ED claim for 2024 to 2030 based on forecasted
spending and the average eligible SR&ED claim percentage from previously filed
SR&ED claims. SR&ED deductions reported in the financial statements have been
added back to taxable income, while the SR&ED expenditure claimed in the year has
been deducted from taxable income. Additionally, SR&ED expenses capitalized for
accounting purposes have been subtracted from taxable income and excluded from the
capital cost allowance additions for the year. Hydro Ottawa has also estimated its
SR&ED tax credits for these years. This practice is consistent with prior years and Hydro

Ottawa’s 2021-2025 Approved Settlement Agreement.?

3 Hydro Ottawa Limited, 20271-2025 Custom Incentive Rate-Setting Approved Settlement Agreement, EB-2019-0261
(September 18, 2020).

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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10. PILS VARIANCES

Details of the actual taxes paid by Hydro Ottawa from 2020-2023, as well as the forecasted
taxes to be paid for 2024 and 2025, are summarized in Table 5 below. Grossed Up PILS for the
2026-2030 Test Years can be found in Table 6 below.

A copy of the most recent Federal and Provincial tax return is appended to this Schedule as
Attachment 6-2-1(A) - 2023 Tax Return. As per the Chapter 2 Filing Requirements, confidential

personal information contained within the SR&ED return has been redacted.

Table 5 — Corporate PILS Paid or Grossed Up PILS for 2020-2025 ($°000s)

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Bridge 2025 Bridge

Actual Actual Actual Actual Grossed Up Grossed Up

Income Taxes $ 936 $ 2,003 $ 806 $ 692 $ 4,686 $ 7,525

Table 6 — Grossed Up PILS for 2026-2030 Test Years ($°000s)

Income Taxes $ 6,638 $ 6,528 $ 12,204 $ 12,671 $ 15,432

The decrease or increase in PILS from year to year is generally due to changes in capital
additions and the associated CCA deductions available compared to the accounting
depreciation. Specifically, the large increase in PILS between 2027 and 2028 is because
Accelerated CCA is no longer available after 2027. Changes in regulatory net income before tax

from year to year also contribute to the change in PILS from year to year.

Taxes or Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Code 1901

Scientific Research and Experimental
Development (SR&ED) Expenditures Claim

Use this form:
e to provide technical information on your SR&ED projects;
e to calculate your SR&ED expenditures; and
e to calculate your qualified SR&ED expenditures for investment tax credits (ITC).

To claim an ITC, use either:
e Schedule T2SCH31, Investment Tax Credit — Corporations; or

e Form T2038(IND), Investment Tax Credit (Individuals).

The information requested in this form and documents supporting your expenditures and project information (Part 2) are prescribed information.
In Part 6, a new box is added: Box 758 that must be filled if traditional method is used. The information is required for tax year ends after 2020

and optional for tax year ends before 2021.
Your SR&ED claim must be filed within 12 months of the filing due date of your income tax return.

To help you fill out this form, use the T4088, Guide to Form T661, which is available on our website: canada.caltaxes-sred.

Part 1 — General information

m Name of claimant

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Enter one of the following:

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year

2023-12-31 \
Month  Day

2023-01-01 I
Year Month Day Year

From ‘

Business number (BN)

Total number of projects you are claiming
this tax year:

5

Social insurance number (SIN)

m Contact person for the financial information

Bettina Yau

m Telephone number/extension

(613) 738-5499

m Fax number

(613) 738-5486

Contact person for the technical information

Bettina Yau

Telephone number/extension

(613) 738-5499

Fax number

m If this claim is filed for a partnership, was Form T5013 Partnership Information Return filed?

DNO

If you answered no to line 151, complete lines 153, 156 and 157.

Names of the partners

BN or SIN

2
3
4
5
Part 2 - Project information CRA internal form identifier 060
Complete a separate Part 2 for each project claimed this year. Code 1901
Section A - Project identification
200 Project title (and identification code if applicable)
See schedule
T661 E (20)
CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11  VERSION 2024 V1.0 Page 1
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Part 3 — Calculation of SR&ED expenditures
What did you spend on your SR&ED projects?

Section A — Select the method to calculate the SR&ED expenditures

| elect (choose) to use the following method to calculate my SR&ED expenditures and related investment tax credits (ITC) for this tax year.
| understand that my election is irrevocable (cannot be changed) for this tax year.

| elect to use the proxy method
(Enter "0" on line 360 and complete Part 5.)

| choose to use the traditional method
(Enter "0" on line 502. Complete line 360.)

Section B — Calculation of allowable SR&ED expenditures (to the nearest dollar)
® SR&ED portion of salary or wages of employees directly engaged in the SR&ED:

a) Employees other than specified employees for work performed in Canada . . .. ... ittt ittt i e m + 2,025,022
b) Specified employees for work performed in Canada . . . .. ... e e +
Subtotal (add lines 300 and 305) . .......... 306 = 2,025,022

) Employees other than specified employees for work performed outside Canada (subject to limitations — see guide) N 307 s
d) Specified employees for work performed outside Canada (subject to limitations — see guide) . .............. 309

® Salary or wages identified on line 315 in prior years that were paid in thistaxyear ... ................... ... m +

® Salary or wages incurred in the year but not paid within 180 days of the tax yearend ... .. m

® Cost of materials consumed in performing SR&ED . . . . .. +

® Cost of materials transformed in performing SR&ED . . . . .. e +

® Contract expenditures for SR&ED performed on your behalf:
a) Arm's length CONtracts . ottt e e e e e e e e + 3,383,701
b) Non-arm's length contracts . . . . . .. e +

® QOverhead and other expenditures (enter "0" if you elected to use the proxy method atline 160) . ................ +

® Third-party payments (complete Form T1263%) . . . . . e +

Total allowable SR&ED expenditures (add lines 306 to 370; donotadd line 315) .. .. ... .ttt iennnnnn.. = 5,408,723

If the above expenditures have been included in your income statement, enter this amount on line 118 of Schedule T2SCH1 or, if you are an individual, include
this amount in your self-employment income (lines 135 to 143) reported on your individual income tax and benefit return.

Section C — Calculation of pool of deductible SR&ED expenditures (to the nearest dollar)
Amount from liNe 380 .. e e e e e e 420 5,408,723
Deduct

e provincial government assistance for expenditures included on line 380 .. .. ... ... e - 150,981
e other government assistance for expenditures included on line 380 . . . . ... e -
e non-government assistance for expenditures included on line 380 . . . ... -

e SR&ED ITCs applied and/or refunded in the prior year (do not include ITCs allocated from a partnership) .. ......... - 571,965
o sale of SR&ED capital assets and other deductions . . . . . .. e

Subtotal (line 420 Minus NS 42910 440) . . o ittt e e e e e e = 4,685,777
Add

e repayments of government and non-government assistance that previously reduced the SR&ED expenditure pool
e prior year's pool balance of deductible SR&ED expenditures (from line 470 of prior year T661) ... ..............
o SR&ED expenditure pool transfer from amalgamation orwind-up . . . .. ... e
e amount of SR&ED ITC recaptured in the prior year . . . . . . . e

Amount available for deduction (add lines 442 t0 453) . . ... 5,179,926
(enter positive amount only, include negative amount in income)

494,149

+ 4+ 4+ 4+

® Deduction claimed inthe year . . .. e e
(Corporations should enter this amount on line 411 of schedule T2SCH1)

Pool balance of deductible SR&ED expenditures to be carried forward to future years (line 455 minus 460)

= 5,179,926

* Form T1263, Third-Party Payments for Scientific Research and Experimental Development (SR&ED)

T661 E (20)
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

86339 1363 RC0001

Part 4 — Calculation of qualified SR&ED expenditures for investment tax credit (ITC) purposes (to the nearest dollar)

The resulting amount is used to calculate your refundable and/or non refundable ITC.

Total allowable SR&ED expenditures (from line 380) . ...ttt t ittt ittt et e e 492 5,408,723
Add
® payment of prior years' unpaid amounts (other than salary or wages) (seenote 1) .. ... ... ... .. ... m +
® prescribed proxy amount (complete Part 5)
(Enter "0" if you use the traditional method) . . . ot it e e 502 1,085,505
e qualified expenditures transferred to you (see note 3) (complete Form T1146**) . .. ... it ittt i 508 s
Subtotal (add liNes 49210 508) . .. it i e e e e e e 511 = 6,494,228
Deduct
e provincial government @sSiStANCE .. ... e e e e e - 188,974
e other government assistance . ... e -
e non-government assistance and contract payments ... L e -
® current expenditures (other than salary or wages) not paid within 180 days of the tax year end (see note1) . ........ -
® 80% of the amounts paid in respect of an SR&ED contract to a person or partnership that is not a taxable supplier -
® 20% of the amount on lines 340 and 370 . . .t ittt e e e e e e LyL) — 676,740
e prescribed expenditures not allowed by regulations (see guide) . . . ... e 530
o other deductions (SEE QUIJE) . o o ot it it e e e e e e e 533 km
e non-arm's length transactions
— assistance allocated to you (complete Form T1145%) . . ... o e e e -
— expenditures for non-arm's length SR&ED contracts (from line 345) . . .. . ... e 541 —
— adjustments to purchases (limited to costs) of goods and services from non-arm's length suppliers (see guide) ... .. -
— qualified expenditures you transferred (complete Form T1146**) . . . . . i e e -
Qualified SR&ED expenditures (line 511 minus lines 51310 544) . . ..ottt ittt et et et et e 559 = 5,628,514
Add
® repayments of assistance and contract payments made inthe year . . ... . m +
Total qualified SR&ED expenditures for ITC purposes (add lines 559 and 560) .. .. .. ...t uiennnennn.. = 5,628,514
*  Form T1145, Agreement to Allocate Assistance for SR&ED Between Persons Not Dealing at Arm's Length
** Form T1146, Agreement to Transfer Qualified Expenditures Incurred in Respect of SR&ED Contracts Between Persons Not Dealing at Arm's Length
Note 1 — For arm’s length contracts, only include 80% of the contract amount.
T661 E (20)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Part 5 — Calculation of prescribed proxy amount (PPA)

A notional amount representing your overhead and other expenditures.

This part calculates the PPA to enter on line 502 in Part 4. Do not complete this part if you have chosen to use the traditional method in Part 3 (line 162).
You can only claim a PPA if you elected to use the proxy method for the year in Part 3 (line 160).

Special rules apply for specified employees. Calculate your salary base in Section A and the PPA in Section B.

Section A — Salary base
Salary or wages of employees other than specified employees (from lines 300 and 307) . . ..o i i i i it it e e e 810 + 2,025,022
Deduct
Bonuses, remuneration based on profits, and taxable benefits that were included on ine 810 . . . v oot v e it e v e e BH - 51,376
Subtotal (line 810 MINUS 812) .. it ittt ittt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e 814 = 1,973,646
Salary or wages of specified employees
850 852 854 856 858 860
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6
Total salary or
wages for the
year (SR&ED and 2,5 x A x B/365
non-SR&ED) A= Year's
excluding i % of ‘ i:(?:)?ﬁ;tn maximum Amount in
Name of specified bonuses, on SREED 2 multiolied b pensionable column 4 or 5,
employee remuneration (maximum ercenﬁa e ir¥ earnings whichever
based on profits, 75%) P columr?3 B = Number amount is less
and taxable of days employed
benefits in tax year
(to the nearest
dollar)
(Enter total of column 6 on line 816) m +
Salary base (total Of Nes 814 and 816)  + + v o o o e e e e e e e = 1,973,646
Section B — Prescribed proxy amount (PPA)
Enter 55 % of the salary base (IN€ 818) . . o ittt ettt e e 820 = 1,085,505
Enter the amount from line 820 on to line 502 in Part 4 unless the overall cap on PPA applies to you. (See the guide for explanation and example
of the overall cap on PPA)

Part 6 — Project costs

Information requested in this part must be provided for all SR&ED projects claimed in the year.
Expenditures should be recorded and allocated on a project basis.

* For Box 758, the information is required for tax year ends after 2020 and optional for tax year ends before 2021.

750 752 754 756 758
Salary or wages Cost of materials Contract Overhead and other
in the tax year in the tax year expenditures for expenditures in
SR&ED performed the tax year*
on your behalf
Project title or identification code in the tax year
(Total of lines (Total of lines (Total of lines (total of line 360,
306 to 309) 320 and 325) 340 and 345) if applicable)
1 2023-01 Advancements in Grid Infrastructure Design 715,215 1,478,393
2 2023-02 Data Mapping Techniques for Usage Computation 380,220 852,851
3 2022-04 Advancements in System Integration Techniques 155,624 605,235
4 2022-01 Advancements in Smart Grid Reliability 345,579 400,000
5 2022-03 Integration Methods for Performant & Secure System 428,384 47,222
Total 2,025,022 3,383,701
T661 E (20)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Part 7 — Additional information

Other funding (e.g., universities, foreign governments) . .............. .. ... ...

Expenditures for SR&ED performed by you in Canada (line 380 minus lines 307, 309, 340, 345,and 370)  ........... m 2,025,022
From the total you entered on line 605, estimate the percentage of distribution of the sources of funds
for SR&ED performed within your organization. Canadian (%) Foreign (%)

INtErNal L e e e e 100.000

Parent companies, subsidiaries, and affiliated companies . ................ ..o ...

Federal grants (do not include funds or tax credits

from SR&ED tax incentives) .. ... e

Federal contracts . . . . oo e e e

Provincial funding . . ..

SR&ED contract work performed for other companies on their behalf .. ............... 614

618

For statistical purposes indicate whether the work you performed falls within the realm of Basic or Applied research (to advance scientific knowledge) or
Experimental development (to achieve a technological advancement):

m D Basic or Applied research @ Experimental development

Enter the number of SR&ED personnel in full-time equivalents (FTE):

Scientists and ENgINEEIS . ot i e e e e e e e e e e e e 632 11
Technologists and teChNICIANS . . . . o i ittt s e e e e e e e 634 3
Managers and administrators . . . .. e e e e e e e e e e e 636 4
Other technical SUPPOItiNg Staff . L . o e e e e e e 638

Part 8 — Claim checklist

To ensure your claim is complete, make sure you have:
1. used the current version of this fOrm L L L L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

2. entered the method you have chosen for reporting your SR&ED expenditures in Section Aof Part3 .. ... ... . . . . . ...
3. completed Part 2 for each project .. e e e
4. filed a completed Schedule T2SCH31 or Form T2038(IND) to claim ITCs on your qualified SR&ED expenditures .. ..................
5. filed a completed Form T1145*, T1146**, T1174*** and/or T1263**** including any required attachments, if applicable ~ .................

To expedite the processing of your claim, make sure you have:
1. completed Form T2, Corporation Income Tax Return or Form T1, Income Tax and BenefitReturn .. . . ... ... oot

filed the appropriate provincial and/or territorial tax credit forms, if applicable ... . . ... . . e

. retained documents to support the SR&ED work performed and SR&ED expenditures you claimed . ... ... ... .. . ...

A W N

. checked boxes 231 and 232 on page 2 of your T2 return to indicate attachment of Form T661 and Schedule T2SCH31 . ...............

][] [] ] [x]

][] [x] [x]

*

Form T1145, Agreement to Allocate Assistance for SR&ED Between Persons Not Dealing at Arm's Length
** Form T1146, Agreement to Transfer Qualified Expenditures Incurred in Respect of SR&ED Contracts Between Persons Not Dealing at Arm's Length

*** Form T1174, Agreement Between Associated Corporations to Allocate Salary or Wages of Specified Employees for Scientific Research and
Experimental Development (SR&ED)

**** Form T1263, Third-Party Payments for Scientific Research and Experimental Development (SR&ED)

T661 E (20)
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Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

A $1,000 penalty may be assessed if the information requested below about the claim preparer(s) and billing arrangement(s), is missing, incomplete,
or inaccurate. Where a claim preparer has prepared or assisted in the preparation of this SR&ED form, the claimant and the claim preparer will be
jointly and severally, or solidarily, liable for the penalty.

Was a claim preparer engaged in any aspect of the preparation of this SR&ED claim?
Yes (complete the claim preparer information table and lines 970 and 975 below)

D No (complete lines 970 and 975)

Claim preparer information table

* Billing arrangement codes

940 945 950 955 960 965
Billing -
Billing rate - .
Name of claim preparer Business arrazgggwent (percentage, ar?at:ggr?wlglr?tg(gs) Tot:;;zzlzald,
(company or individual) number (Sgel cod;as ra*t‘g‘gr'ﬁl/gf‘;'eye) (Maximum 10 words) | or expected to pay
elow*
1. KPMG LLP 12236 3153 RC0001 1 16.50 169,988
Total 169,988

Code

Type of billing arrangement

Contingency fee arrangement — where the fee is based on a percentage of the investment tax credit earned

Hourly rate

Daily rate

Flat fee arrangement (lump sum)

oW N -

Other arrangements — describe the arrangement in box 960 in 10 words or less

I, _ Geoff Simpson

Name of authorized signing officer of the corporation, or individual (print)
and accurate.

7 Signature

, certify that the information provided in this part is complete

m 2024-06-19

Year Month Day

T661 E (20)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Part 10 — Certification

| certify that | have examined the information provided on this form and on the attachments and it is true, correct, and complete.

Geoff Simpson 2024-06-19
Name of authorized signing officer of the corporation, or individual Siﬁaﬁ% Date
KPMG LLP

Name of person/firm who completed this form

Privacy Notice

Personal information is collected pursuant to subsections 37(1), 37(11), and 162(5.1) of the Income Tax Act (the Act) and is used for verification of compliance, administration
and enforcement of the Scientific Research and Experimental Development (SR&ED) program requirements.

Information may also be used for the administration and enforcement of other provisions of the Act, including assessment, audit, enforcement, collections, and appeals, and
may be disclosed under information-sharing agreements in accordance with the Act. Incomplete or inaccurate information may result in assessment of monetary penalties
and delays in processing SR&ED claims.

The social insurance number is collected pursuant to section 237 of the Act and is used for identification purposes.

Refer to Personal Information Bank CRA PPU 441 in the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) Information about Programs and Information Holdings — Personal Information Banks —
Canada.ca. Under the Privacy Act, individuals have a right of access to, protection, and correction of their personal information and to file a complaint with the Privacy Commissioner
of Canada regarding our handling of their personal information.

T661 E (20)
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Attached Schedule with Total

Prior year's pool balance of deductible SR&ED expenditures (from line 470 of prior year T661)

Titte _ Prior year's pool balance of deductible SR&ED expenditures (from line 470 ol

2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 8 of 155

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Operator
Description (Note) Amount
Increase in SR&ED Pool from 2020 amended tax return + 494,149|00
+
Total 494,149/00

Note: The calculations are performed one at a time, from the first to the last line, and not according to the priority rules of the operations. For example, the

formula 1+2*3 will not result in the same thing as the formula 1+3*2.

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0
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Part 2 — Project information (continued)

Complete a separate Part 2 for each project claimed this year.
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Project number 1

CRA internal form identifier 060
Code 1901

Section A - Project identification

Project title (and identification code if applicable)

2023-01 Advancements in Grid Infrastructure Design

Project start date

2022-09
Year Month

Completion or expected completion date

2024-07
Year Month

Field of science or technology code
(See guide for list of codes)

2.02.01 ‘ Electrical and electronic engineering

Project claim history

m First claim for the project

Was any of the work done jointly or in collaboration with other businesses?

208 D Continuation of a previously claimed project
218

D Yes No

If you answered yes to line 218, complete lines 220 and 221.

Names of the businesses

221 BN

1

2

Section B — Project descriptions

What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?

(Maximum 50 lines)

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11

VERSION 2024 V1.0
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Page 10 of 155

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

2023-12-31
86339 1363 RC0001

What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?
(Maximum 50 lines)

What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
(Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines)

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0 Page 2
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
(Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines)

m What scientific or technological advancements did you achieve or attempt to achieve as a result of the work described in line 244? (Maximum 50 lines)

T661 E (20)
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Page 12 of 155

2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Section C — Additional project information

Who prepared the responses for Section B?

D Employee directly involved in pLY:§ Name
the project

Name
D Other employee of the company 256

Name Firm
External consultant 258 @ "
KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP

List the key individuals directly involved in the project and indicate their qualifications/experience.

H: @ 8 8

Names Qualifications/experience and position title

PASE Are you claiming any salary or wages for SR&ED performed outside Canada? . .. ..o ittt D Yes
A5 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED carried out on behalf of another party? ... . ... .. .. oo D Yes
P{:Y@ Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED performed by people other than your employees? .. ............... Yes

No
No
DNO

If you answered yes to line 267, complete lines 268 and 269.

Names of individuals or companies @ BN
Hatch Ltd. 10229 6308 RC0001
Black & Veatch Canada Company NR
Intergraph Canada Ltd. 10250 5419 RC0001
K2 Enterprise Security Inc. 82687 7821 RC0001

What evidence do you have to support your claim? (Check any that apply)
You do not need to submit these items with the claim. However, you are required to retain them in the event of a review.

D Project planning documents Progress reports, minutes of project meetings
Records of resources allocated to the project, Test protocols, test data, analysis of test results,
time sheets conclusions

D Photographs and videos

N
~
(o]

D Design of experiments
D Samples, prototypes, scrap or other artefacts

Contracts
D Others, specify m

D Project records, laboratory notebooks

Design, system architecture and source code

N
~
©

D Records of trial runs

T661 E (20)
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Part 2 — Project information (continued)

Complete a separate Part 2 for each project claimed this year.
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Project number 2

CRA internal form identifier 060
Code 1901

Section A - Project identification

Project title (and identification code if applicable)

2023-02 Data Mapping Techniques for Usage Computation

Project start date

| 2022-10 |
Year Month

Completion or expected completion date

\ 2024-06 |
Year Month

m Field of science or technology code
(See guide for list of codes)

1.02.02

‘ Information technology and bioinformatics (Software

Project claim history

m First claim for the project

Was any of the work done jointly or in collaboration with other businesses?

208 D Continuation of a previously claimed project
218

If you answered yes to line 218, complete lines 220 and 221.

Names of the businesses

221 BN

1

2

Section B — Project descriptions

What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?

(Maximum 50 lines)

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11

VERSION 2024 V1.0
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

2023-12-31
86339 1363 RC0001

What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?
Maximum 50 lines

Y.V} \What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
(Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines)

m What scientific or technological advancements did you achieve or attempt to achieve as a result of the work described in line 244? (Maximum 50 lines)

Section C — Additional project information

Who prepared the responses for Section B?

D Employee directly involved in y5Y:] Name
the project

Name
D Other employee of the company 256

Name Firm
External consultant 258 @

KPMG LLP KPMG LLP
List the key individuals directly involved in the project and indicate their qualifications/experience.

H: @ 8 8

Names Qualifications/experience and position title

PASE Are you claiming any salary or wages for SR&ED performed outside Canada?

.......................... D Yes No
........................ D Yes No
................. Yes D No

P43 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED carried out on behalf of another party?

Y4A:X4 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED performed by people other than your employees?

T661 E (20)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

If you answered yes to line 267, complete lines 268 and 269.

Names of individuals or companies @ BN
1 IBM Canada Ltd 84250 7261 RC0001
2

What evidence do you have to support your claim? (Check any that apply)
You do not need to submit these items with the claim. However, you are required to retain them in the event of a review.

D Project planning documents Progress reports, minutes of project meetings
Records of resources allocated to the project, Test protocols, test data, analysis of test results,
time sheets conclusions

D Photographs and videos

N
~
(o]

D Design of experiments
D Samples, prototypes, scrap or other artefacts

Contracts
D Others, specify m

D Project records, laboratory notebooks

Design, system architecture and source code

N
~
©

D Records of trial runs

T661 E (20)
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Part 2 — Project information (continued)

Complete a separate Part 2 for each project claimed this year.
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Project number 3

CRA internal form identifier 060
Code 1901

Section A - Project identification

Project title (and identification code if applicable)

2022-04 Advancements in System Integration Techniques

Project start date

2021-05
Year Month

Completion or expected completion date

2024-06
Year Month

Field of science or technology code
(See guide for list of codes)

1.02.02

‘ Information technology and bioinformatics (Software

Project claim history

. Continuation of a previously claimed project

m D First claim for the project

218 Was any of the work done jointly or in collaboration with other businesses?

If you answered yes to line 218, complete lines 220 and 221.

Names of the businesses

221 BN

Section B — Project descriptions

T661 E (20)
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pX.¥1 \What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?

Maximum 50 lines

2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
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Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 18 of 155

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Y.V} \What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Y.V} \What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427

213 What scientific or technological advancements did you achieve or attempt to achieve as a result of the work described in line 244? (Maximum 50 lines)

001 E (
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Section C — Additional project information

Who prepared the responses for Section B?

D Employee directly involved in pLY:§ Name
the project

Name
D Other employee of the company 256

Name Firm
External consultant 258 @ "
KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP
List the key individuals directly involved in the project and indicate their qualifications/experience.

H: @ 8 8

Names Qualifications/experience and position title

PAsE Are you claiming any salary or wages for SR&ED performed outside Canada? . .. ..o it i i D Yes No
A5 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED carried out on behalf of another party? . ... ... .. ... oo D Yes No
YA:Y8 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED performed by people other than your employees? .. ............... Yes D No

If you answered yes to line 267, complete lines 268 and 269.

H:|

Names of individuals or companies @ BN
1 Copperleaf Technologies 87476 4921 RC0001
2 Hatch Ltd. 10229 6308 RC0001
3 Pythian Group 78273 6136 RT0001

What evidence do you have to support your claim? (Check any that apply)
You do not need to submit these items with the claim. However, you are required to retain them in the event of a review.

D Project planning documents Progress reports, minutes of project meetings
Records of resources allocated to the project, Test protocols, test data, analysis of test results,
time sheets 277 conclusions

D Design of experiments D Photographs and videos

D Samples, prototypes, scrap or other artefacts

Contracts
D Others, specify @

D Project records, laboratory notebooks

Design, system architecture and source code

] M)
S B
© oo

D Records of trial runs

T661 E (20)
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Part 2 — Project information (continued)

Complete a separate Part 2 for each project claimed this year.
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Project number 4

CRA internal form identifier 060
Code 1901

Section A - Project identification

Project title (and identification code if applicable)

2022-01 Advancements in Smart Grid Reliability

Project start date

2021-09
Year Month

Completion or expected completion date

2024-07
Year Month

Field of science or technology code
(See guide for list of codes)

2.02.01 ‘ Electrical and electronic engineering

Project claim history

. Continuation of a previously claimed project

m D First claim for the project

218 Was any of the work done jointly or in collaboration with other businesses?

No

If you answered yes to line 218, complete lines 220 and 221.

Names of the businesses

221 BN

Section B — Project descriptions

T661 E (20)
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pX.¥1 \What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?

Maximum 50 lines
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Y.V} \What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

2023-12-31
86339 1363 RC0001

What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
(Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines)

m What scientific or technological advancements did you achieve or attempt to achieve as a result of the work described in line 244? (Maximum 50 lines)

1E(
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Section C — Additional project information

Who prepared the responses for Section B?

Employee directly involved in yLY] Name
the project
Name
D Other employee of the company 256
Name Firm
. External consultant 258 @ Ir

KPMG LLP KPMG LLP
List the key individuals directly involved in the project and indicate their qualifications/experience.

Names Qualifications/experience and position title

1
|_
; I

PAsE Are you claiming any salary or wages for SR&ED performed outside Canada? . .. ..o it i i D Yes No
A5 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED carried out on behalf of another party? . ... ... .. ... oo D Yes No
PA:Y8 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED performed by people other than your employees? .. ............... Yes D No

If you answered yes to line 267, complete lines 268 and 269.

H:|

Names of individuals or companies @ BN
1 BluWave Inc. 78705 6084 RC0001
2 Burns & McDonnell Canada Ltd. 82766 0523 RC0001
3

What evidence do you have to support your claim? (Check any that apply)
You do not need to submit these items with the claim. However, you are required to retain them in the event of a review.

D Project planning documents Progress reports, minutes of project meetings
Records of resources allocated to the project, Test protocols, test data, analysis of test results,
time sheets conclusions

D Design of experiments D Photographs and videos

N
~
(o]

D Samples, prototypes, scrap or other artefacts
Contracts

D Others, specify @

D Project records, laboratory notebooks

Design, system architecture and source code

N
~
©

D Records of trial runs

T661 E (20)
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Part 2 — Project information (continued) Project number 5
CRA internal form identifier 060
Complete a separate Part 2 for each project claimed this year. Code 1901

Section A — Project identification

Project title (and identification code if applicable)

2022-03 Integration Methods for Performant & Secure System

Project start date m Completion or expected completion date m Field of science or technology code
(See guide for list of codes)
| 2021-05 | | 2024-06 |
Year Month Year Month 1.02.02 ‘ Information technology and bioinformatics (Software

Project claim history

. Continuation of a previously claimed project m D First claim for the project

218 Was any of the work done jointly or in collaboration with other businesses? . ... ......... ... .. ... ... ..., D Yes No

I you answered yes to line 218, complete lines 220 and 221.
Names of the businesses m BN

Section B — Project descriptions

What scientific or technological uncertainties did you attempt to overcome?
(Maximum 50 lines)

What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
(Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines)

T661 E (20)
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Y.V} \What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427

Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines

T661 E (20)
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What work did you perform in the tax year to overcome the scientific or technological uncertainties described in line 2427
(Summarize the systematic investigation or search) (Maximum 100 lines)

m What scientific or technological advancements did you achieve or attempt to achieve as a result of the work described in line 244? (Maximum 50 lines)

Section C — Additional project information

Who prepared the responses for Section B?

D Employee directly involved in pLY:§ Name
the project

Name
D Other employee of the company 256

Name Firm
External consultant 258 @ "

KPMG LLP KPMG LLP

List the key individuals directly involved in the project and indicate their qualifications/experience.

H: @ 8 8

Names Qualifications/experience and position title

PASE Are you claiming any salary or wages for SR&ED performed outside Canada? . .. ..o vttt D Yes
A5 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED carried out on behalf of another party? .. .. ... .. ... ... D Yes
PA:Y4 Are you claiming expenditures for SR&ED performed by people other than your employees? .. ............... Yes

No
No
DNO

If you answered yes to line 267, complete lines 268 and 269.

H:|

Names of individuals or companies @ BN
1 Canary Trap Inc. 74455 9477 RT0001
2 Whitecap Canada Inc 87159 2242 RT0001

T661 E (20)
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What evidence do you have to support your claim? (Check any that apply)
You do not need to submit these items with the claim. However, you are required to retain them in the event of a review.

D Project planning documents Progress reports, minutes of project meetings
Records of resources allocated to the project, Test protocols, test data, analysis of test results,
time sheets conclusions

D Design of experiments D Photographs and videos

D Samples, prototypes, scrap or other artefacts

Contracts
D Others, specify m

D Project records, laboratory notebooks

Design, system architecture and source code

oI EN
SIS N
© Qoo N

D Records of trial runs

T661 E (20)
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86339 1363 RC0001

Federal Tax Instalments

— Federal tax instalments

For the taxation year ended  2024-12-31
Business number 86339 1363 RC0O001

The following is a list of instalments payable for the current taxation year, and the last column indicates the instalments payable to the Canada Revenue
Agency (CRA). The instalments must be paid on each of the dates indicated below, otherwise non-deductible interest might be charged.

You can pay using one of the methods listed at canada.ca/payments. However, when a remittance must mandatorily be made using electronic means, use one
of the following electronic payment methods:

® a Canadian financial institution’s services;

® the CRA's My Payment service, at canada.ca/cra-my-payment;

® a pre-authorized debit agreement set up in the CRA's My Business Account service, at canada.ca/my-cra-business-account;
® a wire transfer.

Monthly instalment workchart

Monthly tax Refund transferred Instalments Cumulative Instalments
Date instalments to instalments paid difference payable

2024-01-31 68,793 68,793
2024-02-29 68,793 68,793
2024-03-31 55,473 55,473
2024-04-30 55,473 55,473
2024-05-31 55,473 55,473
2024-06-30 55,473 55,473
2024-07-31 55,473 55,473
2024-08-31 55,473 55,473
2024-09-30 55,473 55,473
2024-10-31 55,473 55,473
2024-11-30 55,473 55,473
2024-12-31 55,465 55,465
2025-01-31 64,392
2025-02-28 64,392

Totals 692,308 821,092

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0 Page 1
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This form serves as a federal, provincial, and territorial corporation income tax return, unless the corporation is located in
Quebec or Alberta. If the corporation is located in one of these provinces, you have to file a separate provincial

corporation return.

All legislative references on this return are to the federal Income Tax Act and Income Tax Regulations. This return may
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001
T2 Corporation Income Tax Return 200

contain changes that had not yet become law at the time of publication.

Send one completed copy of this return, including schedules and the General Index of Financial Information (GIFI), to your
tax centre. You have to file the return within six months after the end of the corporation’s tax year.

For more information see canada.ca/taxes or Guide T4012, T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.

m Do not use this area

~ Identification
Business number (BN) . .........

EXXl| 86339 1363 RCO001

Corporation's name

m Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Address of head office
Has this address changed since the last
time the CRA was notified? .........

If yes, complete lines 011 to 018.

To which tax year does this return apply?

Tax year start Tax year-end
Year Month Day Year Month Day

060 | 2023-01-01 X | 2023-12-31

m YesD No

City

Province, territory, or state

Has there been an acquisition of control
resulting in the application of
subsection 249(4) since the tax year

starton line 060? . ............. Yes D No

If yes, provide the date Year Month Day
controlwas acquired . ............ m

Country (other than Canada)

Postal or ZIP code

Has this address changed since the last
time the CRA was notified? ........
If yes, complete lines 021 to 028.

021 )

Mailing address (if different from head office address)

Is the date on line 061 a deemed
tax year-end according to

subsection 249(3.1)2 ............ B ves | | No

<]

m YesD No

Is the corporation a professional
corporation that is a member of

022

023

City

Province, territory, or state

apartnership? ................ Yes D No
Is this the first year of filing after:
Incorporation? . ............. Yes H No
Amalgamation? . .............. 071 JRCS No

If yes, complete lines 030 to 038 and attach Schedule 24.

Country (other than Canada)
027

Postal or ZIP code

Has this address changed since the last
time the CRA was notified? .........

If yes, complete lines 031 to 038.

Location of books and records (if different from head office address)

Has there been a wind-up of a
subsidiary under section 88 during the
currenttaxyear? .............. Yes D No

If yes, complete and attach Schedule 24.

<]

YesD No

Is this the final tax year
before amalgamation? .......... Yes D No

Is this the final return up to
dissolution? .................

(=}
3
3
0
§
< =

031
032

City Province, territory, or state
035

If an election was made under
section 261, state the functional
currencyused . ...............

Country (other than Canada)
7

Postal or ZIP code

Other private corporation

Public corporation

o ~B8

a A W N

Other corporation
(specify)

Type of corporation at the end of the tax year (tick one)

1 Canadian-controlled private corporation (CCPC)

Corporation controlled by a public corporation

Is the corporation a resident of Canada? Yes No D

If no, give the country of residence on line 081 and complete and attach
Schedule 97.

Is the non-resident corporation
claiming an exemption under

an income tax treaty? ........... m Yes D No

If yes, complete and attach Schedule 91.

If the type of corporation changed during
the tax year, provide the effective
dateofthechange ..............

Year Month Day

If the corporation is exempt from tax under section 149, tick one of
the following boxes:

m @ 1 Exempt under paragraph 149(1)(e) or (I)

2 Exempt under paragraph 149(1)(j)
4 Exempt under other paragraphs of section 149

Do not use this area
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— Attachments
Financial statement information: Use GIFI schedules 100, 125, and 141.
Schedules — Answer the following questions. For each yes response, attach the schedule to the T2 return, unless otherwise instructed.

Is the corporation related to any other Corporations? . . . o o o e e e e e
Is the corporation an associated CCPC? L. o e e e e e e
Is the corporation an associated CCPC that is claiming the expenditure limit? . ........ ... . . . . . i,
Does the corporation have any non-resident shareholders who own voting shares? . ... . ... . . . . i

Has the corporation had any transactions, including section 85 transfers, with its shareholders, officers, or employees,
other than transactions in the ordinary course of business? Exclude non-arm's length transactions with non-residents . ...........

If you answered yes to the above question, and the transaction was between corporations not dealing at arm's length,
were all or substantially all of the assets of the transferor disposed of to the transferee? . ... ...... ... ... ... ... . . . ...

Has the corporation paid any royalties, management fees, or other similar payments to residents of Canada? . ................
Is the corporation claiming a deduction for payments to a type of employee benefitplan? .. ...... . ... ... ... . .
Is the corporation claiming a loss or deduction from a tax shelter? . . ... e
Is the corporation a member of a partnership for which a partnership account number has been assigned? . ..................

Did the corporation, a foreign affiliate controlled by the corporation, or any other corporation or trust that did not deal at arm's length
with the corporation have a beneficial interest in a non-resident discretionary trust (without reference to section94)? .. ...........

Did the corporation own any shares in one or more foreign affiliates in the taxyear? . ....... .. ... . . . oo oL

Has the corporation made any payments to non-residents of Canada under subsections 202(1) and/or 105(1) of
the Income Tax Regulations? L. e e

Did the corporation have a total amount over CAN$1 million of reportable transactions with non-arm's length non-residents? .. ......

For private corporations: Does the corporation have any shareholders who own 10% or more of the corporation's
common and/or preferred shares? L. e e

Has the corporation made payments to, or received amounts from, a retirement compensation plan arrangement during the year?

Does the corporation earn income from one or more Internet web pages or websites? . ..., ... . . . oo oo
Is the net income/loss shown on the financial statements different from the net income/loss for income tax purposes? . ...........
Has the corporation made any charitable donations; gifts of cultural or ecological property; or gifts of medicine?  ................
Has the corporation received any dividends or paid any taxable dividends for purposes of the dividend refund? .. ..............
Is the corporation claiming any type of l0SSES? L . . e e e e

Is the corporation claiming a provincial or territorial tax credit or does it have a permanent establishment
in more than one jurisdiClioN? . ... L e e

Has the corporation realized any capital gains or incurred any capital losses during the tax year? ... ....... ... ... . ... ...

i) Is the corporation a CCPC and reporting a) income or loss from property (other than dividends deductible on line 320 of the T2 return), b)
income from a partnership, c) income from a foreign business, d) income from a personal services business, e) income referred to in clause
125(1)(a)(i)(C) or 125(1)(a)(i)(B), f) aggregate investment income as defined in subsection 129(4), or g) an amount assigned to it under
subsection 125(3.2) or 125(8); or

ii) Is the corporation a member of a partnership and assigning its specified partnership business limit to a designated member under
SUDSECHON 125(8) 2 i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s

Does the corporation have any property that is eligible for capital cost allowance? . .. . . . .. . . i et
Does the corporation have any resource-related deductions? . . . . . . e e e
Is the corporation claiming deductible reserves? L . . e e e e e
Is the corporation claiming a patronage dividend deduction? . . . . . . L e e e
Is the corporation a credit union claiming a deduction for allocations in proportion to borrowing or a provincial credit union tax reduction?

Is the corporation an investment corporation or a mutual fund corporation? . . . ... e
Is the corporation carrying on business in Canada as a non-resident corporation? . . . . . . ... . e
Is the corporation claiming any federal, provincial, or territorial foreign tax credits, or any federal logging tax credits? ... ..........
Does the corporation have any Canadian manufacturing and processing profits or zero-emission technology manufacturing profits?

Is the corporation claiming an investment tax credit? . . ... e
Is the corporation claiming any scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) expenditures? .. .................
Is the total taxable capital employed in Canada of the corporation and its related corporations over $10,000,000? .. .............
Is the total taxable capital employed in Canada of the corporation and its associated corporations over $10,000,000? . ...........
Is the corporation subject to gross Part VI tax on capital of financial institutions? . . . . . ... . . .
Is the corporation claiming a Part | tax credit? .. ... e
Is the corporation subject to Part IV.1 tax on dividends received on taxable preferred shares or Part VI.1 tax on dividends paid? .. ....
Is the corporation agreeing to a transfer of the liability for Part VI.1 tax? . . . .. i e

For financial institutions: Is the corporation a member of a related group of financial institutions with one or
more members subject to gross Part VI tax? L. e e e e e s

Is the corporation claiming a Canadian film or video production tax credit? . . . . . . e
Is the corporation claiming a film or video production services tax credit? . . . . ... e e e
Is the corporation claiming a Canadian journalism labour tax credit? . ... . . e
Is the corporation subject to Part Xlll.1 tax? (Show your calculations on a sheet that you identify as Schedule 92.) . .............

Yes

<[] [x]

Schedule
9
23
49
19

1"

44

14

15
T5004
T5013

22
25

29
T106

50

31
T661
33/34/35

38
42
43
45

39
T1131
T177

58

92
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— Attachments (continued)

Did the corporation have any foreign affiliates in the tax year? . .. . ... e e
Did the corporation own or hold specified foreign property where the total cost amount of all such property, at any time in the year, was
more than CAN$100,000?

Did the corporation transfer or loan property to a non-resident trust? . . .. ... e e
Did the corporation receive a distribution from or was it indebted to a non-resident trust in the year?
Has the corporation entered into an agreement to allocate assistance for SR&ED carried out in Canada? . ...................
Has the corporation entered into an agreement to transfer qualified expenditures incurred in respect of SR&ED contracts? . ........
Has the corporation entered into an agreement with other associated corporations for salary or wages of specified employees for SR&ED?

Did the corporation pay taxable dividends (other than capital gains dividends) in the tax year?
Has the corporation made an election under subsection 89(11) not to be a CCPC?

Has the corporation revoked any previous election made under subsection 89(11)? . . . . . . . i i e

Did the corporation (CCPC or deposit insurance corporation (DIC)) pay eligible dividends, or did its
general rate income pool (GRIP) change in the tax year?

Did the corporation (other than a CCPC or DIC) pay eligible dividends, or did its low rate income pool (LRIP) change in the tax year?

Is the corporation claiming a return of fuel charge proceeds to farmers tax credit? . . . . . .. . . e
Are you an employer reporting a non-qualified security agreement under subsection 110(1.9)?
Is the corporation claiming an air quality improvement tax credit? . . . . ...
Is the corporation subject to the additional 1.5% tax on banks and life insurers? . . .. . .. i e
Is the corporation a covered entity that redeemed, acquired or cancelled equity of the corporation in the tax year?

Yes Schedule
271 | IR TR

T1135
T1141
T1142
T1145
T1146
T1174
55
T2002
T2002

53
54
63
59
65

~ Additional information

Did the corporation use the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) when it prepared its financial statements? 270 pACH No .
Is the COrpOration INACHIVE? . o ot vttt et e e et et e e e e e PEI] Yes | | No
Did the corporation meet the definition of substantive CCPC under subsection 248(1) at any time during the tax year? ... .. yi\] Yes . No
What is the corporation's main . o

revenue-generating business activity? . . . .. 221122 _ Electric Power Distribution

Specify the principal products mined, manufactured, p£YN DIST. OF ELECTRICITY Y 100.000 %
sold, constructed, or services provided, giving the 286 287 70/
approximate percentage of the total revenue that each E—
product or service represents. 288 289

Did the corporation immigrate to Canada during the tax YEar? . . . .o vttt i ittt 291 @G

Did the corporation emigrate from Canada during the taX YEar? . ..o vttt vt ittt e yi¥] Yes .
Do you want to be considered as a quarterly instalment remitter if you are eligible? ... ... ... ... 293 IACH o | |

If the corporation was eligible to remit instalments on a quarterly basis for part of the tax year, provide
the date the corporation ceased to be eligible

Year Month Day

m Yes

If the corporation's major business activity is construction, did you have any subcontractors during the tax year?

L] N [

— Taxable income
Net income or (loss) for income tax purposes from Schedule 1, financial statements, or GIFI

-2,960,516 A

Deduct:

Charitable donations from Schedule 2
Cultural gifts from Schedule 2
Ecological gifts from Schedule 2 . . . ... ... . . e

Gifts of medicine made before March 22, 2017, from Schedule2 . ... .........

Taxable dividends deductible under section 112 or 113, or subsection 138(6)
from Schedule 3

Part VI.1 tax deduction® . . . . . .. e
Non-capital losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4
Net capital losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4
Restricted farm losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4
Farm losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4 . ... .................

Limited partnership losses of previous tax years from Schedule 4

Taxable capital gains or taxable dividends allocated from
a central credit union

Prospector's and grubstaker's shares
Employer deduction for non-qualified securities

Subtotal |

Subtotal (amount A minus amount B) (if negative, enter "0"

(@)

Section 110.5 additions or subparagraph 115(1)(a)(vii) additions

Taxable income (amount C plus amount D)

Taxable income for the year from a personal services business

ZA1

* This amount is equal to 3.5 times the Part VI.1 tax payable at line 724 on page 9.
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~ Small business deduction

Canadian-controlled private corporations (CCPCs) throughout the tax year

Income eligible for the small business deduction from Schedule 7 . . . ... ... .. . . . e m A
Taxable income from line 360 on page 3, minus 100/28 ( 3.57143 ) of the amount on line 632* on page 8,
minus 4 times the amount on line 636** on page 8, and minus any amount that, because of
federal law, is exempt from Part 113X o o v vttt e e e e e e e e 405 B
Business limit (e Notes 1 aNd 2 DEIOW) & v vt e e e e e e e e e e e e e 410 500,000 c
Notes:
1. For CCPCs that are not associated, enter $ 500,000 on line 410. However, if the corporation's tax year is less than 51
weeks, prorate this amount by the number of days in the tax year divided by 365, and enter the result on line 410.
2. For associated CCPCs, use Schedule 23 to calculate the amount to be entered on line 410.
Business limit reduction
Taxable capital business limit reduction for tax years starting before April 7, 2022
Amount C 500,000 x [EE] 3,151,660 D = ..... E1
11,250
Taxable capital business limit reduction for tax years starting after April 6, 2022
Amount C 500,000 * EEE] * 3,151,660 D = ..... 17,509,222 E2
90,000

17,509,222 » 17,509,222 E3

Amount E1 or amount E2, whichever applies

Passive income business limit reduction

Adjusted aggregate investment income from Schedule 7+*** . Gl - 50,000 = .. F
Amount C 500,000 X Amount F T e e G
100,000

The greater of amount E3 and amount G (223 17,509,222 H

Reduced business limit (amount C minus amount H) (if negative, enter "0") ... ... .. . . . . . oo m |

Business limit the CCPC assigns under subsection 125(3.2) (from line 515 below) .. ........ ... .. .. ... ... ... J
Reduced business limit after assignment (amount | minus amountJ) . ..t 428
Small business deduction — Amount A, B, C, or K, whichever is the least X 19 % = EXY

Enter amount from line 430 at amount K on page 8.

*  Calculate the amount of foreign non-business income tax credit deductible on line 632 without reference to the refundable tax on the CCPC's
investment income (line 604) and without reference to the corporate tax reductions under section 123.4.

** Calculate the amount of foreign business income tax credit deductible on line 636 without reference to the corporation tax reductions under section 123.4.

*** | arge corporations
® |f the corporation is not associated with any corporations in both the current and previous tax years, the amount to be entered on line 415 is:
(total taxable capital employed in Canada for the prior year minus $10,000,000) x 0.225%.
o |f the corporation is not associated with any corporations in the current tax year, but was associated in the previous tax year, the amount to be
entered on line 415 is: (total taxable capital employed in Canada for the current year minus $10,000,000) x 0.225%.
® For corporations associated in the current tax year, see Schedule 23 for the special rules that apply.

**** Enter the total adjusted aggregate investment income of the corporation and all associated corporations for each tax year that ended in the preceding
calendar year. Each corporation with such income has to file a Schedule 7. For a corporation's first tax year that starts after 2018, this amount is
reported at line 744 of the corresponding Schedule 7. Otherwise, this amount is the total of all amounts reported at line 745 of the corresponding
Schedule 7 of the corporation for each tax year that ended in the preceding calendar year.
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~ Small business deduction (continued)
Specified corporate income and assignment under subsection 125(3.2)

L1 L M N
Name of corporation receiving the Business number of Income paid under Business limit assigned to
income and assigned amount the corporation clause 125(1)(a)(i)(B) to the corporation identified in
receiving the corporation identified in column L *
assigned amount column L3

490 500 505
1.

Notes: Total m Total m

3. This amount is [as defined in subsection 125(7) specified corporate income (a)(i)] the total of all amounts each of which is income (other than
specified farming or fishing income of the corporation for the year) from an active business of the corporation for the year from the provision of
services or property to a private corporation (directly or indirectly, in any manner whatever) if
(A) at any time in the year, the corporation (or one of its shareholders) or a person who does not deal at arm's length with the corporation (or one of its
shareholders) holds a direct or indirect interest in the private corporation, and
(B) it is not the case that all or substantially all of the corporation's income for the year from an active business is from the provision of services or
property to

() persons (other than the private corporation) with which the corporation deals at arm's length, or
(I1) partnerships with which the corporation deals at arm's length, other than a partnership in which a person that does not deal at arm's length
with the corporation holds a direct or indirect interest.

4. The amount of the business limit you assign to a CCPC cannot be greater than the amount determined by the formula A — B, where A is the amount of
income referred to in column M in respect of that CCPC and B is the portion of the amount described in A that is deductible by you in respect of the
amount of income referred to in clauses 125(1)(a)(i)(A) or (B) for the year. The amount on line 515 cannot be greater than the amount on line 426.

~ General tax reduction for Canadian-controlled private corporations
Canadian-controlled private corporations throughout the tax year or substantive CCPCs at any time in the tax year

Taxable income from line 360 0N page 3 . . . . e A
Lesser of amounts 9B and 9H from Part 9 of Schedule 27 . .. ........... ... ... . . . ... B
Amount 13K from Part 13 of Schedule 27 . . . . . .. e C
Personal Services busiNess INCOME .« v v v v v v vt e e e ettt et e e e 432 D
Amount from line 400, 405, 410, or 428 on page 4, whicheveris theleast® . ............... E
Aggregate investment income from line 440 on page 6 . ... ... .. ..o F
Subtotal (add amounts B to F) > G
Amount A minus amount G (if negative, enter "0") .. L e H
General tax reduction for Canadian-controlled private corporations — Amount H multipliedby 13% ................ |
Enter amount | on line 638 on page 8.
* This is not applicable to substantive CCPCs.
** Except for a corporation that is, throughout the year, a cooperative corporation (within the meaning assigned by subsection 136(2)) or a credit union.
~ General tax reduction
Do not complete this area if you are a Canadian-controlled private corporation, a substantive CCPC, an investment corporation, a mortgage
investment corporation, a mutual fund corporation, or any corporation with taxable income that is not subject to the corporation tax rate of 38%.
Taxable income from line 360 0N page 3 . . ... e J
Lesser of amounts 9B and 9H from Part 9 of Schedule 27 . .. ........ ... ... ... . . . ... K
Amount 13K from Part 13 of Schedule 27 . . . . . .. e L
Personal Services bUsiNeSS INCOME .« v v v v v v vt e e ettt et e e e e 434 M
Subtotal (add amounts K to M) > N
Amount J minus amount N (if negative, enter "0") ... e (0]
General tax reduction — Amount O multiplied by 13 % .. ... e P

Enter amount P on line 639 on page 8.
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~ Refundable portion of Part | tax

Canadian-controlled private corporations throughout the tax year or substantive CCPCs at any time in the tax year
Aggregate investment income

from Schedule 7 . ... ... ... 440 X030 2/ 3% T A
Foreign non-business income tax credit from line 632 onpage8 ......... B
Foreign investment income
from Schedule 7 . ... ....... 445 | X g% = c

Subtotal (amount B minus amount C) (if negative, enter "0") >
Amount A minus amount D (if negative, enter "0") ... e E
Taxable income from line 360 onpage3 . ......... ... ... ... F

Amount from line 400, 405, 410, or 428 on page 4,
whicheveristheleast* .................. G

Foreign non-

business

income tax

credit from

line 632 on

page8 .... X 75/ 29

Foreign

business

income

tax credit from

line 636

onpage8 .. X 4 = I

Subtotal (add amounts G to 1) > J
Subtotal (amount F minus amount J) K X 30 2/ 3% = L
Part | tax payable minus investment tax credit refund (line 700 minus line 780 frompage 9) ... .. ... ...............
Refundable portion of Part | tax — Amount E, L, or M, whicheveristheleast  ............... ... ... ....... m N

I}
T

* This is not applicable to substantive CCPCs. . . . .. i e e e
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~ Refundable dividend tax on hand
Eligible refundable dividend tax on hand (ERDTOH) at the end of the previous tax year

(line 530 of the preceding tax year) . . . . o o i e e m A
Non-eligible refundable dividend tax on hand (NERDTOH) at the end of the previous tax year
(line 545 of the preceding tax year) (if negative, enter "0") . oottt it e 535 B
Part IV tax payable on taxable dividends from connected corporations (amount 2G from Schedule 3) c
Part IV tax payable on eligible dividends from non-connected corporations (amount 2J from Schedule 3) D
Subtotal (amount C plus amount D) | 4 E
Net ERDTOH transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary .. ............. ... ... .. ... ... 525 F
ERDTOH dividend refund for the previous tax YEar ..o v i et et e e e e e e e e e e e e 570 G
Refundable portion of Part | tax (from line 450 on page 6) . . . . . . i e H
Part IV tax before deductions (amount 2A from Schedule 3) .. ...... ... ... . . oL I
Part IV tax allocated to ERDTOH (amountE) . ... ... . . e J
Part IV tax reduction due to Part IV.1 tax payable (amount 4D of Schedule 43) . ............. K
Subtotal (amount | minus total of amounts J and K) > L
Net NERDTOH transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary .. ......... ... . ... .. ... 540 M
NERDTOH dividend refund for the previous taxX YEar . oo v v v v vttt ettt ettt et e 575 N
38 1/3% of the total losses applied against Part IV tax (amount 2D from Schedule 3) .. ........ ... ... .. ... ... )
Part IV tax payable allocated to NERDTOH, net of losses claimed (amount L minus amount O) (if negative enter “0”) ... .. P
NERDTOH at the end of the tax year (total of amounts B, H, M, and P minus amount N) (if negative, enter "0")  ....... m
Part IV tax payable allocated to ERDTOH, net of losses claimed (amount E minus the amount, if any, by which amount O
exceeds amount L) (if negative, enter "0") ... e e Q
ERDTOH at the end of the tax year (total of amounts A, F, and Q minus amount G) (if negative, enter "0") .. ........ 530
~ Dividend refund
38 1/3% of total eligible dividends paid in the tax year (amount 3A from Schedule 3) ... ..... .. ... . . i AA
ERDTOH balance at the end of the tax year (line 530) . . . . . . i e BB
Eligible dividend refund (amount AA or BB, Whicheveris IESS) . ..ottt i it et et e e cC
38 1/3% of total non-eligible taxable dividends paid in the tax year (amount 3B from Schedule 3) . .................... DD
NERDTOH balance at the end of the tax year (line 545) . . . ... e e e e EE
Non-eligible dividend refund (amount DD or EE, whicheveris 168S) . . . .o i ittt it et e e e e FF
Amount DD minus amount EE (if negative, enter "0") ... e GG
Amount BB minus amount CC (if negative, enter "0") . . . . e HH
Additional non-eligible dividend refund (amount GG or HH, whicheverisless) .. ... .. ..ttt I
Dividend refund — Amount CC plus amount FF plus amount Il .. ... e e e JJ
Enter amount JJ on line 784 on page 9.
T2 E (24)
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~ Part | tax

Base amount Part | tax — Taxable income (from line 360 on page 3) multipliedby 38% ....................... m A

Additional tax on personal services business income (section 123.5)

oe)

Taxable income from a personal services business . .. .................. @ X 5% = m

Additional tax on banks and life insurers from Schedule 68 . . . . . . .. L e e C
Recapture of investment tax credit from Schedule 31 . . .. e

Calculation for the refundable tax on the Canadian-controlled private corporation's (CCPC) or substantive CCPC's
investment income (if it was a CCPC throughout the tax year or a substantive CCPC at any time in the tax year)

Aggregate investment income from line 440 onpage 6 ... ... .. e E
Taxable income from line 360 onpage3 ................... F

Deduct:
Amount from line 400, 405, 410, or 428 on page 4, whichever
istheleast* . . ... . . . e G

Net amount (amount F minus amount G) > H

Refundable tax on CCPC's or substantive CCPC's investment income — 10 2/ 3 % of whichever is less: amount E or
AMOUNE H L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e |

Deduct:
Small business deduction from line 430 onpage 4 . ... ... e K

Federal tax abatement . . . ... .. e
Manufacturing and processing profits deduction and zero-emission technology manufacturing
deduction from Schedule 27 . . . . ..

Investment corporation deduction ... ... L
Taxed capital gains m

Federal foreign non-business income tax credit from Schedule 21 .. ..............
Federal foreign business income tax credit from Schedule 21 .. .................
General tax reduction for CCPCs from amountlonpage5  ....................
General tax reduction fromamountPonpage5  .............. ... ... . . . ...
Federal logging tax credit from Schedule 21 . ... ... ... ... . i i
Eligible Canadian bank deduction under section 12521 ... ........ ... ... ....
Federal qualifying environmental trust tax credit . . . ....... ... .. ... .. . . . . ...
Investment tax credit from Schedule 31 . .. .. ...
Subtotal > L

Part | tax payable — Amount J minus amount L .. . e e e s M
Enter amount M on line 700 on page 9.

* This is not applicable to substantive CCPCs.

~ Privacy notice

Personal information (including the SIN) is collected to administer or enforce the Income Tax Act and related programs and activities including administering tax,
benefits, audit, compliance, and collection. The information collected may be used or disclosed for the purposes of other federal acts that provide for the
imposition and collection of a tax or duty. It may also be disclosed to other federal, provincial, territorial, or foreign government institutions to the extent
authorized by law. Failure to provide this information may result in paying interest or penalties, or in other actions. Under the Privacy Act, individuals have

a right of protection, access to and correction of their personal information, or to file a complaint with the Privacy Commissioner of Canada regarding the
handling of their personal information. Refer to Personal Information Bank CRA PPU 047 on Information about Programs and Information Holdings at
canada.cal/cra-information-about-programs.
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~ Summary of tax and credits
Federal tax

Part | tax payable from amount M on page 8
Part 11.2 tax payable from Schedule 56

Part 111.1 tax payable from Schedule 55

Part IV tax payable from Schedule 3

Part 1V.1 tax payable from Schedule 43

Part VI tax payable from Schedule 38

Part VI.1 tax payable from Schedule 43
Part VI.2 tax payable from Schedule 67
Part XIll.1 tax payable from Schedule 92
Part XIV tax payable from Schedule 20

Add provincial or territorial tax: Total federal tax

Provincial or territorial jurisdicton .. ......... ON

(if more than one jurisdiction, enter "multiple” and complete Schedule 5)

Net provincial or territorial tax payable (except Quebec and Alberta) ..o v vttt e 760 692,308
Deduct other credits: Total tax payable &Y 692,308 A

Investment tax credit refund from Schedule 31 . . ... ... .. oo
Dividend refund from amountJJonpage 7  ........ .. ... e
Federal capital gains refund from Schedule 18 . . .. ... ... ... . . . oo
Federal qualifying environmental trust tax creditrefund .. ... ...... ... .. ... ...
Return of fuel charge proceeds to farmers tax credit from Schedule 63 . ... ..........
Canadian film or video production tax credit (Form T1131) .. ........ ... .. .......
Film or video production services tax credit (Form T1177) ... ... ... . ... ... ..
Canadian journalism labour tax credit from Schedule 58 . ... ...................
Air quality improvement tax credit from Schedule 65 ... ........ ... .. . . . o ..
Tax withheld at source . . . . oo e e

Total payments on which tax has been withheld .. ... ... m
Provincial and territorial capital gains refund from Schedule 18 . . ..o oo v i i e e e ... 808
Provincial and territorial refundable tax credits from Schedule 5 . ..o oo i i i .. 812
Tax instalments Paid .« v v v vt e 840 1,064,000
Total credits g3 1,064,000 p 1,064,000 B
Balance (amount A minus amount B) -371,692

If the result is negative, you have a refund. If the result is positive, you have a balance owing.
r Enter the amount below on whichever line applies.

l Generally, the CRA does not charge l

or refund a difference of $2 or less.
Refund code Refund 371,692 Balance owing . ... ... |

For information on how to make your payment, go to
canada.ca/payments.

If the corporation is a Canadian-controlled private corporation throughout the tax year,
does it qualify for the one-month extension of the date the balance of tax is due? - - -« .+« oo Yes D No

For information on how to enrol for direct deposit, go to canada.cal/cra-direct-deposit.

If this return was prepared by a tax preparer for a fee, provide their: EFILE number ... ... ..................

REPID oot et 925

~ Certification

I, m Simpson m Geoff m CFO ,
Last name First name Position, office, or rank

am an authorized signing officer of the corporation. | certify that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and that
the information given on this return is, to the best of my knowledge, correct and complete. | also certify that the method of calculating income for this tax

year is consistent with that of the previous tax year except as specific isglosed in a statement attached to this return.
BB 2024-06-19 B (613) 738-5499
Date (yyyy/mm/dd) Signature of the authdrized signing officer of the corporation Telephone number
Is the contact person the same as the authorized signing officer? If no, complete the information below ... ... .. Yes D No
E&] Bettina Yau E& (613) 738-5499
Name of other authorized person Telephone number

~ Language of correspondence — Langue de correspondance

Indicate your language of correspondence by entering 1 for English or 2 for French.
Indiquezyvotre Iaggug de corresppondance enyinscriva%t 1 pour gnglais ou 2 pour frangais. m

T2 E (24)

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0 Page 9
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Schedule of Instalment Remittances

Name of corporation contact

Bettina Yau

Telephone number

(613) 738-5499

86339 1363 RC0001

Effective Description (instalment remittance, Amount of
interest date split payment, assessed credit) credit
INSTALLMENTS 1,064,000

Total amount of instalments claimed (carry the result to line 840 of the T2 Return)

1,064,000 A

Total instalments credited to the taxation year per T9

1,064,000 B

— Transfer

Account number
From:

To:

Taxation Effective
year end Amount interest date

Description

From:

To:

From:

To:

From:

To:

From:

To:

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11
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el 505 "™ G0 Camada ™™ SCHEDULE 100
Form identifier 100 GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI
Corporation's name Business number Tax year end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

Balance sheet information

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year
— Assets
Total current @ssets . . ot i 193,663,000 176,195,000
Total tangible capital @ssets .. .. ... 1,941,469,000 1,796,457,000
Total accumulated amortization of tangible capital assets 398,409,000 344,259,000
Total intangible capital assets ... .. ... . i e 174,143,000 170,354,000
Total accumulated amortization of intangible capital assets 68,692,000 60,046,000

Total long-term a@ssets ... ... i e 131,843,000 116,513,000
Assets held intrust ... ... e

Total assets (mandatory field) . . ..ottt et 1,974,017,000 1,855,214,000

— Liabilities

Total current liabilities . . . . . ... e + 261,193,000 233,980,000
Total long-term liabilities . . .. ...ttt e + 1,246,711,000 1,183,919,000
*Subordinated debt ... .. e +
*Amounts held intrust ... ... e +
Total liabilities (mandatory field) .. ..o oo e = 1,507,904,000 1,417,899,000
— Shareholder equity
Total shareholder equity (mandatory field) — ....................... m + 466,113,000 437,315,000
Total liabilities and shareholder equity .. .. ..................... B - 1,974,017,000 1,855,214,000
— Retained earnings
Retained earnings/deficit — end (mandatory field) . ................. 3849 & 299,032,000 270,234,000

* Generic item

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI

86339 1363 RC0001

SCHEDULE 125

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

Income statement information

Description GIFI

Operatingname . ........... 0001

Description of the operation ... .. 0002

Sequence number . ......... 0003 gt

Account Description GIFI Current year Prior year

— Income statement information
Total sales of goods and SEMVICES . v v v v vttt e e 8089 4 1,117,944,000 1,103,811,000
COSEOFSAIBS « v ettt ettt et e e 8518 B 878,410,000 886,898,000
Gross Profit/loSS . oo v vttt 8519 & 239,534,000 216,913,000
COStOf SAIES .« v v ittt e 8518 g 878,410,000 886,898,000
Total operating eXpeNnSEsS v . v it it e e 9367 g 202,888,000 170,589,000
Total expenses (mandatory field) .. ... .ttt 9368 & 1,081,298,000 1,057,487,000
Total revenue (mandatory field) .. ..ottt e 8299 &4 1,118,413,000 1,102,572,000
Total expenses (mandatory field) . . v v vttt 9368 & 1,081,298,000 1,057,487,000
Net non-farming inCome . ... ..ottt 9369 & 37,115,000 45,085,000

— Farming income statement information
Total farm revenue (mandatory field) . .. ...ttt 9659 |4
Total farm expenses (mandatory field) .. .............. ... ... . . ... 9898 &
Net farm inComMe ..o v i ittt et 9899 &
Net income/loss before taxes and extraordinaryitems . .............. 9970 & 37,115,000 45,085,000
Total — other comprehensive income ... ..o v ittt 9998 &

— Extraordinary items and income (linked to Schedule 140)
Extraordinary item(s) . . ... e
Legal settlements ... ... ... . e
Unrealized gains/losses . . . oottt e
Unusual items ..o e e e
Current iNCOME tAXES & v v it ittt et et et et e e e -257,000 754,000
Future (deferred) income tax provision ... ...ttt 8,574,000 11,625,000
Total — Other comprehensive income . ... .. ... ittt
Net income/loss after taxes and extraordinary items (mandatory field) ... .. 28,798,000 32,706,000

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Schedule 141
Agency du Canada

General Index of Financial Information (GIFI) — Additional Information

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

® Corporations need to complete all parts of this schedule that apply and include it with their T2 return along with their other GIFI schedules.

® For more information, see Guide RC4088, General Index of Financial Information (GIFI), and Guide T4012, T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.

~ Part 1 — Information on the person primarily involved with the financial information

Can you identify the person® specified in the heading of Part 1?7 . . . . ... i e m Yes No D
If you answered no, go to Part 2.

Does that person have a professional designation in accounting? . . . ... e m Yes No D
Is that person connected** with the corporation? . . . . . i e Yes D No

* A person primarily involved with the financial information is a person who has more than a 50% involvement in preparing the financial information that the
T2 return is based on. For example, if three persons prepared the financial information by doing respectively 30%, 30%, and 40% of the work, answer no at
line 111. If they did respectively 10%, 20%, and 70% of the work, answer yes at line 111 and complete Part 1 by referring only to the third person.

** A person connected with a corporation can be: (i) a shareholder of the corporation who owns more than 10% of the common shares; (ii) a director, an
officer, or an employee of the corporation; or (iii) a person not dealing at arm's length with the corporation.

~ Part 2 — Type of involvement

Choose one or more of the following options that represent your involvement and that of the person referred to in Part 1:

Completed an auditor's report . e e m

Completed a review engagement report . .. L L e e m D
Conducted a compilation engagement . .. e e m D
Provided accounting SEIVICES . . ot i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e D
Provided boOKKEEPING SEIVICES o i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e m D
Other (please specify) ......... m

— Part 3 — Reservations
If you selected option 1 (300) or 2 (301) in Part 2 above, answer the following question:

Has the person referred to in Part 1 expressed a reservation? . . . . . . it e e m Yes D No

~ Part 4 — Other information

Were notes to the financial statements prepared? . . . L e e e m Yes No D
Did the corporation have any subsequent events? . . .. .. e e e m Yes D No
Did the corporation re-evaluate its assets during the tax year? . .. . ... e m Yes D No
Did the corporation have any contingent liabilities during the tax year? . ... ... .. . . . i m Yes No D
Did the corporation have any commitments during the tax year? . ... ... . e Yes No D
Does the corporation have investments in joint venture(s) or partnership(s)? ... .. ... i m Yes D No
T2 SCH 141 E (23) Page 1 0f 2 Canad'é'
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

~ Part 4 — Other information (continued)

Impairment and fair value changes

In any of the following assets, was an amount recognized in net income or other comprehensive income (OCl) as a
result of an impairment loss in the tax year, a reversal of an impairment loss recognized in a previous tax year, or a

change in fair value during the tax year? . . ... e e

If yes, you have to maintain a separate reconciliation.

If yes, enter the amount recognized: In net income In OCI
Increase (decrease) Increase (decrease)

Property, plant, and equipment .. .............. m m

Intangibleassets . ........ ... o oo oL m m

Investment property ... ... . oo L m

Biologicalassets .. ............... ... . ... E

Financial instruments .. .................... 230 231

o 235
Financial instruments
Did the corporation derecognize any financial instrument(s) during the tax year (other than trade receivables)? . ......... m Yes D No
Did the corporation apply hedge accounting during the tax year? . ... ... . . . . e @ Yes D No
Did the corporation discontinue hedge accounting during the tax year? . ... .. ... . . . . m Yes D No
Adjustments to opening equity
Was an amount included in the opening balance of retained earnings or equity, in order to correct an error, to
recognize a change in accounting policy, or to adopt a new accounting standard in the currenttax year? . ............. m Yes D No

~ Part 5 — Information on the person who prepared the T2 return

options that apply:
Prepared the T2 return and the financial information contained therein . .. ....................
The client provided the financial statements ... . ... ... e
The client provided a trial balance .. ... e

The client provided a general ledger . . . o o e e e
Other (please specify) . ........ EX} Prepared the T2 return

If the person who prepared the T2 return has a professional designation in accounting but is not the person identified in Part 1, choose all of the following

T2 SCH 141 E (23)
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Corporation's name Business number

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

General Index of Financial Information

Notes to the financial statements

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hydro Ottawa Limited [the 'Company'] was incorporated on October 3, 2000
pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) as mandated by the
Ontario government's Electricity Act, 1998. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc., which in turn is wholly owned by the
City of Ottawa. The Company is domiciled in Canada with the registered head
office located at 2711 Hunt Club Road, Ottawa, Ontario, K1G 5Z9.

Hydro Ottawa Limited is a regulated electricity distribution company that
owns and operates electricity infrastructure in the City of Ottawa and the
Municipality of Casselman and is responsible for the safe, reliable delivery
of electricity to homes and businesses in its licensed service area. In
addition to billing for distribution services, Hydro Ottawa Limited invoices
customers for amounts it is required to pay to other organizations in
Ontario's electricity system for providing wholesale generation and
transmission services.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared by management on a
going-concern basis in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ['IFRS
Accounting Standards'], and have been approved and authorized by the
Company's Board of Directors for issue on April 23, 2024.

(b) Basis of measurement

The Company's financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the valuation of other employee future benefits as disclosed in
Note 3 (i) (ii) . (c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency. (d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting
Standards requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements.

Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making such estimates, actual
results could differ from estimates recorded in preparing these financial
statements, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the
Ontario Energy Board ['OEB'] or the Ontario provincial government. Management
reviews its estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis using the most
current information available. The financial statements have, in management's
opinion, been properly prepared using careful judgment within reasonable
limits of materiality and within the framework of the material accounting
policies. Significant areas where estimates and judgments are made in the
application of IFRS Accounting Standards are as follows:

i. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable, which includes unbilled receivables, are reported based
on the amounts expected to be recovered less a loss allowance for expected
credit losses. Management utilizes historical loss experience and
forward-looking information in conjunction with the aging and arrears status
of accounts receivable at year-end in the determination of the allowance.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION [CONTINUED]
(d) Use of estimates and judgments [continued]
ii. Regulatory balances

The recognition and measurement of regulatory balances is subject to certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions, including assumptions made in the

interpretation of the OEB's regulations and decisions. The Company continues
to assess the likelihood of recovery of all regulatory debit balances subject
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Notes to the financial statements

to recovery through a future rate filing. The absence of OEB approval is a
consideration in this evaluation.

iii. Useful lives of depreciable assets

Depreciation and amortization expense are calculated based on estimates of
the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment properties. Management estimates the useful lives of the wvarious
types of assets using assumptions and estimates of life characteristics of
similar assets based on a long history of industry experience.

iv. Impairments of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed by management for impairment using the
future cash flows method. By their nature, estimates of future cash flows,
including estimates of future capital expenditures, revenue, operating
expenses, discount rates and market pricing are subject to measurement
uncertainty.

v. Employee future benefits

The measurement of employee future benefits involves the use of numerous
estimates and assumptions. Actuaries make assumptions for items such as
discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates in the
determination of benefits expenses and accrued benefit obligations.

vi. Capital contributions

The timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations for capital
contributions from customers is subject to certain estimates of future
electricity usage.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted amendments within IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements related to the Disclosure of Accounting Policies. The
changes required an entity to disclose material rather than significant
accounting policies and provided guidance identifying material accounting
policies relevant to users of the financial statements. Accordingly,
management reviewed its accounting policies and updated the accounting policy
information within this note to align with these amendments.

(a) Regulation

The Company is regulated by the OEB under the authority of the Ontario Energy
Board Act, 1998. The OEB is charged with the responsibilities of approving or
setting rates for the transmission and distribution of electricity, and
ensuring that distribution companies fulfill obligations to connect and
service customers.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(a) Regulation [continued]

For fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, the Company continued to operate
under a custom incentive rate-setting application ['Custom IR'] prescribed by
the OEB. The Custom IR is one of the rate setting options contained in the
Renewed Regulatory Framework for Electricity Distributors: A
Performance-Based Approach policy.

Annual IR applications are required to set rates and charges for the
2022-2025 rate years. On August 17, 2023, the Company filed its Custom IR
year 4 update application seeking approval to change its base distribution
rates effective January 1, 2024. Rates are adjusted using a formulaic
approach following the first year base rates. The 2024 rates are based on an
update to the Company's custom price escalation factor, working capital
allowance, and the Company's annual incremental capital stretch factor for
capital-related revenue requirement. The Company's 2024 rates were approved
by the OEB on December 14, 2023.

Once rates are approved, they are not adjusted as a result of actual costs
being different from those that were estimated, other than for certain
prescribed costs that are eligible for deferral treatment and are either
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collected or refunded in future rates.

In January 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board ['IASB'] issued
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts ['IFRS 14'], which permits
rate-regulated entities to use its existing rate-regulated activities
practices if and only if, in its first IFRS financial statements, it
recognized regulatory deferral account balances by electing to apply the
requirements of IFRS 14.

The Company has determined that certain debit and credit balances arising
from rate-regulated activities qualify for the application of regulatory
accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS 14 and the accounting principles
prescribed by the OEB in the Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity
Distributors. Regulatory debit and credit balances primarily represent costs
that have been deferred because it is probable that they will be recovered in
future rates, revenues that are required to be returned or collected to/from
customers or balances that arise from differences in amounts billed to
customers for electricity services and the costs that the Company incurs to
purchase these services.Regulatory balances principally comprise the
following:

? Regulatory asset/liability refund account ['RARA'/'RLRA'] consists of
balances of regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities approved for
disposition by the OEB through temporary additional rates referred to as rate
riders.? Settlement variances relate primarily to the charges the Company
incurred for transmission services, commodity, wholesale market operations
and global adjustment in comparison to those settled with customers during
the year. The nature of the settlement variances is such that the balance can
fluctuate between assets and liabilities over time, and they are reported at
year-end dates in accordance with rules prescribed by the OEB.

? Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism ['LRAM'] account tracks and disposes
of lost electricity distribution revenues that result from Conservation and
Demand Management ['CDM'] programs.

? Earnings Sharing Mechanism ['ESM'] wvariance account captures 50% of any
regulated earnings above Hydro Ottawa's approved return on equity for
specific rate periods.

? Other Post-employment Benefits deferral account ['OPEB deferral
account'] was authorized by the OEB in 2011 to record the adjustment to
employee future benefits other than pension relating to the cumulative
actuarial gains or losses. This account is adjusted annually to record any
changes in the cumulative actuarial gains or losses. No interest charges are
recorded on this account as instructed by the OEB.

? Other Post-employment Benefits cash versus accrual account ['OPEB cash
vs accrual] tracks the interest on the differential of the Company's
contributions to OPEB versus the accrued OPEB expense recorded in the
statement of income.

? Gain/Loss on Asset Disposal variance account is the difference between
actual amount of gain/loss from disposal of fixed assets and the forecasted
gain/loss.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(a) Regulation [continued]

Other variances and deferred costs include the following:

? Connection Cost Recovery Agreement ['CCRA'] account allows the Company
to record annual revenue requirements related to the difference between
forecasted payments built into rates and actual payments made to Hydro One
Networks Inc. ['HONI'] under connection and cost recovery agreements.

? Capital Variance Account ['CVA'] account (excluding the System Access
capital variance sub-account relating to plant relocation requested by third
parties and residential expansion) 1is an asymmetrical variance account.
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Accordingly, the CVA tracks on an annual basis [for years 2021-2025], the
cumulative revenue requirement difference resulting from the underspending in
the Company's three capital spending categories: System Renewal/System
Service, System Access, and General Plant. The System Access capital variance
sub-account records the cumulative revenue requirement difference due to both
overspending or underspending and 1is referred to as a symmetrical variance
account.

? Performance Outcomes Accountability Mechanism account to return up to
$200 annually for each under-achieved target during the 2021-2025 custom
incentive rate-setting period. The five targets impacted by this mechanism
account are identified in the Company's settlement agreement.

? the OEB established a variance account for electricity distributors to
record any material differences between OEB cost assessments currently built
into rates, and cost assessments that will result from the application of the
new cost assessment models.

The Company accrues interest on the regulatory balances as directed by the
OEB.

The Company continues to assess the likelihood of recovery of all regulatory
debit balances subject to recovery through a future rate filing. The absence
of OEB approval is a consideration in this evaluation. If the requirement for
a provision becomes more likely than not, the Company will recognize the
provision in operating costs for the year. (b) Revenue recognition
Depending on whether certain criteria are met the Company recognizes revenue
from contracts with customers when it transfers control over a product or
service to a customer either over time or at a point in time. For revenue
from other sources, the Company recognizes revenue over time taking into
consideration the facts and circumstances of the arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the consideration received or receivable, excluding
sales taxes and other amounts collected on behalf of third parties in the
following revenue arrangements.i. Power recovery

Power recovery revenue represents the flow-through of the cost of power to
the consumer as purchased by the Company and is recognized over time as
electricity is delivered to the customer, as measured by meter readings or
usage estimates. Power recovery revenue is regulated by the OEB and includes
charges to customers for the electricity commodity, the transmission of
electricity and the administration of the wholesale electricity system. The
Company has determined that it acts as a principal in this revenue
arrangement and therefore has presented it on a gross basis.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]
(b) Revenue recognition [continued]
ii. Distribution

The Company charges customers for the delivery of electricity, based on rates
established by the OEB. The rates are intended to allow the Company to
recover its prudently incurred costs and earn a fair return on invested
capital. Distribution revenue is recognized over time as electricity is
delivered to the customer, as measured by meter readings or usage estimates.
iii. Other

Other revenue comprises revenue earned under contracts for service work
related to distribution operations, pole attachment and duct rentals, capital
contributions received from customers amortized to revenue, and other
account-related charges such as account set-up and late payment fees. Revenue
earned under contracts for service work related to distribution operations is
recognized over time as the corresponding costs are recognized
proportionately with the degree of completion of the services under contract.
Losses on such contracts are fully recognized when they become evident. In
certain situations, capital contributions are required from customers to




2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 48 of 155

Corporation's name Business number

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

General Index of Financial Information

Notes to the financial statements

finance additions to property, plant and equipment when the estimated revenue
resulting from the addition to property, plant and equipment is less than the
cost of providing the service or where special equipment is needed to supply
the customers' specific requirements. Since the contributions will provide
current and future customers with ongoing access to the supply of
electricity, these contributions are classified as deferred revenue and
amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis over time [the period a
customer will receive services], which is typically equivalent to the rate
used for the depreciation of the related property, plant and equipment
[service life of the related assets]. All other revenues are recognized over
time as services are rendered, except for revenue from certain account-
related charges, which is recognized at a point in time.

Capital contributions received from developers to construct or acquire
property, plant and equipment for the purpose of connecting future customers
to the Company's distribution network are considered out of scope of IFRS 15.
Capital contributions received from developers are recognized as deferred
revenue and amortized into revenue from other sources at an equivalent rate
to that used for the depreciation of the related property, plant and
equipment.

(c) Financing costs

Financing costs are calculated using the effective interest rate method and
are recognized as an expense unless they are capitalized as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset. (d) Income taxes

The Company is considered to be a Municipal Electric Utility ['MEU'] and is
required to make payments in lieu of corporate income taxes [PILS] as
contained in the Electricity Act, 1998, as all of its share capital is
indirectly owned by the City of Ottawa and not more than 10% of its income is
derived from activities carried on outside the municipal boundaries of the
City of Ottawa. The Electricity Act, 1998 provides that a MEU that is exempt
from tax under the Income Tax Act (Canada) ['ITA'] and the Taxation Act,
Ontario ['TAO'] is required to make, for each taxation year, a PILs payment
to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation in an amount equal to the
tax that it would be liable to pay under the ITA and the TAO if it were not
exempt from tax.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(d) Income taxes [continued]

The Company follows the liability method for recording income taxes. Under
the liability method, current income taxes payable are recorded based on
taxable income. Deferred income taxes arising from temporary differences in
the accounting and tax basis of assets and liabilities are provided based on
substantively enacted tax rates that will be in effect when the differences
are expected to reverse.

The Company recognizes regulatory balances for the amounts of future income
taxes expected to be refunded to or recovered from customers in future
electricity rates as prescribed by the OEB. (e) Financial instruments
Financial instruments are initially measured at the fair value of the
consideration given or received plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.

The Company's financial assets, upon initial recognition, are classified as
amortized cost or fair value [whereby subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized either through OCI ['FVOCI'] or through profit and loss ['FVTPL']
as unrealized market adjustments]. Financial assets are classified based on
the Company's business model for managing such assets and the contractual
terms of the related cash flows.

The Company's financial liabilities, upon initial recognition, are classified
as amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if
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it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition.

The Company classifies and subsequently measures its financial instruments as
follows:? Cash and accounts receivable are financial assets classified
and

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment if applicable.

? Working capital facility, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
customer deposits and notes payable are financial liabilities classified and
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration that
would be agreed upon in an arm's-length transaction between willing parties.
The Company's own credit risk and the credit risk of the counterparty are
taken into account in determining the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities. Financial instruments are classified using a three- level
hierarchy. The levels reflect the inputs used to measure the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities, and are as follows:

? Level 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted prices of identical instruments
in active markets;

? Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

? Level 3: inputs for the liabilities that are not based on observable
market data [unobservable inputs].

All financial assets except for those classified as FVTPL or EVOCI are
subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date. Impairment
losses, if material, are recognized in net income. An impairment loss is
reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses ['ECL's] on
financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Company measures loss
allowances for electricity receivables, unbilled receivables relating to
electricity and trade receivables via a simplified approach as permitted by
IFRS 9, at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased,
the Company performs a gquantitative and qualitative analysis based on the
Company's historical experience and forward-looking information. The Company
assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due. The Company considers a financial asset
to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as
realizing security.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(e) Financial instruments [continued]

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. (f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist principally of electricity distribution
infrastructure, buildings and fixtures, land, rolling stock, furniture and
equipment, and assets under construction.

Emergency capital spare parts that are expected to be used for more than one
year, are considered to be assets under construction and are depreciated only
once they are put into service.

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Self-constructed
asset costs comprise all directly attributable expenditures to bring the
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asset into operation including labour, materials, employee benefits,
transportation, contracted services and borrowing costs. Where parts of an
item in property, plant and equipment are significant and have different
estimated economic useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
[major components] of property, plant and equipment. Certain assets may be
acquired or constructed with financial assistance in the form of
contributions from customers and developers. Assets that are acquired from
customers and developers are measured at fair value. Contributions from
customers and developers are treated as deferred revenue.

The cost of major inspections and maintenance is recognized in the carrying
value of an asset provided that the Company will derive future economic
benefits from the expenditure. The carrying amount of a replaced part is
derecognized. The costs of day-to-day servicing, repairs, and maintenance are
expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated service
life of each component of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of retired, sold or otherwise derecognized
property, plant and equipment are recognized in income and are calculated as
the difference between net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of
the asset.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are
reviewed at each year-end with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Estimated service lives for property, plant and equipment classes are as

follows: Land and buildingsLand Indefinite
Buildings and fixtures 10 to 75 years
Distribution assets 10 to 60 years
Equipment and other

Furniture and equipment 5 to 40 years
Rolling stock 7 to 15 years

Assets under construction and land are not subject to depreciation. Borrowing
costs are capitalized as a component of the cost of self-constructed
property, plant and equipment assets that take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use. The capitalization rate is the
Company's weighted average cost of borrowing.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(9) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land rights, capital contributions, computer
software and assets under development.

Intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated service lives of the
related assets.

Intangible assets are derecognized on disposal or when no further future
economic benefits are expected from their use. Gains or losses on disposal of
intangible assets are recognized in income and are calculated as the
difference between net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the
asset.The estimated useful lives and amortization methods are reviewed at
each

year-end with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Estimated service lives for intangible assets with finite lives are as

follows:
Land rights 50 years
Computer software 5 to 13 years

Capital contributions 45 years
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Borrowing costs are capitalized as a component of cost of self-constructed
intangible assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use. The capitalization rate is the Company's weighted average
cost of borrowing. (h) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, or earlier if required, management uses
its judgment to assess whether there is an indication that the carrying
amount of a non-financial asset [or cash generating unit, 'CGU'] exceeds its
recoverable amount. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. This assessment involves the consideration
of whether any events or changes in circumstances could have affected the
recoverability of the carrying amount of a non-financial asset or CGU.
Management considers various indicators including, but not limited to,
adverse changes in the industry or economic conditions, changes in the degree
or method of use of an asset, a lower than expected economic performance of
an asset or a significant change in market returns or interest rates. If any
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount,
which is the higher of an asset or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. If the carrying value of a non-financial asset
materially exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is immediately
recognized as an impairment loss in profit or loss.

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment [within
their respective CGUs] at least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

When determining the recoverable amount, the Company determines its
value-in-use by discounting estimated future cash flows to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects changes in the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or the CGU. The discount rate estimated
and used by management represents the weighted average cost of capital
determined for the CGU being tested.

At the end of a reporting period, if there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognized in a prior period no longer exists or has
decreased, the loss is reversed up to its recoverable amount. The carrying
amount following the reversal must not be higher than the carrying amount
that would have prevailed [net of amortization] had the original impairment
not been recognized in prior periods.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]
(1) Employee future benefits
i. Pension plan

The Company provides pension benefits for its employees through the Ontario
Municipal Employees Retirement System ['OMERS'] Fund [the 'Fund']. OMERS is a
multi-employer pension plan that provides pensions for employees of Ontario
municipalities, local boards, public utilities and school boards. The Fund is
a defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal contributions from
participating employers and employees and by the investment earnings of the
Fund.

Although the plan is a defined benefit plan, sufficient information is not
available to the Company to account for it as such because it is not possible
to attribute the fund assets and liabilities between the various employers
who contribute to the Fund. As a result, the Company accounts for the plan as
a defined contribution plan, and contributions payable as a result of
employee service are expensed as incurred as part of operating costs. The
Company shares in the actuarial risks of the other participating entities in
the plan, and its future contributions may therefore be increased due to
actuarial losses relating to the other participating entities. In addition,
the Company's contributions could be increased if other entities withdraw
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from the plan.

ii. Other post-employment benefits

Employee future benefits other than pensions provided by the Company include
life insurance and a collectively bargained retirement grant. These plans
provide benefits to certain employees when they are no longer providing
active service.

Employee future benefits expense is recognized in the period during which the
employees render services.

Employee future benefits are recorded on an accrual basis. The accrued
benefit obligation and current service costs are calculated using the
projected benefit method prorated on service and based on assumptions that
reflect management's best estimates. The current service cost for a period is
equal to the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to employees'
services rendered in the period. Actuarial gains and losses resulting from
experience different from that assumed or from changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in OCI. However, for the Company, these amounts
are reclassified to a regulatory debit balance as prescribed by the OEB.

iii. Employee benefits

The Company provides short-term employee benefits, such as: salaries,
employment insurance, short-term compensated absences, health and dental
care. These benefits are recognized as the related service is rendered and is
measured on an undiscounted basis. Short-term employee benefits are
recognized as an expense unless they qualify for capitalization as part of
the cost of an item of materials and supplies, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets. A liability is recognized in respect of any unpaid
short-term employee benefits for services rendered in the reporting period.
(3) Customer deposits

Customer deposits are cash collections from customers to guarantee the
payment of energy bills and fulfillment of construction obligations. Customer
deposits from customers to guarantee the payment of energy bills includes
related interest amounts owed to the customers. Deposits estimated to be
refundable to customers within the next fiscal year are classified as current
liabilities and included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

(k) Provisions and contingencies

The Company recognizes provisions when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Provisions are remeasured at each balance sheet date.

The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events requires Jjudgment
by management as to the probability of exposure to potential loss. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements. However, a
contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is

probable.
4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2023
2022
$ $
Receivables from contracts with customers
Electricity receivable 71,600 59,994

Unbilled receivables related to electricity 86,259 82,660
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Independent Electricity System Operator ['IESO'] receivable 14,065
9,742 Other receivables 7,261 8,813
Amounts due from related party [Note 23] 11,308 12,268
Less: loss allowance [Note 15(c)] (4,141) (4,007)
186,352 169,470
5. REGULATORY BALANCES
Information about the Company's regulatory balances is as follows:
Remaining Balances
recovery/ arising in the Recovery/ Other
reversal 2022 year reversal movements (1) 2023
[years] $ $ $ $ $
Regulatory debit balances
RARA 1-5 687 7,378 949 (73) 8,941
Settlement variances 1-5 36,724 10,279 - (10,877)
36, 1260PEB cash versus accrual 1-5 3,218 314 - - 3,532
Loss on asset disposal 1-5 148 - - (148) -

Regulatory asset for deferred
income taxes

Other variances and deferred (2) 74,238 8,384 - -
82, 622costs 1-5 1,498 (814) - (62) 622
116,513 25,541 949 (11,160) 131,843
Regulatory credit balances
RLRA 1-5 1,148 1,794 (1,592) (73) 1,277
Settlement variances 1-5 17,033 (1,315) - (10,877)
4,841ESM 1-5 1,467 74 - - 1,541
Gain on asset disposal 1-5 - 1,241 - (148) 1,093
LRAM 1-5 105 2,951 - - 3,056
OPEB deferral account 1-5 30 33 - - 63
Other variance and deferred costs
1-5
1,902
1,248
- (62)
3,088
21,685 6,026 (1,592) (11,160) 14,959

5. REGULATORY BALANCES [CONTINUED]

Remaining recovery/ Balances arising in the
Recovery/
Other

reversal 2021 year reversal movements (1) 2022

[years] $ $ $ $ $
Regulatory debit balances
RARA 1-5 1,691 4,170 (1,600) (3,574) 687
Settlement variances 1-5 13,453 23,049 222 - 36,724
OPEB cash vs accrual 1-5 5,561 (2,343) - - 3,218
LRAM 1-5 967 - - (967) -
Loss on asset disposal 1-5 - 484 - (336) 148
Regulatory asset for deferred income taxes
(2)
61,860

12,378

74,238
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Other variances and deferred

costs 1-5 2,842 (471) 7 (880) 1,498
86,374 37,267 (1,371) (5,757) 116,513
Regulatory credit balances
RLRA 1-5 9,588 (5,441) 575 (3,574) 1,148
Settlement variances 1-5 12,850 4,411 (228) - 17,033
ESM 1-5 2,126 (659) - - 1,467
Gain on asset disposal 1-5 336 - - (336) -
LRAM 1-5 - 1,072 - (967) 105
OPEB deferral account 1-5 12 18 - - 30
Other variances and deferred costs
1-5
403
1,485
894
(880)
1,902
25,315 886 1,241 (5,757) 21,685
(1) Other movements represent reclassifications of balances
(2) The balance is being reversed through timing differences in the

recognition of deferred income tax assets [Note 3(d)]
Details and descriptions pertaining to the regulatory debt and credit
balances are disclosed in Note 3(a) of these financial statements.
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and
Distribution
Equipment and
Assets under
buildings
assets
other
construction
Total

v W W r n

Cost
Balance at December 31, 2021
155,892
1,368,057
54,792
73,300
1,652,041
Additions, net of transfers 1,848 136,033 7,152 2,719
147,752 Disposals (1) (3,300) (1,074) - (4,375)
Balance at December 31,2022 157,739 1,500,790 60,870
76,019 1,795,418
Additions, net transfers 3,253 113,490 7,085 23,776
147,604 Disposals (14) (1,427) (591) - (2,032)
Balance at December 31, 2023 160,978 1,612,853 67,364
99,795 1,940,990
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at December 31, 2021
(15,933)
(250,752)
(26,789)

(293,474)
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Depreciation (3,475) (43,952) (5,381) - (52,808)
Disposals - 1,159 864 - 2,023
Balance at December 31,2022 (19,408) (293,545) (31,300)
- (344,259)
Depreciation (3,567) (46,002) (5,835) - (55,404)
Disposals - 726 528 - 1,254
Balance at December 31, 2023 (22,975) (338,821) (36,613)
- (398,409) Net book wvalue
At December 31, 2022
138,331
1,207,245
29,564
76,019
1,451,159
At December 31, 2023 138,003 1,274,032 30,751 99,795
1,542,581
During the year, the Company capitalized borrowing costs of $510 [2022 -

$677] to property, plant and equipment.

2023 was 3.4% [2022 - 2.9%].

The average annual interest rate for

The Company has entered into non-cash transactions that have been excluded

from the statement of cash flows as detailed in Note 20.

In addition,

[2022 - $7,587] of property, plant and equipment was contributed by

$12,105

developers, the directly related liability of which is included in deferred

revenue.

During the year, the Company recognized a gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment of $469 [2022 - loss on disposal o0f$1,239].

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer
Capital
Assets under

Land rights
software
contributions
development
Total

v W W r n

Cost
Balance at December 31, 2021
2,732
74,987
63,655
24,225
165,599
Additions, net of transfers
4,755
Balance at December 31, 2022
170,354
Additions, net of transfers
3,789
Balance at December 31, 2023
174,143
Accumulated amortization
Balance at December 31, 2021
(477)
(47,116)

507

3,239

3,239

4,7

6,265

79

79,766

20,238

83,893

(4,756)

86,031

79,137

(20,

2,280

769)

3,456

5,736
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(3,937)
(51,530)
Amortization (69) (6,529) (1,918) - (8,516)
Balance at December 31, 2022 (5406) (53,645) (5,855) -
(60,046) Amortization (78) (6,622) (1,9406) - (8,646)
Balance at December 31, 2023 (624) (60,267) (7,801) -
(68,692) Net book wvalue
At December 31, 2022
2,693
26,121
78,038
3,456
110,308
At December 31, 2023 2,615 25,764 71,336 5,736
105,451

The Company is party to various Connection and Cost Recovery Agreements
['"Capital contributions'] with Hydro One Networks Inc. ['HONI']. These
agreements govern the construction by HONI of new or modified transformer
stations for the purpose of serving the Company's customers, including
anticipated electricity load growth. All terms and conditions of CCRAs follow
the Transmission System Code [the 'Code'] issued by the OEB.

During the year, the Company capitalized borrowing costs of $184 [2022 -
$172] to intangible assets. The average annual interest rate for 2023 was
3.4% [2022 - 2.9%].

The Company has entered into non-cash transactions that have been excluded
from the statement of cash flows as detailed in Note 20.

8. WORKING CAPITAL FACILITY

The Company has access to a $90,000 [2022 - $90,000] revolving demand credit
facility and a $500 [2022 - $500] commercial card facility available from
Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. As at December 31, 2023, the Company has drawn
$10,310 [2022 -

$13,412] in bank indebtedness and $55,000 [2022 - $49,000] in bankers'
acceptances against this credit facility. The rate of interest is based on
the rate applicable to Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc.'s outstanding bankers'
acceptances drawn on that date. Otherwise, the rate of interest is based on
the Bank of Canada's 'Bankers Acceptances 1 month' rate, plus a Banker's
Acceptance Fee.

9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
2023
2022
$ $
Purchased power payable 87,382 70,404
Trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities 35,271 36,634
Customer deposits 43,274 35,359
Customer credit balances 14,451 13,137
Due to related parties [Note 23] 7,106 8,695
187,484 164,229

In 2019, the Company conducted a true-up calculation in connection with one
of its cost recovery agreements with HONI as described in Note 21. The
Company determined that it was obligated to make up a shortfall and
accordingly set-up a provision. At December 31, 2021, the Company maintained
a provision of $3,400, which was included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. In 2022, the Company received the final CCRA calculation from
HONI, which required it to pay $2,509. The Company paid the $2,509 in 2022.
10. DEFERRED REVENUE
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2023
2022
$ $
Capital contributions from customers 138,249 123,998
Capital contributions from developers 151,884 132,838
290,133 256,836
Less: current portion (8,399) (7,339)
281,734 249,497
11.
EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
(a) Pension plans

The Company's participating employer contributions under OMERS for the year
ended December 31, 2023 amounted to$5,340 [2022 - $5,721].

(b) Other employee future benefits

Employee future benefits are calculated using an annual compensation rate
increase of 2.0% [2022 - 2.0%] and a discount rate of 4.7% [2022 - 5.1%] to
calculate the liabilities. The valuations also include several other economic
and demographic assumptions including mortality rates. The mortality
assumption is based on the Canadian Pensioners' Mortality report published by
the Canadian Institute of Actuaries in February 2014.

11. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS [CONTINUED]

Information about the Company's employee future benefits other than pension

plans is as follows: 2023

$ 2022

$
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of year 11,526 14,376
Current service costs 265 407
Interest on defined benefit obligation 613 431
Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation - (557)
Benefit payments (843) (788)
Actuarial loss (gain) 314 (2,343)
Defined benefit obligation, end of year 11,875 11,526

An actuarial extrapolation was performed as at December 31, 2023. As a result
of this exercise, the Company increased the accumulated liability by $349
[December 31, 2022 - decreased by $2,850 based on an actuarial valuation].
Significant changes in actuarial assumptions related to discount rates,
future health and dental costs, mortality rates and retirement age may affect
the valuation of the defined benefit obligation.

12. NOTES PAYABLE

The Company currently has the following unsecured promissory notes to Hydro
Ottawa Holding Inc.:

2023 2022

$ $

4.97% promissory note, due December 19, 2036 50,000 50,000 4.14% for
the first five years [3.99% thereafter] promissory note, issued May 14, 2013
and dueMay 14, 2043 107,185 107,185

2.72% for the first five years [2.61% thereafter] promissory note, issued
February 9, 2015 anddue February 3, 2025 138,667 138,667

3.77% for the first five years [3.64% thereafter] promissory note, issued
February 9, 2015 anddue February 2, 2045 121,333 121,333

2.72% for the first five years [2.61% thereafter] promissory note, issued
June 25, 2015 and duedune 25, 2025 15,999 15,999

3.77% for the first five years [3.64% thereafter] promissory note, issued
June 25, 2015 and due
June 25, 2045 14,001 14,001
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2.66% promissory note, due October 16, 2029 87,500 87,500

3.21% promissory note, due October 16, 2049 162,500 162,500

3.57% grid promissory note issued July 5, 2021 and due on demand 80,000
80,000

4.94% grid promissory note issued August 9, 2022 and due on demand 30,000

30,000

4.56% grid promissory note issued July 6, 2023 and due on demand 30,000
- 837,185 807,185

12. NOTES PAYABLE [CONTINUED]

The grid promissory note facility bears fixed-rate interest based on the cost
of long-term debt for Ontario's Regulated Utilities in accordance with the
OEB's cost of capital calculations. Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. does not intend
to recall any amounts due on demand in 2024.

The promissory notes and the grid promissory note facility are subordinated
and postponed to the obligation of the Company to a third party for the
payment in full of any secured indebtedness and any and all security
interests granted to secure such obligations of the Company.

13. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Company's main objectives when managing capital are to:

? Ensure continued access to funding to maintain and improve the
operations and infrastructure of the Company;

? Ensure compliance with covenants related to the credit facilities and
senior unsecured debentures entered into by its parent company, Hydro Ottawa
Holding Inc.; and

? Align Hydro Ottawa Limited's capital structure with the debt to equity
structure recommended by the OEB. The Company's capital consists of the
following:

2023

$

2022

$

Working capital facility 65,310 62,412

Notes payable 837,185 807,185

Total debt 902,495 869,597

Shareholder's equity 466,113 437,315

Total capital 1,368,608 1,306,912

Debt capitalization ratio

65.94 %

66.54 %

The Company is in compliance with all financial covenants and limitations
associated with its credit facilities and its long-term debt.

The Company is deemed by the OEB to have a capital structure that is funded
by 56% long-term debt, 4% short-term debt and 40% equity. The OEB uses this
deemed structure only as a basis for setting distribution rates. As such, the

Company's actual capital structure may differ from the OEB deemed structure.
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The Company met its capital management objectives, which have not changed
during the year.

14. SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorized

Unlimited number of voting first preferred shares, redeemable at one dollar
per share Unlimited number of non-voting second preferred shares, redeemable
at ten dollars per share

Unlimited number of non-voting third preferred shares, redeemable at one
hundred dollars per share

Unlimited number of voting fourth preferred shares [ten votes per share],
redeemable at one hundred dollars per share Unlimited number of voting Class
A common sharesUnlimited number of non-voting Class B common shares

Unlimited number of non-voting Class C common shares, redeemable at the price
at which such shares are issued The above shares are without nominal or par
value.

Holders of second preferred shares, fourth preferred shares and common shares
are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Board of
Directors at their discretion. (b) Issued

2023
$

2022

154,789,001 Class A common shares 167,081 167,081

Any invitation to the public to subscribe for shares of the Company is
prohibited by shareholder resolution.

No dividends were declared by the Board of Directors in 2023. [2022 - April
14, 2022, the Board of Directors declared a

$7,500 dividend to the sole shareholder, Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc., which was
paid on April 21, 2022].

Subsequent to year-end, the Board of Directors declared a $11,500 dividend on
April 23, 2024 on the common shares of the Company outstanding on December
31, 2023.

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Fair value disclosures

The carrying values of the Company's financial instruments, except for notes
payable, approximates fair value because of the short maturity and nature of
the instruments. The fair value measurement of the financial instrument for
which the fair value has been disclosed is included in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy [Note 3(e)].

The Company has estimated the fair value of the notes payable as at December
31, 2023 as amounting to $765,259 [2022

- $716,892]. The fair value has been determined based on discounting all
future payments of interest and the principal repayment on January 1, 2024,
at the estimated interest rate of 4.6% [2022 - 4.8%] that would be available
to the Company on December 31, 2023. (b) Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk, which is the risk that the fair wvalue
of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices are comprised of three types of
risks: interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and commodity price risk.
15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED]

(b) Market risk [continued]
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(1) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its borrowings. The Company
mitigates exposure to interest rate risk by fixing interest rates on its
notes payable with its parent company. Under Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc.'s
credit facilities, any advances on its operating line would expose the
Company to fluctuations in short term interest rates related to prime rate
loans and bankers' acceptances as all short-term financing requirements are
obtained through its parent company, which passes on its borrowing costs. The
interest rate risk is deemed to be low due to the immaterial cost of its
short-term borrowings. For the most part, the borrowing requirements are for
a very short duration as the advances serve to bridge gaps between the cash
outflow related to the monthly power bill and the inflows related to the
settlements with customers and, as such, there is very limited exposure to
interest rate risk.

A sensitivity analysis was conducted to examine the impact of a change in the
prime rate on the Company's advances from Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. A
variation of 1% [100 basis points], with all other wvariables held constant,
would increase or decrease the annual interest expense by approximately $588.
The Company is also exposed to fluctuations in interest rates as its
regulated rate of return is derived using a complex formulaic approach which
is in part based on the forecast for long-term Government of Canada bond
yields. This rate of return is approved by the OEB as part of the approval of
distribution rates.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

As at December 31, 2023, the Company has limited exposure to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. The Company does purchase a small proportion
of goods and services that are denominated in foreign currencies,
predominately the US dollar. The impact of the fluctuation of foreign
currencies on the gains or losses of accounts payable denoted in foreign
currencies is not material.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its obligations,
causing a financial loss to the Company. Concentration of credit risk
associated with accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of
customers the Company services. The Company has approximately 364,000
customers, the majority of which are residential. As a result, the Company
did not earn a significant amount of revenue and does not have a significant
receivable from any individual customer.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and requires
collateral to support non-residential customer accounts receivable on
specific accounts to mitigate significant losses in accordance with OEB
legislation. As at December 31, 2023, the Company held security deposits
related to power recovery and distribution sales in the amount of

$14,336 [2022 - $14,533] with respect to these customers.

The Company monitors and limits its exposure to credit risk on a continuous
basis.The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected

credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and
other receivables. The expected loss rates for trade receivables are based on
the payment profiles of sales over a period of twelve months before December
31, 2023 or December 31, 2022 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period and other information. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED]
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(c) Credit risk [continued]
On that basis, the loss allowance as at December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022 was determined as follows for trade and other receivables.

Gross carrying amount

$

Weighted average loss rate

Loss allowance

$

Net carrying amount

$

December 31, 2023
Outstanding for 30 days or less

93,099

0.00 %

93,099

Outstanding for more than 30 days but not more than 120 days 5,764

19.67 % 1,134 4,630

Outstanding for more than 120 days 5,371 41.39 % 2,223 3,148
Unbilled receivables related to electricity 86,259 0.91 % 784
85,475 190,493 4,141 186,352

December 31, 2022
Outstanding for 30 days or less

78,833
0.00 %
78,833
Outstanding for more than 30 days but not more than 120 days 8,661
13.66 % 1,183 7,478
Outstanding for more than 120 days 3,323 64.67 % 2,149 1,174
Unbilled receivables related to electricity 82,660 0.82 % 675
81,985 173,477 4,007 169,470
The following table reconciles the opening and closing loss allowance for
trade and other receivables: 2023 2022
$ $
Loss allowance, beginning of year 4,007 3,139
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 2,323 2,431
Write-offs (2,344) (1,709)
Recoveries of amounts previously written-off 155 l46
Loss allowance, end of year 4,141 4,007

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within the statement of income. When a receivable is deemed
to be uncollectible, it is written off and the expected loss allowance is
adjusted accordingly. Subsequent recoveries of receivables previously
provisioned or written off result in a reduction of impairment losses
included in operating costs in the statement of income.

As at December 31, 2023, there were no significant concentrations of credit
risk with respect to any class of financial assets or counterparties and the
Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of
accounts receivable less customer deposits held.
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15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED]

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not meet its financial
obligations as they come due. The Company's parent, Hydro Ottawa Holding
Inc., manages all the financing and investing activities for the Company. The
Company has access to credit facilities with Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. [Note
8] . These credit facilities are available to the Company to help meet its
financial obligations as they come due.

Liquidity risks associated with financial commitments are as follow:

Due within one year

$

2023
Due between one and five

years

$

Due after five

years

$

Working capital facility 65,310 - -

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 187,484 - -

Notes payable

4.97% promissory note, due December 19, 2036 - - 50,000

4.14% for the first five years [3.99% thereafter] promissory note, due

May 14, 2043 - - 107,185

2.72% for the first five years [2.61% thereafter] promissory note, due

February 3, 2025 - 138,667 -

3.77% for the first five years [3.64% thereafter] promissory note, due

February 2, 2045 - - 121,333

2.72% for the first five years [2.61% thereafter] promissory note, due

June 25, 2025 - 15,999 -

3.77% for the first five years [3.64% thereafter] promissory note, due

June 25, 2045 - - 14,001

2.66% promissory note, due October 16, 2029 - - 87,500

3.21% promissory note, due October 16, 2049 - - 162,500

3.57% grid promissory note issued July 5, 2021 and due on demand -

80,000 -

4.94% grid promissory note issued August 9, 2022 and due on demand -

30,000 -

4.56% grid promissory note issued July 6, 2023 and due on demand -

30,000 -

Interest to be paid on notes payable 28,979 77,461 270,989
281,773 372,127 813,508

16. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER SOURCES

The Company's revenue breakdown is as follows:

2023
$

2022
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Revenue from contracts with customers
Power recovery and distribution

General service (1) 604,514 587,499
Residential service (2) 420,648 422,311
Large Users (3) 61,513 63,576
1,086,675 1,073,386
Other
Service work related to distribution operations
5,921
6,681
Pole attachment and duct rentals 3,874 3,689
Capital contributions from customers amortized to revenue 3,829 3,545
Account-related charges 3,349 3,304
Shared service agreements and miscellaneous 4,933 4,361
21,906 21,580
1,108,581 1,094,966
Revenue from other sources
Other
Investment property rentals 901 1,102
Capital contributions from developers amortized to revenue 4,126 3,579
5,027 4,081
1,113,608 1,099,647

(1) General service means a service supplied to premises other than those
receiving residential service and large users and typically includes small
businesses and bulk-metered multi-unit residential establishments. This
service is provided to customers with a monthly peak demand of less than
5,000 kW averaged over a twelve-month period.

(2) Residential service means a service that is for domestic or household
purposes, including single family or individually metered multifamily units
and seasonal occupancy.

(3) Large users means a service provided to a customer with a monthly peak
demand of 5,000 kW or greater averaged over a twelve-month period.

17. OPERATING COSTS
2023
2022
$ $
Salaries, wages and benefits 72,570 77,625
Contracted services - distribution system maintenance 21,032
15,133 Contracted services - customer owned plant 6,493 6,016
Other electricity distribution costs 13,242 9,238
Other general and administrative expenses 42,513 37,922
(Gain) loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment (469)
1,239 Capital recovery (26,508) (28,632)
128,873 118,541
18. FINANCING COSTS
2023
2022
$ $
Long-term interest 28,278 26,718
Short-term interest and fees 3,730 1,324
Less: capitalized borrowing costs (694) (849)
31,314 27,193

19. INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense recognized in net income comprises the following:
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2023

2022

Current tax expense

Current income tax (recovery) expense (257) 754

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 8,574 11,625
Income tax expense recognized in net income 8,317 12,379

Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income comprises the
following: 2023

$ 2022

$

Income tax effect of actuarial (loss) gain on defined benefit obligations
(113) 845

19. INCOME TAXES [CONTINUED]

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount that would have been
recorded using the combined Canadian federal and Ontario statutory income tax
rates. A reconciliation between the statutory and effective tax rates is
provided as follows:

Federal and Ontario statutory income tax rate

2023

$

26.50 %

2022

$

26.50 %

Income before income taxes 37,115 45,085
Income taxes at statutory rate 9,835 11,948
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
Permanent differences 65 57

Provision to tax return adjustment (316) -
Current tax recovery from loss carryback (888) -
Other (379) 374

8,317 12,379

Effective income tax rate

22.41 %

27.46 %

The Company, as a rate-regulated enterprise, can recognize deferred income
tax assets and liabilities and related regulatory balances for the amount of

deferred income taxes expected to be refunded to, or recovered from,
customers in future electricity rates.

Significant components of the Company's deferred income tax liability are as
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follows:
2023
2022
$ $
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (94,999) (81,803)
Employee future benefits 4,281 4,156
Other temporary differences 8,090 3,480
(82,628) (74,167)

Movements in the deferred income tax (liability) asset during the year were
as follows: 2023

$ 2022

$

Deferred tax, beginning of year (74,167) (61,697)

Recognized in net income (8,574) (11,625)

Recognized in OCI related to employee future benefits 113 (845)
Deferred tax, end of year (82,628) (74,167)

19. INCOME TAXES [CONTINUED]

The Company's regulatory deferral account debit balance for the amounts of
deferred income taxes expected to be collected from customers in future
electricity rates is $82,622 [2022 - $74,238].

20. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL AND OTHER OPERATING BALANCES
2023

$

2022

$

Accounts receivable (16,882) (3,601)

Prepaid expenses (1,792) (1,278)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16,991 (7,9506)

Net change in accruals related to property, plant and equipment 408
(1,553)Net change in accruals related to intangible assets (854) 3,857
(2,129) (10,531)

21. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Purchasers of electricity in Ontario including the Company, through the
Independent Electricity System Operator ['IESO'], are required to provide
security to mitigate the risk of their default based on their expected
activity in the market. The IESO could draw on these guarantees if the
Company fails to make a payment required by a default notice issued by the
IESO. A prudential support obligation is calculated based upon a default
protection amount and the distributor's trading limit less a reduction for
the distributor's credit rating. As at December 31, 2023, the Company had
drawn standby letters of credit in the amount of $10,000 [2022 - $10,000]
against its credit facility to cover its prudential support obligation.

The Company participates with other electrical utilities in Ontario in an
agreement to exchange reciprocal contracts of indemnity through the Municipal
Electrical Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange. The Company is liable
for additional assessments to the extent premiums collected and reserves
established are not sufficient to cover the cost of claims and costs
incurred. If any additional assessments were required in the future, their
cost would be charged to income in the year during which they occur.
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The Company is party to connection and cost recovery agreements with HONI as
described in Note 7. Each of the Company's CCRAs has a term of 25 years. To
the extent that the cost of the project is not recoverable from future
transformation connection revenues, the Company is obligated to pay a capital
contribution equal to the difference between these revenues and the
construction costs allocated to the Company. These agreements require
periodic reviews whereby a comparison of actual to forecasted load is
conducted, and a true-up calculation performed. When a true-up calculation
shows the Company's actual load for the past period and updated load forecast
for the future period are lower than the initial load, the Company is
obligated to make up this shortfall. When the Company's actual load and
updated load forecast are higher than the initial load, the Company is
entitled to a rebate. HONI is expected to perform true-up calculations in
years 5 and 10 and in year 15 if the difference between the actual
incremental load and initial load at the end of year 10 is greater than 20%.
Various lawsuits have been filed against the Company for incidents that arose
in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the
outcomes of the lawsuits, now pending, are neither determinable nor material.
Should any loss result from the resolution of these claims, such losses would
be claimed through the Company's insurance carrier, with any unrecoverable
amounts charged to income in the year of resolution.

22. COMMITMENTS

The Company has $119,368 in total open commitments for 2024 to 2030. This
includes commitments relating to IT infrastructure management services,
construction projects, and overhead and underground services.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties occur in the normal course of business, and
are transacted at the amount of consideration determined and agreed to by the
related parties. Trade amounts due from and to related parties are
non-interest bearing, result from normal operations and are due within one
year.

(a) Transactions with ultimate shareholder and its subsidiaries

During the year, the Company earned revenue from the sale of electricity to
the City of Ottawa and its subsidiaries, which is billed at prices and terms
approved by the OEB, and earned other revenue totaling $294 [2022 - $364].
The Company also received $4,235 [2022 - $6,055] in contributions relating to
the upgrade and/or expansion of the Company's existing electricity
distribution infrastructure.

The Company incurred $3,399 [2022 - $3,298] in property taxes and $nil [2022
- $431] in conservation and demand management rebate costs, and purchased
$994 [2022 - $1,269] in fuel, permits and other services during the year,
which is included in operating costs. The Company also incurred $55 [2022 -
$846] in building permit costs and development charges, which are included in
property, plant and equipment.

At December 31, 2023, the Company's accounts receivable and customer deposits
include $8,605 [2022 - $9,833] and

$1,866 [2022 - $1,711], respectively, while the Company's accounts payable
and accrued liabilities include $152 [2022 -

$207] due to the City of Ottawa and its subsidiaries.

(b) Transactions with parent

During the year, the Company earned revenue of $1,335 [2022 - $1,386]
relating to the provision of administrative and corporate services and
interest charges.

The Company incurred $6,437 [2022 - $5,023] in operating costs related to the
purchase of administrative and corporate support services that includes
compensation for certain key management personnel, and $3,717 [2022 - $1,310]
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in short- term financing costs.

At December 31, 2023, the Company's accounts payable and accrued liabilities
include $2,980 [2022 - $4,183] due in respect of the transactions described.
The Company incurred $28,278 [2022 - $26,718] in financing costs during the
year on its notes payable to Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. described in Note 12
of these financial statements.

(c) Transactions with other related parties

During the year, the Company earned revenue from the sale of electricity to
other related parties, which is billed at prices and terms approved by the
OEB, and earned other revenue of $4,062 [2022 - $3,489]. The Company also
received $343 [2022 - $326] in contributions relating to the upgrade and/or
expansion of the Company's existing electricity distribution infrastructure.
During the year, the Company purchased power of $13,499 [2022 - $23,732],
acquired property, plant and equipment of $2,200 [2022 - $437], and incurred
$411 [2022 - $233] in operating costs.

In 2023, the Company sold investment property to a related party for cash
proceeds of $523. No gain or loss was recognized on the transaction.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [CONTINUED]

(c) Transactions with other related parties [continued]

At December 31, 2023, the Company's accounts receivable include $837 [2022 -
$724] due in respect of the transactions above while accounts payable and
accrued liabilities include $3,974 [2022 - $4,305] due to other related
parties.




Form identifier 100

2023-12-31

GENERAL INDEX OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION - GIFI

2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL
Page 68 of 155
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

SCHEDULE 100

Name of corporation
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Year Month Day

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31
Assets — lines 1000 to 2599
186,352,000 1,139,000 6,172,000
193,663,000 160,978,000 -22,975,000
1,780,012,000 -375,434,000 479,000
1,941,469,000 -398,409,000 174,143,000
-68,692,000 174,143,000 -68,692,000
131,843,000 131,843,000 1,974,017,000
Liabilities — lines 2600 to 3499
187,484,000 65,310,000 8,399,000
261,193,000 837,185,000 281,734,000
82,628,000 11,875,000 33,289,000
1,246,711,000 1,507,904,000
Shareholder equity — lines 3500 to 3640
167,081,000 299,032,000 466,113,000
1,974,017,000
Retained earnings — lines 3660 to 3849
270,234,000 28,798,000 299,032,000

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11

VERSION 2024 V1.0
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SCHEDULE 125

Name of corporation Business Number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31
— Description
Sequence number ... ... 01
Revenue - lines 8000 to 8299
8000 1,117,944,000 8089 1,117,944,000 469,000
8299 1,118,413,000
Cost of sales — lines 8300 to 8519
878,410,000 878,410,000 239,534,000
Operating expenses — lines 8520 to 9369
8,646,000 55,441,000 31,314,000
13,242,000 9060 72,570,000 27,525,000
-21,855,000 16,005,000 202,888,000
9368 1,081,298,000 37,115,000
Extraordinary items and taxes — lines 9970 to 9999
9970 37,115,000 9990 -257,000 8,574,000

9999 28,798,000

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0

Page 1
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business number

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year-end
Year Month Day
2023-12-31

® Use this schedule to reconcile the corporation's net income (loss) as reported on the financial statements and its net income (loss) for tax purposes. For more

information, see the T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.
® All legislative references are to the Income Tax Act.

Net income (loss) after taxes and extraordinary items from line 9999 of Schedule 125

Add:

Provision for income taxes — current
Provision for income taxes — deferred
Interest and penalties on taxes
Amortization of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of assets
Charitable donations and gifts from Schedule 2
Scientific research expenditures deducted per financial statements
Non-deductible meals and entertainment expenses
Other reserves on lines 270 and 275 from Schedule 13

Reserves from financial statements — balance at the end of the year

Subtotal of additions

Add:
Other additions:
1 2
Description Amount

1 | Inducement under 12(1)(x) ITA 23,673

2 | Employee Future Benefits expensed in F/S 877,700

3 | Bonus accrual not paid in 180 days after the YE 65,272

4 | Capital lease payment expensed in P&L 28,930

Total of column 2 995,575 Vm

Amount A plus line 500

Deduct:
Capital cost allowance from Schedule 8

Other reserves on line 280 from Schedule 13

Reserves from financial statements — balance at the beginning of the year

Subtotal of other additions I3
Total additions m

Subtotal of deductions

Deduct:
Other deductions:
1 2
Description Amount
705 | 395 |
1 | AFUDC [13(7.4) election] 694,333
2 | Employee Future Benefits paid during the year 842,900
3 | Deferred Revenue Amortization 7,725,415
4 | IBM lease payment 102,253
5 |ITC recorded in P&L 179,986

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0

28,798,000 A

-257,000

77,334

10,037

55,441,000

8,646,000

635,382

59,554

5,408,723

106,683

6,796,232

4,140,541

81,064,486 P 81,064,486

995,575

995,575 P 995,575 D

82,060,061 p> 82,060,061

110,858,061 B

88,812,506

6,775,541

4,006,232

99,594,279 » 99,594,279
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1 2

Description Amount

705 EX
6 | Current SRED exp capitalized in acctg 4,643,539
Prior year bonus true up - accounting 35,872
8 0

Total of column 2 14,224,298 > Y

Net income (loss) for income tax purposes (amount B minus line 510)

Enter amount C on line 300 of the T2 return.

Subtotal of other deductions m

Total deductions m
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14,224,298

14,224,298 P 14,224,298 E

113,818,577 » 113,818,577

-2,960,516 ¢

T2 SCH 1 E (19)
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This form is used to calculate inducements that a corporation must add to its income under paragraph 12(1)(x) ITA. If an amount reduces the capital cost
of a property, this amount will be indicated in Part "Tax credits whose amount should reduce the capital cost of property.”

If you want to transfer an amount to Schedule 1 and include it in the corporation’s income for tax purposes, select the corresponding check box in column A.
You can also select the option Select this check box to add all the amounts to income calculated in Schedule 1 to transfer all the amounts to Schedule 1.
In either case, the column A check box will be selected for that amount and it will therefore be updated to Schedule 1.

Tax credits whose amount should be added to income

Federal

I I

ey

Investment tax credit from apprenticeship job creation expenditures ... .......
Investment tax credit from child care spaces expenditures ~  ...............

Canadian film or video production tax credit* . ....... ... .. . . . o L.

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property.
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Film or video production services tax credit* .. ........ ... ... .. . . ...

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property.
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Investment tax credit claimed on contributions made to SR&ED farming organizations

Canadian journalism labour tax credit .. ... ... ...
Return of fuel charge proceeds to farmers tax credit .. .................

Air quality improvement tax credit* ... ... oo

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Ontario

>

OO xO O O O Od

Portion of the Ontario research and development tax credit that relates to the prescribed proxy amount (PPA) and
portion of the Ontario investment tax credit that relates to contributions made to SR&ED farming organizations . ..........

Ontario co-operative education tax credit . ... ... ... .. . ..

Ontario computer animation and special effects tax credit* . ..............

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property.
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Ontario film and television tax credit* ... ... ... .. ... . .. . .. . .

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property.
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Ontario production services tax credit* . ... ... . . o e

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property.
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Ontario interactive digital media tax credit* .. .... ... .. ... . . . oL,

* Please verify if the credit amount relates to depreciable property.
For more information, consult the Help (F1).

Ontario book publishing tax credit ~ ......... ... ... . .

Portion of the Ontario innovation tax credit that relates to the prescribed proxy amount (PPA) and portion of the
Ontario investment tax credit that relates to contributions made to SR&ED farming organizations . ..................

Ontario business-research institute tax credit ... ....... ... .. ... .. ...

Ontario community food program donation tax credit for farmers .. ..........

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0
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Tax credits whose amount should reduce the capital cost of property
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Charitable Donations and Gifts

86339 1363 RC0001

Schedule 2

Corporation's name

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business number

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year-end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

® For use by corporations to claim any of the following:

— the eligible amount of charitable donations to qualified donees

— the Ontario, Nova Scotia, and British Columbia food donation tax credits for farmers
— the eligible amount of gifts of certified cultural property

— the eligible amount of gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land or

— the additional deduction for gifts of medicine made before March 22, 2017

e All legislative references are to the federal Income Tax Act, unless stated otherwise.
® The eligible amount of a gift is the amount by which the fair market value of the gifted property exceeds the amount of an advantage, if any, for the gift.

e The donations and gifts can be carried forward for 5 years except for gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land made after February 10, 2014,
which can be carried forward for 10 years.

® Use this schedule to show a transfer of unused amounts from previous years following an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary as described under
subsections 87(1) and 88(1).
® Subsection 110.1(1.2) provides as follows:
— Where a particular corporation has undergone an acquisition of control, for tax years that end on or after the acquisition of control, no corporation can
claim a deduction for a gift made by the particular corporation to a qualified donee before the acquisition of control.
— If a particular corporation makes a gift to a qualified donee pursuant to an arrangement under which both the gift and the acquisition of control is
expected, no corporation can claim a deduction for the gift unless the person acquiring control of the particular corporation is the qualified donee.
* An eligible medical gift made before March 22, 2017, to a qualifying organization for activities outside of Canada may be eligible for an additional deduction.
Calculate the additional deduction in Part 5.
® File this schedule with your T2 Corporation Income Tax Return.

® For more information, see the T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.

— Part 1 — Charitable donations

Charity/Recipient Amount ($100 or more only)
Canadian Cancer Society 100
CanadaHelps CanaDon 100
The Ottawa Hospital 100
Heart & Stroke Foundation 100
The Ottawa Hospital 100
Anglican Diocese of Ottawa 100
United Way 200
Heart & Stroke Foundation 102
Algonquin College 5,000
My Tribute Gift Foundation 200
Canadian Tire Jumpstart Charities 200
Renfrew County South 400
United Way 49,602
Our Youth at Work Association 1,000
Ian Anderson House Foundation 250
Wabano Centre for Aboriginal Health 1,750
Canadian Cancer Society 200

Subtotal 59,504
Add: Total donations of less than $100 each 50
Total donations in current tax year 59,554
T2 SCH 2 E (23) Canad'é'

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0

Page 1



2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 75 of 155

2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

— Part 1 — Charitable donations

Federal Québec Alberta
Charitable donations at the end of the previous tax year ... .......... 27,550 1A 27,550 27,550
Charitable donations expired after five tax years® . .............
Charitable donations at the beginning of the current tax year
(@Mount TA MINUS 1N 239) .« v v v v ve e e e e 240 27,550 27,550 27,550
Charitable donations transferred on an amalgamation or the
wind-up of a subsidiary ... ...
Total charitable donations made in the currentyear . ............ 59,554 59,554 59,554
(include this amount on line 112 of Schedule 1, Net Income (Loss) for
Income Tax Purposes)
Subtotal (line 250 plus line 210) 59,554 1B 59,554 59,554

Subtotal (line 240 plus amount 1B) 87,104 1C 87,104 87,104
Adjustment for an acquisition of control . .. ............ .. ... @
Total charitable donations available (amount 1C minus line 255) . ....... 87,104 1D 87,104 87,104
Amount applied in the current year against taxable income
(cannot be more than amount2H inPart2) ................. m

(enter this amount on line 311 of the T2 return)

Charitable donations closing balance
(@mount 1D MINUS N€ 260) - .« « o v v e et e 280 87,104 87,104 87,104

The amount of qualifying donations for the Ontario community food
program donation tax credit for farmers included in the amount on
line 260 (for donations made after December 31, 2013) .+ . . ... .. .. EA

Ontario community food program donation tax credit for farmers
(amount on line 262 multiplied by 25%) 1

Enter amount 1 on line 420 of Schedule 5, Tax Calculation Supplementary — Corporations. The maximum you can claim in the current year is whichever
is less: the Ontario income tax otherwise payable or amount 1. For more information, see section 103.1.2 of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario).

The amount of qualifying donations for the Nova Scotia food bank tax
credit for farmers included in the amount on line 260 (for donations made

after DECember 31, 2015)  + + v v v e et ee e
Nova Scotia food bank tax credit for farmers
(amount on line 263 multiplied by 25%) .o 2

Enter amount 2 on line 570 of Schedule 5, Tax Calculation Supplementary — Corporations. The maximum you can claim in the current year is whichever
is less: the Nova Scotia income tax otherwise payable or amount 2. For more information, see section 50A of the Nova Scotia Income Tax Act.

The amount of qualifying gifts for the British Columbia farmers' food
donation tax credit included in the amount on line 260 (for donations
made after February 16, 2016, and before January 1,2027) ....... m

British Columbia farmers' food donation tax credit
(amount on line 265 multiplied by 25%) .o 3

Enter amount 3 on line 683 of Schedule 5, Tax Calculation Supplementary — Corporations. The maximum you can claim in the current year is whichever
is less: the British Columbia income tax otherwise payable or amount 3. For more information, see section 20.1 of the British Columbia Income Tax Act.

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts expire after five tax years. For Québec tax purposes, donations and gifts made in a tax year
that ended before March 24, 2006, expire after five tax years; otherwise, donations and gifts expire after twenty tax years.

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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— Amounts carried forward — Charitable donations

Year of origin: Federal Québec Alberta
1Stprioryear ... 2022-12-31 27,550 27,550 27,550
2" DHOT YEAr oot 2021-12-31

39prioryear ... 2020-12-31

4N prioryear ... 2019-12-31

SMprioryear ... 2018-12-31

6" prior year* ... ... 2017-12-31

7N prioryear ... 2016-12-31

8 prioryear ... .. 2015-12-31

9 prioryear ... 2014-12-31

10M prioryear ... ... 2013-12-31

MM prioryear ... ... 2012-12-31

12Mprioryear ... 2011-12-31

13" prioryear ... ... 2010-12-31

14N prioryear ... 2009-12-31

15N prioryear ... ... 2008-12-31

16" prioryear ... ... 2007-12-31

17Mprioryear ... 2006-12-31

18" prioryear ... ... 2005-12-31

19" prioryear ... ... 2004-12-31

20M prioryear ... 2003-12-31

21 prioryear* ... 2002-12-31

Total (10 NEA) oo ettt 27,550 27,550 27,550

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts included on line 6" prior year expire automatically in the current tax year. For Québec tax purposes,
donations and gifts made in a tax year that ended before March 24, 2006, that are included on line 6™ prior year and donations and gifts that are included
on line 21" prior year expire automatically in the current tax year.

— Part 2 — Maximum allowable deduction for charitable donations

Net income for tax purposes (Note 1) multiplied by 75 % .. .. . e 2A
Taxable capital gains arising in respect of gifts of capital property included in Part 1 (Note 2) . ... E
Taxable capital gain in respect of a disposition of a non-qualifying security
UNDEr SUBSECHON 40(1.01)  + e v e et e e e e e e e e ettt e e
The amount of the recapture of capital cost
allowance in respect of charitable donations .. ..........
Proceeds of disposition, less
outlays and expenses (Note 2) . ..... 2B
Capital cost (Note2) ............ 2C
Amount 2B or 2C, whicheverisless  .....................
Amount on line 230 or 235, whicheverisless .. ... ... .. 2D
Subtotal (add lines 225, 227, and amount 2D) 2E
Amount 2E multiplied by 25 % 2F
Subtotal (amount 2A plus amount 2F) 2G

Maximum allowable deduction for charitable donations
(enter amount 1D from Part 1, amount 2G, or net income for tax purposes, whicheveristheleast)  .................... 2H

Note 1: For credit unions, this amount is before the deduction of bonus interest payments and payments pursuant to allocations in proportion to borrowing
made by the credit union that is otherwise deductible under subsection 137(2).

Note 2: This amount must be prorated by the following calculation: eligible amount of the gift divided by the proceeds of disposition of the gift.

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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— Part 3 — Gifts of certified cultural property
Federal Québec Alberta

Gifts of certified cultural property at the end of the previous tax year ... ... 3A
Gifts of certified cultural property expired after five tax years* ....... 439
Gifts of certified cultural property at the beginning
of the current tax year (amount 3Aminus line439) ............. m
Gifts of certified cultural property transferred on an amalgamation
or the wind-up of a subsidiary .. ...... ... ... .. . . . .. ., 450
Total gifts of certified cultural property in the currentyear . ........ 410
(include this amount on line 112 of Schedule 1)

Subtotal (line 450 plus line 410) 3B

Subtotal (line 440 plus amount 3B) 3C

Adjustment for an acquisition of control . ...... ... ... .. L. 455
Amount applied in the current year against taxable income .......... 460
(enter this amount on line 313 of the T2 return)

Subtotal (line 455 plus line 460) 3D
Gifts of certified cultural property closing balance
(amount 3C minus amount 3D) . .. ... 480

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts expire after five tax years. For Québec tax purposes, donations and gifts made in a tax year that
ended before March 24, 2006, expire after five tax years; otherwise, donations and gifts expire after twenty tax years.

— Amount carried forward — Gifts of certified cultural property

Federal Québec Alberta

Year of origin:

1tprioryear ... 2022-12-31
2" DHOT YEAr oot 2021-12-31
39prioryear ... 2020-12-31
4N prioryear ... 2019-12-31
SMprioryear ... 2018-12-31
6" prior year* ... ... 2017-12-31
7N prioryear ... 2016-12-31
8 prioryear ... 2015-12-31
O prioryear ... 2014-12-31
10M prioryear ... ... 2013-12-31
MM prioryear ... ... 2012-12-31
12Mprioryear ... 2011-12-31
13" prioryear ... 2010-12-31
14N prioryear ... ... 2009-12-31
15N prioryear ... ... 2008-12-31
16" prioryear ... ... 2007-12-31
17Mprioryear ... 2006-12-31
18" prioryear ... ... 2005-12-31
19" prioryear ... ... 2004-12-31
20M prioryear ... 2003-12-31
21 prioryear* ... 2002-12-31

Total

donations and gifts made in a tax year that ended before March 24, 2006, that are included on line 6™ prior year and donations and gifts that are included
on line 21 prior year expire automatically in the current tax year.

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts included on line 6" prior year expire automatically in the current tax year. For Québec tax purposes,

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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— Part 4 — Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land

Federal Québec Alberta

Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land at the end of the previous tax year 4A
Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land expired after
5 tax years, or after 10 tax years for gifts made after
February 10, 2014% . . i e 539
Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land at the beginning
of the current tax year (amount 4A minus line539) ............. m
Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land transferred on an
amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary ~— .................... m
Total current-year gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land .. ... .. m
(include this amount on line 112 of Schedule 1)

Subtotal (line 550 plus line 520) 4B

Subtotal (line 540 plus amount 4B) 4C

Adjustment for an acquisition of control . ....... .. ... ... L m
Amount applied in the current year against taxable income
(enter this amount on line 314 of the T2 return) ................... m

Subtotal (line 555 plus line 560) 4D

Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land closing balance
(@amount 4C minus amount4D)  ........... ... . . .., m

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts made before February 11, 2014, expire after five tax years and gifts made after February 10, 2014,
expire after ten tax years. For Québec tax purposes, donations and gifts made during a tax year that ended before March 24, 2006, expire after five tax years;
otherwise, donation and gifts expire after twenty tax years.

— Amounts carried forward — Gifts of certified ecologically sensitive land

Amount of carried forward gifts made on or after February 11, 2014, in the tax year including thisdate . ...............

Year of origin: Federal Québec Alberta
1tprioryear ... 2022-12-31
2" DHOT YEAr oot 2021-12-31
39prioryear ... 2020-12-31
4™ prioryear ... 2019-12-31
SMprioryear ... 2018-12-31
6" prior year* ... ... 2017-12-31
7N prioryear ... 2016-12-31
8 prioryear ... ... 2015-12-31
O prioryear ... 2014-12-31
10M prioryear ... ... 2013-12-31
MM prioryear* ... 2012-12-31
12Mprioryear ... 2011-12-31
13" prioryear ... ... 2010-12-31
14N prioryear ... 2009-12-31
15N prioryear ... ... 2008-12-31
16" prioryear ... ... 2007-12-31
17Mprioryear ... 2006-12-31
18" prioryear ... ... 2005-12-31
19" prioryear ... ... 2004-12-31
20M prioryear ... 2003-12-31
21 prioryear* ... 2002-12-31
Total .. e

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts made before February 11, 2014, that are included on line 6" prior year and gifts that are included on
line 11" prior year expire automatically in the current year.

The field "Amount of carried forward gifts made on or after February 11, 2014, in the tax year including this date" is used to distinguish the portion of the gifts
made in the tax year straddling February 11, 2014, that expires after ten tax years, from the portion that expires in the current tax year.

For Québec tax purposes, donations and gifts made during a tax year that ended before March 24, 2006, that are included on line 6" prior year and gifts that
are included on line 27 prior year expire automatically in the current tax year.

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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— Part 5 — Additional deduction for gifts of medicine

Additional deduction for gifts of medicine at the end of the previous tax year

Additional deduction for gifts of medicine expired after five tax years* . . [Xi]
Additional deduction for gifts of medicine at the beginning of the
current tax year (amount 5Aminus line639) ................ m

Additional deduction for gifts of medicine made before March 22, 2017
transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary . ... .. m

Additional deduction for gifts of medicine made before March 22, 2017:
Proceeds of disposition
Cost of gifts of medicine made before March 22,2017 .......... 601

Subtotal (line 602 minus line 601)
Amount 5B multiplied by
Eligible amount of gifts

deduction for gifts
a X ( b ) = 2017 ol 610
c
of medicine made
Additional
Alberta before March 22,
a is the lesser of line 601 and amount 5C

Additional
of medicine made
Federal before March 22,
Additional
deduction for gifts
Québec before March 22,
a x ( b ) = 2017
c
deduction for gifts
of medicine made
a x ( b ) = 2017
c
where:
b is the eligible amount of gifts (line 600)
c is the proceeds of disposition (line 602)

Subtotal (line 650 plus line 610)
Subtotal (line 640 plus amount 5D)

Adjustment for an acquisition of control . . ... ... ... ... L. 655
Amount applied in the current year against taxable income . ....... 660
(enter this amount on line 315 of the T2 return)

Subtotal (line 655 plus line 660)

Additional deduction for gifts of medicine closing balance
(amount 5E minus amount 5F) (Note 3) . ..................

Note 3: The amount at line 680 is not available for carryforward.

Federal

Québec Alberta
5A

5B

5C

5D

5E

5F

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts expire after five tax years. For Québec tax purposes, donations and gifts made in a tax year that
ended before March 19, 2007, expire after five tax years; otherwise, donations and gifts expire after twenty tax years.

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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— Amounts carried forward — Additional deduction for gifts of medicine

Year of origin: Federal Québec Alberta
1tprioryear ... 2022-12-31
2" PHOT YEAr oot 2021-12-31
39prioryear ... ... 2020-12-31
4N prioryear ... 2019-12-31
SMprioryear ... 2018-12-31
6" prior year* ... ... 2017-12-31
7N prioryear ... 2016-12-31
8 prioryear ... ... 2015-12-31
O prioryear ... 2014-12-31
10M prioryear ... ... 2013-12-31
MM prioryear .. ... 2012-12-31
12Mprioryear ... ... 2011-12-31
13" prioryear ... ... 2010-12-31
14N prioryear ... ... 2009-12-31
15N prioryear ... ... 2008-12-31
16" prioryear ... ... ... 2007-12-31
17Mprioryear ... 2006-12-31
18" prioryear ... ... 2005-12-31
19" prioryear ... ... 2004-12-31
20" prioryear ... 2003-12-31
21 prioryear* ... 2002-12-31
Total .. e

* For federal and Alberta tax purposes, donations and gifts included on line 6" prior year expire automatically in the current tax year. For Québec tax purposes,
donations and gifts made in a tax year that ended before March 19, 2007, that are included on line 6" prior year and donations and gifts that are included on
line 21 prior year expire automatically in the current tax year.

— Québec — Gifts of musical instruments

Gifts of musical instruments at the end of the previous tax year .. . ... . . . L e A
Deduct: Gifts of musical instruments expired after twenty taxyears .. .. ... . L e B
Gifts of musical instruments at the beginning of the tax year . . . . . ... C
Add:
Gifts of musical instruments transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary ~ .............. .. ....... D
Total current-year gifts of musical inStruments . . . . . e e
Subtotal (line D plus line E) F
Deduct: Adjustment for an acquisition of control = . . .. L e e G
Total gifts of musical instruments available . . ... L e e e H

Deduct: Amount applied against taxable income (enter this amount on line 255 of form CO-17) . ... ... .. ... .. ... |
Gifts of musical instruments closing balance . . . . . L e e

[

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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Year of origin:
1%t prior year
2" prior year
3" prior year
4" prior year
5" prior year
6" prior year
7™ prior year
8" prior year
9" prior year
10" prior year
11" prior year
12" prior year
13" prior year
14" prior year
15" prior year
16" prior year
17" prior year
18" prior year
19" prior year
20" prior year

Total

— Amounts carried forward — Gifts of musical instruments

21% prior year*

2023-12-31
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
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2022-12-31

Québec

2021-12-31

2020-12-31

2019-12-31

2018-12-31

2017-12-31

2016-12-31

2015-12-31

2014-12-31

2013-12-31

2012-12-31

2011-12-31

2010-12-31

2009-12-31

2008-12-31

2007-12-31

2006-12-31

2005-12-31

2004-12-31

2003-12-31

2002-12-31

* These gifts expired in the current year.

T2 SCH 2 E (23)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

*I Canada Revenue  Agence du revenu Schedule 4
Agency du Canada

Corporation Loss Continuity and Application

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end

Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

Use this form to determine the continuity and use of available losses; to determine a current-year non-capital loss, farm loss, restricted farm loss, or limited
partnership loss; to determine the amount of restricted farm loss and limited partnership loss that can be applied in a year; and to ask for a loss carryback to
previous years.

A corporation can choose whether or not to deduct an available loss from income in a tax year. The corporation can deduct losses in any order. However, for
each type of loss, deduct the oldest loss first.

According to subsection 111(4) of the federal Income Tax Act, when control has been acquired, no amount of capital loss incurred for a tax year ending before
that time is deductible in computing taxable income in a tax year ending after that time. Also, no amount of capital loss incurred in a tax year ending after

that time is deductible in computing taxable income of a tax year ending before that time.

When control has been acquired, subsection 111(5) provides for similar treatment of non-capital and farm losses, except as listed in

paragraphs 111(5)(a) and (b).

e For information on these losses, see the T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.
e File this schedule with the T2 return, or send the schedule by itself to the tax centre where the return is filed.
® All legislative references are to the federal Income Tax Act.

Determination of current-year non-capital loss

Net income (I0Ss) fOr iNCOME taX PUIPOSES . v vttt e et e e e et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e -2,960,516 1A
Net capital losses deducted in the year (enter as a positive amount) .. ................... 1B
Taxable dividends deductible under section 112 or subsections 113(1) or 138(6) . ............ 1C
Amount of Part VI.1 tax deductible under paragraph 110(1)(k)  .......... ... . . . ... 1D
Amount deductible as prospector's and grubstaker's shares — Paragraph 110(1)(d.2)  ......... 1E
Employer deduction for non-qualified securities — Paragraph 110(1)(e) . ......... .. ... .... 1F
Subtotal (total of amounts 1B to 1F) > 1G
Subtotal (amount 1A minus amount 1G; if positive, enter "0" -2,960,516 1H
Section 110.5 or subparagraph 115(1)(a)(vii) — Addition for foreign tax deductions . ... ... .. ... . .. .. ... 11
Subtotal (amount 1H minus amount 11) -2,960,516 14
Current-year farm loss (the lesser of: the net loss from farming or fishing included in income and the non-capital loss before
deducting the farm 10SS) .. L. e e 1K
Current-year non-capital loss (amount 1J plus amount 1K; if positive, enter "0") . ... ... i e -2,960,516 1L

Continuity of non-capital losses and request for a carryback

Note 1: A non-capital loss expires after 20 tax years and an allowable business investment loss becomes a net capital loss after 10 tax years.

Note 2: Subsidiary is defined in subsection 88(1) as a taxable Canadian corporation of which 90% or more of each class of issued shares are owned by

Part 1 — Non-capital losses

If amount 1L is negative, enter it on line 110 as a positive.

Non-capital loss at the end of the previous taxyear .. ... ... ... .. .. . .. .. .. 1™

Non-capital loss expired (note 1) .. ... ... .. ...
Non-capital losses at the beginning of the tax year (amount 1M minus line 100) ......... | 2

Non-capital losses transferred on an amalgamation or on the wind-up of a subsidiary (note 2)
COTPOratiON L o e e e ﬁ

Current-year non-capital oss (from amount 1L) . ..o vt ittt et 2,960,516
Subtotal (line 105 plus line 110) 2,960,516 p 2,960,516 1N
Subtotal (line 102 plus amount 1N) 2,960,516 10

its parent corporation and the remaining shares are owned by persons that deal at arm's length with the parent corporation.

T2 SCH 4 E (21) Canada
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~ Part 1 — Non-capital losses (continued)

Other adjustments (includes adjustments for an acquisition of control) . ............... E
Section 80 — Adjustments for forgiven amounts . ... ... Lo o
Subsection 111(10) — Adjustments for fuel tax rebate .. ... ... . ... L
Non-capital losses of previous tax years applied in the currenttaxyear . ..............
Enter line 130 on line 331 of the T2 return.

Current and previous years non-capital losses applied against current-year

taxable dividends subjectto Part IVtax (note3)  ......... ... ... ... ... . ... ... ...

Subtotal (total of lines 150, 140, 130 and 135) >

1P

Non-capital losses before any request for a carryback (amount 10 minus amount 1P)

Request to carry back non-capital loss to:

First previous tax year to reduce taxable income .. ...... ... .. .. o ..

Second previous tax year to reduce taxable income . ........... .. .. . ... ... 2,960,516

Third previous tax year to reduce taxable income .. ... ... . ... .. ...

First previous tax year to reduce taxable dividends subject to Part IV tax

Second previous tax year to reduce taxable dividends subject to Part IV tax

Third previous tax year to reduce taxable dividends subject to Part IV tax
Total of requests to carry back non-capital losses to previous tax years (total of lines 901 to 913) 2,960,516 b

2,960,516 1Q

2,960,516 1R

Closing balance of non-capital losses to be carried forward to future tax years (amount 1Q minus amount 1R) m

Note 3: Line 135 is the total of lines 330 and 335 from Schedule 3, Dividends Received, Taxable Dividends Paid, and Part IV Tax Calculation.

~ Part 2 — Capital losses

Continuity of capital losses and request for a carryback

Capital losses at the end of the previous taxyear . ........ ... ... . ... ... .. ... ....
Capital losses transferred on an amalgamation or on the wind-up of a subsidiary corporation
Subtotal (line 200 plus line 205) > 2A
Other adjustments (includes adjustments for an acquisition of control) .. ...............
Section 80 — Adjustments for forgiven amounts . ... ... .. . Lo L
Subtotal (line 250 plus line 240) > 2B
Subtotal (amount 2A minus amount 2B) 2C
Current-year capital loss (from the calculation on Schedule 6, Summary of Dispositions of Capital Property)  ........... m
Unused non-capital losses from the 11th previous tax year (note 4) .. .................. 2D
Allowable business investment losses (ABILs) that expired as non-capital losses at the end of the
previous tax year (note 5) ... e e 2E
Enter amount 2D or 2E, whicheverisless ... ....... ... . . . . . . . e m
ABILs expired as non-capital losses: line 215 multiplied by 2.000000 L. m
Subtotal (amount 2C plus line 210 plus line 220) 2F
Note
If there has been an amalgamation or a wind—up of a subsidiary, do a separate calculation of the ABIL expired as
non-capital loss for each predecessor or subsidiary corporation. Add all these amounts and enter the total on line 220.
Note 4: Determine the amount of the non-capital loss from the 11th previous tax year, and enter the part of the non-capital loss that was not deducted in
the previous 11 years.
Note 5: Enter the amount of the ABILs from the 11th previous tax year. Enter the full amount on amount 2E.
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~ Part 2 — Capital losses (continued)

Capital losses from previous tax years applied against the current-year net capital gain (note 6) . .................. E
Capital losses before any request for a carryback (amount 2F minus line 225) 2G

Request to carry back capital loss to (note 7):

Capital gain Amount carried back
(100%) (100%)
First previous taxyear ........... ... .. . ... . ..o
Second previous tax year .. ...... .. 1,653,572 M
Third previous tax year — ........ ... ...
Subtotal (total of lines 951 to 953) > 2H

Closing balance of capital losses to be carried forward to future tax years (amount 2G minus amount 2H) (note 8) m

Note 6: To get the net capital losses required to reduce the taxable capital gain included in the net income (loss) for the current tax year, enter the
amount from line 225 divided by 2 at line 332 of the T2 return.

Note 7: On line 225, 951, 952, or 953, whichever applies, enter the actual amount of the loss. When the loss is applied, divide this amount by 2. The
result represents the 50% inclusion rate.

Note 8: Capital losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

~ Part 3 — Farm losses

Continuity of farm losses and request for a carryback

Farm losses at the end of the previous taxyear . ........ ... ... ... . . ... . ... i 3A
Farm loss expired (note 9) . . . ... e
Farm losses at the beginning of the tax year (amount 3A minus line 300)  .............. >
Farm losses transferred on an amalgamation or on the wind—up of a subsidiary corporation .
Current-year farm loss (amount 1K in Part 1) . ... ... ... .. . .
Subtotal (line 305 plus line 310) > 3B
Subtotal (line 302 plus amount 3B) 3C
Other adjustments (includes adjustments for an acquisition of control) .. ............... 350
Section 80 — Adjustments for forgiven amounts ... ... 340
Farm losses of previous tax years applied in the currenttaxyear .. .................. 330
Enter line 330 on line 334 of the T2 Return.
Current and previous years farm losses applied against
current-year taxable dividends subject to Part IVtax (note 10) . .....................
Subtotal (total of lines 350, 340, 330 and 335) > 3D
Farm losses before any request for a carryback (amount 3C minus amount 3D) 3E

Request to carry back farm loss to:
First previous tax year to reduce taxable income .. ... ... .. .. oo,
Second previous tax year to reduce taxable income ... .. ... .. Lo L.,
Third previous tax year to reduce taxable income  ......... .. ... .. oL
First previous tax year to reduce taxable dividends subject to Part IV tax
Second previous tax year to reduce taxable dividends subject to Part IV tax
Third previous tax year to reduce taxable dividends subject to Part IV tax

Subtotal (total of lines 921 to 933) > 3F

Closing balance of farm losses to be carried forward to future tax years (amount 3E minus amount 3F) m

Note 9: Afarm loss expires after 20 tax years.

Note 10: Line 335 is the total of lines 340 and 345 from Schedule 3.
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— Part 4 — Restricted farm losses

Current-year restricted farm loss

Total losses for the year from farming business . . . . ... m
(line 485 —$2,500) dividedby2 ....... 4A
Amount 4Aor $ 15,000 , whicheverisless .............. > 4B
2,500 4c
Subtotal (amount 4B plus amount 4C) 2,500 2,500 4D
Current-year restricted farm loss (line 485 minus amount 4D) 4E

Continuity of restricted farm losses and request for a carryback

Restricted farm losses at the end of the previous taxyear . ........... ... . ... . ... ...... 4F
Restricted farm loss expired (note 11) . .. ... .. ... 400
Restricted farm losses at the beginning of the tax year (amount 4F minus line 400) ....... 402 >

Restricted farm losses transferred on an amalgamation or on the wind-up

of a subsidiary corporation ... ... 405
Current-year restricted farm loss (from amount4E) . ...... .. ... ... ... ... . ... ... 410
Enter line 410 on line 233 of Schedule 1, Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes.
Subtotal (line 405 plus line 410) > 4G
Subtotal (line 402 plus amount 4G) 4H
Restricted farm losses from previous tax years applied against current farming income ... .. 430
Enter line 430 on line 333 of the T2 return.
Section 80 — Adjustments for forgiven amounts .. ... ... 440
Other adjustments .. ...t e 450
Subtotal (total of lines 430 to 450) > 4|
Restricted farm losses before any request for a carryback (amount 4H minus amount 41) 4J

Request to carry back restricted farm loss to:

First previous tax year to reduce farming income .. ....... .. .. ... ... i 941
Second previous tax year to reduce farming income .. ... ... ... e 942
Third previous tax year to reduce farming income ... ... .. . . . e 943
Subtotal (total of lines 941 to 943) > 4K

Closing balance of restricted farm losses to be carried forward to future tax years (amount 4J minus amount 4K)

Note
The total losses for the year from all farming businesses are calculated without including scientific research expenses.

Note 11: Arestricted farm loss expires after 20 tax years.
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— Part 5 — Listed personal property losses

Continuity of listed personal property loss and request for a carryback

Listed personal property losses at the end of the previous taxyear . ...................... 5A
Listed personal property loss expired (note 12) .. ... ... ... ... . ... L . m
Listed personal property losses at the beginning of the tax year (amount 5A minus line 500) . m >
Current-year listed personal property loss (from Schedule 68) .. .. ... . e m
Subtotal (line 502 plus line 510) 5B
Listed personal property losses from previous tax years applied against listed
personal property gains . ... 530
Enter line 530 on line 655 of Schedule 6.
Other adjustments . ... ... . m
Subtotal (line 530 plus line 550) > 5C
Listed personal property losses remaining before any request for a carryback (amount 5B minus amount 5C) 5D

Request to carry back listed personal property loss to:

First previous tax year to reduce listed personal property gains .. .................. 961
Second previous tax year to reduce listed personal property gains .. ................ 962
Third previous tax year to reduce listed personal property gains . ................... 963
Subtotal (total of lines 961 to 963) > 5E

Closing balance of listed personal property losses to be carried forward to future tax years (amount 5D minus amount 5E) m

Note 12: Alisted personal property loss expires after 7 tax years.
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— Part 7 — Limited partnership losses
— Current-year limited partnership lo

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Partnership Tax year Corporation's Corporation's Total of corporation's Column 4 minus Current -year
account number ending share of limited at-risk amount share of partnership column 5 limited
YYYY/MM/DD partnership loss investment tax credit, | (if negative, enter "0") partnership
farming losses, and losses
resource expenses (column 3 minus
column 6)

608

Total (enter this amount on line 222 of Schedule 1)

— Limited partnership losses from previous tax years that may be applied in the current year

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Partnership Tax year Limited Corporation's Total of corporation's Column 4 minus Limited partnership
account number ending partnership losses at-risk amount share of partnership column 5 losses that may be
YYYY/MM/DD at the end of the investment tax credit, | (if negative, enter "0") | applied in the year
previous tax year business or property (the lesser of
and amounts losses, and resource columns 3 and 6)
transferred on an expenses
amalgamation or
on the wind-up
of a subsidiary
630 632 636 638 [ 650 |
1.

— Continuity of limited partnership losses that can be carried forward to future tax years
1 2 3 4

5 6
Current year limited

Partnership
account number

Limited partnership
losses at the end of
the previous tax year

Limited partnership
losses transferred
in the year on an
amalgamation or on
the wind-up of a
subsidiary

Current-year limited
partnership losses
(from line 620)

Limited partnership
losses applied in
the current year
(must be equal to

or less than
line 650)

675

closing balance to be carried

(column 2 plus column 3

partnership losses
forward to future years

plus column 4 minus
column 5)

680

670

Total (enter this amount on line 335 of the T2 return)

Note
If you need more space, you can attach more schedules.

— Part 8 — Election under paragraph 88(1.1)(f)

If you are making an election under paragraph 88(1.1)(f), tick the box m Yes \:’

In the case of the wind-up of a subsidiary, if the election is made, the non-capital loss, restricted farm loss, farm loss, or limited partnership loss of the
subsidiary—that otherwise would become the loss of the parent corporation for a particular tax year starting after the wind—up began—uwill be considered

as the loss of the parent corporation for its immediately preceding tax year and not for the particular year.

Note
This election is only applicable for wind-ups under subsection 88(1) that are reported on Schedule 24, First-Time Filer after Incorporation, Amalgamation,

or Winding-up of a Subsidiary into a Parent.

Page 6
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Applied to reduce
Balance at Loss incurred Loss
Year beginning in current Adjustments carried back Taxable Part IV Balance at
of origin of year year and transfers Parts |1 & IV income tax end of year
Current N/A 2,960,516 2,960,516 N/A
1st preceding taxation year
2022-12-31 N/A N/A
2nd preceding taxation year
2021-12-31 N/A N/A
3rd preceding taxation year
2020-12-31 N/A N/A
4th preceding taxation year
2019-12-31 N/A N/A
5th preceding taxation year
2018-12-31 N/A N/A
6th preceding taxation year
2017-12-31 N/A N/A
7th preceding taxation year
2016-12-31 N/A N/A
8th preceding taxation year
2015-12-31 N/A N/A
9th preceding taxation year
2014-12-31 N/A N/A
10th preceding taxation year
2013-12-31 N/A N/A
11th preceding taxation year
2012-12-31 N/A N/A
12th preceding taxation year
2011-12-31 N/A N/A
13th preceding taxation year
2010-12-31 N/A N/A
14th preceding taxation year
2009-12-31 N/A N/A
15th preceding taxation year
2008-12-31 N/A N/A
16th preceding taxation year
2007-12-31 N/A N/A
17th preceding taxation year
2006-12-31 N/A N/A
18th preceding taxation year
2005-12-31 N/A N/A
19th preceding taxation year
2004-12-31 N/A N/A
20th preceding taxation year
2003-12-31 N/A N/A *
Total 2,960,516 2,960,516
* This balance expires this year and will not be available next year.
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Schedule 5

Corporation's name

Business Number

Tax year-end
Year Month Day

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31
e Use this schedule if any of the following apply to your corporation during the tax year:
— it had a permanent establishment in more than one jurisdiction
(corporations that have no taxable income should only complete columns A, B, and D in Part 1)
— it is claiming provincial or territorial tax credits or rebates (see Part 2)
— it has to pay taxes, other than income tax, for Newfoundland and Labrador or Ontario (see Part 2)
o All legislative references are to the federal Income Tax Regulations (the Regulations).
e For more information, see the T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.
~ Part 1 — Allocation of taxable income
Enter the regulation that applies (402 to 413).
A B Cc D E F
. Jurisdiction. Total salaries and B multiplied by Gross revenue D multiplied by Allocation of taxable
(tick yes if your corporation had wages paid in taxable income, attributable taxable income, income (C + £ x1/2)
P jurisdiction divided by G to jurisdiction divided by H ote

the jurisdiction during the tax
year) Note 1

(where either G or H is nil,
do not multiply by 1/2)

Newfoundland
and Labrador

Yes

[ ]

Newfoundland and Ut
Labrador Offshore

Yes

Prince Edward

Island Yes D
Nova Scotia Yes D
g?f\s/?\osrgmia Yes D
I';lr(mswick Yes D
Quebec Yes D
Ontario Yes D
Manitoba Yes D
Saskatchewan Yes D
Alberta Yes D
g:)itliusr:bia Yes | |
Yukon Yes D
'I'\'lgrln—-ti[](;’:i?st Yes D
Nunavut Yes D
8::2?12 Yes D
Total

Note 1: Permanent establishment is defined in subsection 400(2).
Note 2: For corporations other than those described under section 402, use the appropriate calculation described in the Regulations to allocate taxable income.

Notes:

1. After determining the allocation of taxable income, you have to calculate the corporation's provincial or territorial tax payable. For more information on
how to calculate the tax for each province or territory, see the instructions for Schedule 5 in the T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.

2. If your corporation has provincial or territorial tax payable, complete Part 2.

3. If your corporation is a member of a partnership and the partnership had a permanent establishment in a jurisdiction, select the
jurisdiction in Column A and include your proportionate share of the partnership's salaries and wages and gross revenue in

columns B and D, respectively.
T2 SCH 5 E (12/2023)

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11

VERSION 2024 V1.0

i+l

Canadi

Page 1



2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 90 of 155

2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

— Part 2 — Ontario tax payable, tax credits, and rebates
Total taxable Income eligible Provincial or Provincial or
income for small business | territorial allocation territorial tax
deduction of taxable income payable before
credits
Ontario basic income tax (from Schedule 500) ... .......................
Ontario small business deduction (from Schedule 500) .. .................... m
Subtotal (line 270 minus line 402) > 5A
Ontario transitional tax debits (from Schedule 506) .. .......................
Recapture of Ontario research and development tax credit (from Schedule 508) .. ... .. 277
Subtotal (line 276 plus line 277) > 58
Gross Ontario tax (amount 5A plus amount 5B) . . . o L . e e e 5C
Ontario tax credit for manufacturing and processing (from Schedule 502) . .......... m
Ontario foreign tax credit (from Schedule 21) .. ...... ... ... . . . . . ..
Ontario credit union tax reduction (from Schedule 500) ... ................... m
Ontario political contributions tax credit (from Schedule 525) . .................. m
Ontario non-refundable tax credits (total of lines 406 to 415) > 5D
Subtotal (amount 5C minus amount 5D) (if negative, enter "0") 5E
Ontario research and development tax credit (from Schedule 508) . .. . ... . ... m
Ontario corporate income tax payable before Ontario corporate minimum tax credit and Ontario community food program
donation tax credit for farmers (amount 5E minus line 416) (if negative, enter"0") ... .. ... .. .o oo oo, 5F
Ontario corporate minimum tax credit (from Schedule 510) .. .. ... . . . e e m
Ontario community food program donation tax credit for farmers (from Schedule2) .. ............. .. ... ..... m
Ontario corporate income tax payable (amount 5F minus the total of lines 418 and 420) (if negative, enter "0") .. .......... 5G
Ontario corporate minimum tax (from Schedule 510) . . . . . ..t i ittt 772,695
Ontario special additional tax on life insurance corporations (from Schedule 512) ....... m
Subtotal (line 278 plus line 280) 772,695 » 772,695 5H
Total Ontario tax payable before refundable tax credits (amount 5G plus amount5H) .. ... ... ... ..., 772,695 5i
Ontario qualifying environmental trusttax credit .. .......... ... ... ... ... ... m
Ontario co-operative education tax credit (from Schedule 550) . ... ... ........... m 80,387
Ontario computer animation and special effects tax credit (from Schedule 554) . ....... m
Ontario film and television tax credit (from Schedule 556) . .................... m
Ontario production services tax credit (from Schedule 558) ... ................. m
Ontario interactive digital media tax credit (from Schedule 560) . ................. m
Ontario book publishing tax credit (from Schedule 564) .. .................... m
Ontario innovation tax credit (from Schedule 566) . ........................
Ontario business-research institute tax credit (rom Schedule 568) ... ............
Ontario regional opportunities investment tax credit (from Schedule 570) .. ..........
Ontario made manufacturing investment tax credit (from Schedule 572) ... ......... 474
Ontario refundable tax credits (total of lines 450 to 474) 80,387 » 80,387 54
Net Ontario tax payable or refundable tax credit (amount 5l minus amount 5J) .. .. ...t vieninnneann. .. m 692,308
(if a credit, enter amount in brackets). Include this amount on line 255.
~ Summary
Enter the total net tax payable or refundable tax credits for all provinces and territories on line 255.
Net provincial and territorial tax payable or refundable tax credits ... ... ...ttt m 692,308
If the amount on line 255 is positive, enter the net provincial and territorial tax payable on line 760 of the T2 return.
If the amount on line 255 is negative, enter the net provincial and territorial refundable tax credits on line 812 of the T2 return.

T2 SCH 5 E (12/2023)
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Summary of Dispositions of Capital Property

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

e Use this schedule if your corporation disposed of (actual or deemed) capital property or claimed an allowable business investment loss (ABIL), or both, in
the tax year.

® All legislative references are to the federal Income Tax Act.
® Also use this schedule to make a designation under paragraph 111(4)(e) if control of the corporation has been acquired by a person or a group of persons.

e For more information, see the section called "Schedule 6, Summary of Dispositions of Capital Property" in the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide.

e |f you need more space, attach additional schedules.

Designation under paragraph 111(4)(e)

Are any dispositions shown on this schedule related to deemed dispositions designated under paragraph 111(4)(e)? RN m Yes D No
If yes, attach a statement specifying which properties such a designation applies to.

In the various sections of this form:
® The abbreviation FS (for foreign source) is used to indicate the capital gain or loss arising from foreign property;

® The abbreviation PA (for passive asset) is used to indicate the capital gain or loss arising from the disposition of an asset other than an active asset of the
corporation.

— Part 1 — Shares

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 A
Number Name of corporation Class of Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Gain (or loss)
of in which the shares shares acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 5 minus
shares were held YYYYMMDD disposition columns 6 and 7)
100 105 106 I 110 120 140 150 FS PA
Totals
Total adjustment under subsection 112(3) to all losses identified iN COUMN 8+ v v v oo eee e e 160
Actual gain or loss from the disposition of shares (total of column 8 plus line 160) .. ...................... A

— Part 2 — Real estate (Do not include losses on depreciable property)

1 2 3 4 5 6 A
Municipal address of real estate Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Gain (or loss)
1 = Address 1 acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 3 minus
2 = Address 2 YYYYMMDD disposition columns 4 and 5)

3 = City
4 = Province, Country, Postal Code and
Zip Code or Foreign Postal Code

|200] 210 220 240 1250 R

Totals B
—Part 3 — Bonds
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 A
Face value of Maturity date [Name of bond Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Gain (or loss)
bonds YYYYMMDD issuer acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 5 minus
YYYYMMDD disposition columns 6 and 7)
EXl [305] [310] [320] 340 E1 FS PA
Totals Cc
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Note

currency transactions.

1 2 3 4 5 6 A
Description of other property Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Gain (or loss)
acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 3 minus
YYYYMMDD disposition columns 4 and 5)
400 410] 420] 430 440 450 FS PA
Cambrian Land 523,077 523,077 N
Totals 523,077 523,077 D

Other property includes capital debts, debts in respect of the disposition of a personal-use property per subsection 50(2), and amounts that arise from foreign

— Part 5 — Personal-use property (Do not include listed personal property)

1 2 3 4 5 6 A
Description of personal-use property Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Gain only
acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 3 minus
YYYYMMDD disposition columns 4 and 5;
if negative, enter
"0")
1500 510 EQ 530 540 1550 FS PA
Totals E
Note
You cannot deduct losses on dispositions of personal-use property (other than listed personal property or a debt that is a personal-use property)
from your income.
— Part 6 — Listed personal property
1 2 3 4 5 6 A
Description of listed personal property Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Gain (or loss)*
acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 3 minus
YYYYMMDD disposition columns 4 and 5)
600 610 1620 640 [650] Fs PA
Totals ‘
Unapplied listed personal property losses from other years (amount from line 530 of Schedule 4,
Corporation Loss Continuity and Application) . .. .. i i e e @
Net gains (or losses) from the disposition of listed personal property (total of column 6 minus line 655) . ............ F
Note
Net listed personal property losses can only be applied against listed personal property gains.
* Do not include gains arising on the disposition of certain certified cultural property to a designated cultural institution.
See subparagraph 39(1)(a)(i.1) for more information.
— Part 7 — Property qualifying for and resulting in an allowable business investment loss
1 3 4 5 6 7 A
Name of small business corporation |Shares, Date of Proceeds of Adjusted Outlays and Loss only
enter 1;| acquisition disposition cost base expenses from (column 4 minus
debt, | YYYYMMDD disposition columns 5 and 6)
enter 2
1900 Ed EN EQ 940 950 Fs PA
Totals ‘
Allowable business investment losses (ABILs) . ......... Total of Column 7 X 50.0000 % = G
Enter amount G on line 406 of Schedule 1, Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes.
Note
Properties listed in Part 7 should not be included in any other parts of this schedule.
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2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 93 of 155

2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

86339 1363 RC0001

— Part 8 — Capital gains or losses

Total of amounts Ato F (do not include amount F ifitisaloss) . ..... .. . . i i

Capital gains dividend received inthe year . . . . . . .

Capital gains reserve opening balance (from Part 1 of Schedule 13, Continuity of Reserves) .. ...........

Capital gains reserve closing balance (from Part 1 of Schedule 13, Continuity of Reserves) . ............
Capital gains or losses, excluding ABILS (amount | Minus e 885) .+« v v v v v e e et

FS PA

LI

— Part 9 — Taxable capital gains and total capital losses

Line 897 or line 898, whichever is less

Taxable capital gains under section 34.2 (line 275 of Schedule 73,
Income Inclusion Summary for Corporations that are Members of

PartnershiPs) v v v vt e e X 2 =

Subtotal (total of amounts L and M plus line 899)

Allowable capital losses under section 34.2 (line 285 of Schedule 73,
Income Inclusion Summary for Corporations that are Members of

Partnerships) ... oot X 2 = m

Subtotal (amount N minus line 901)

Portion of the capital gain that is subject to a 100% inclusion rate

DEF100(1) ™ oo X 2 = A

Total capital gains or losses (amount O plus line 902)

Taxable capital gains or total capital losses
Total capital losses (if amount P is negative, enter amount P; if amount P is positive, enter "0") ... ...........
Enter amount Q on line 210 of Schedule 4.

Taxable capital gains (if amount P is positive, enter the result of amount P
multiplied by 50.0000 %; if amount P is negative, enter "0") ... ... e
Enter amount R on line 113 of Schedule 1.

* Do not include gains on donations of ecologically sensitive land to a private foundation.

** Do not include any portion of the capital gain that is subject to the 50% inclusion rate. Enter any such portion in Part 4.

Capital gains or losses, excluding ABILs (amount from line 890 in Part8) ... .. ... . i J
Deduct the following amounts included in amount J, that are subject to the zero inclusion rate:
Note
When a taxpayer is entitled to an advantage in respect of a donation, the zero inclusion rate is restricted to only part of
the taxpayer's capital gain on disposition of the property. See section 38.2 for more information.
. . . I . . FS PA
Gain on the donation to a qualified donee of a share, debt obligation, or right listed on S
a designated stock exchange and other securities under paragraphs 38(a.1)(i) and (iii) m D D
. . - . - FS PA
Gain on the donation to a qualified donee of ecologically sensitive land under
subsection 38(a.2)F ... e D D
. . . - . FS PA
Exempt portion of the gain on the donation of securities arising from the exchange
of a partnership interest under subsection 38(a.3)  ..................... a D D
Subtotal (line 895 plus line 896 plus line a) > K
Subtotal (amount J minus amount K) L
Deemed capital gain from the donation of property included in a flow-through share
class of property to a qualified donee under subsection 40(12):
Exemption threshold at time of disposition . .......................
The total of all capital gains from the actual disposition of the property ... ....
FS PA

ml [ ]

FS PA

LI

T2 SCH6E (21)
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Schedule 8

Corporation's name

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business number Tax year-end

Year Month Day
2023-12-31

86339 1363 RC0001

For more information, see the section called "Capital Cost Allowance" in the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide.

Is the corporation electing under Regulation 1101(5q)?

0 N O O~ WN =

[(e]

10.

12.

Yes D No

1.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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~ Part 1 — Agreement between associated eligible persons or partnerships (EPOPs)
Are you associated in the tax year with one or more EPOPs with which you have entered into an agreement under subsection 1104(3.3) of the Regulations? . .............. m Yes No D
If you answered yes, complete Part 1. Otherwise, go to Part 2.
Enter a percentage assigned to each associated EPOP (including your corporation) as determined in the agreement.
This percentage will be used to allocate the immediate expensing limit. The total of all the percentages assigned under the agreement should not exceed 100%. If the total is more than 100%, then the
associated group has an immediate expensing limit of nil. For more information about the immediate expensing limit, see note 12 in Part 2.
1 2 3
Name of EPOP Identification number Percentage
assigned
See note 1 under the
agreement
110 115] 120
.| Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 863391363RC0001 100.000
.| Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc./Societe De Portefeuille D'Hydro O ttawa Inc. 894110816RC0001
.| Energy Ottawa Inc./Energie Ottawa Inc. 863389961RC0001
.| Telecom Ottawa Holding Inc. / Societe De Portefeuille De Telecom Ottawa Inc. 862029337RC0001
.| PowerTrail Inc. 828293944RC0001
.| Moose Creek Energy Inc. 828511311RC0001
.| Chaudiere Hydro Inc. Hydro Chaudiere Inc. 812813103RC0001
.| Chaudiere Water Power Inc/Energie Hydraulique De La Chaudiere Inc 100931955RC0001
.[ 2425932 ONTARIO INC. 800533846RC0001
CHAUDIERE HYDRO NORTH INC. 798216321RC0001
EO GENERATION GP INC. 839668308RC0001
THE GANANOQUE WATER POWER COMPANY 105214068RC0001
EONY GENERATION HOLDING INC. NR
EONY GENERATION LIMITED NR
9927891 CANADA INC. 749628699RC0001
ENERGY OTTAWA CABLE TESTING SERVICES INC. 742766892RC0001
HULL ENERGY GP INC. 748820321RC0001
Smart City Lighting Inc. 792808719RC0001
i+l
Canadid
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001
1 2 3
Name of EPOP Identification number Percentage
assigned
See note 1 under the
agreement
[110] EH [120]
19.| Envari Holding Inc. 722363918RC0001
20.| Envari Energy Solutions Inc. 722363710RC0001
21.| CHAUDIERE SERVICES INC./SERVICES CHAUDIERE INC. 797827730RC0001
22.| CHAUDIERE FINANCIAL INC./FINANCIERE DE LA CHAUDIERE INC. 796649739RC0001
23.| 2725163 Ontario Inc. 763143070RC0001
24| Hiboo Networks Inc. 779661701RC0001
Total 100.000

Immediate expensing limit allocated to the corporation (see note 2)

Note 1:

Note 2:

The identification number is the social insurance number, business number, or partnership account number of the EPOP.

Multiply 1.5 million by the percentage assigned to your corporation in column 3. If the total of column 3 is more than 100%, enter 0.

[ 125 | 1,500,000

T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001
~ Part 2 — CCA calculation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Class Description Undepreciated Cost of Cost of Adjustments Amount from Amount from Proceeds of
number capital cost (UCC) acquisitions acquisitions from and transfers column 5 that is column 5 that is dispositions
at the beginning during the year column 3 that are assistance received repaid during the
of the year (new property designated See note 6 or receivable year for a property,
must be immediate during the year for subsequent to its See note 9
See available expensing a property, disposition
note 3 for use) property (DIEP) subsequent to
its disposition See note 8
See note 4 See note 5
See note 7
[200] 201] 203 205] El 222] 207
1. 1 134,303,381 0
2] 1b 80,476,697 2,161,747 -8,907 0
3. 2 Dist equip pre 88 38,707,996 0
4. 3 buildings pre 88 4,564,141 0
5. 8 7,575,974 464,422 464,422 0
6. 10 3,537,785 4,640,361 1,035,578 136,827
7. 12 3,650,229 0
8. 42 4,203,051 7,087 -4,766 0
9. 43.2 SOLAR ASSETS 50,599 0
10.| 45 219 0
1. 47 652,628,794 74,405,981 -3,596 5,880
12| 50 413,275 811,280 -3,700 0
13. 141 Pre 2017 ECE 8,064,739 0
14.| 141 Land Rights / Line connection 55,012,578 927,516 -5,704,098 0
15, 17 Parking Lot 1,875,232 286,801 0
16. 43.1 EV Charger 732,695 0
Totals 991,414,461 88,088,119 1,500,000 -5,725,067 142,707
1 9 10 1 12 13 14 15 16
Class Description Proceeds of ucc UCC of the DIEP Immediate Cost of Cost of acquisitions Remaining UCC Proceeds of
number dispositions (column 2 plus (enter the UCC expensing acquisitions on from column 13 (column 10 minus disposition
of the DIEP column 3 plus or amount that remainder of Class | that are accelerated column 12) available to
(enter amount minus column 5 relates to the See note 12 (column 3 minus investment incentive (if negative, reduce the UCC
from column 8 minus column 8) DIEP reported column 12) properties (AlIP) or enter "0") of AlIP and property
that relates to the in column 4) properties included included in
DIEP reported in Classes 54 to 56 Classes 54 to 56
in column 4) See note 10 See note 11 (column 8 plus
See note 13 column 6 minus
column 13 plus
column 14 minus
column 7)
(if negative,
enter "0")
See note 14
236 E3
1. 1 134,303,381 134,303,381
2 1b 82,629,537 2,161,747 2,161,747 82,629,537

T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001
1 9 10 1 12 13 14 15 16
Class Description Proceeds of ucc UCC of the DIEP Immediate Cost of Cost of acquisitions Remaining UCC Proceeds of
number dispositions (column 2 plus (enter the UCC expensing acquisitions on from column 13 (column 10 minus disposition
of the DIEP column 3 plus or amount that remainder of Class | that are accelerated column 12) available to
(enter amount minus column 5 relates to the See note 12 (column 3 minus investment incentive (if negative, reduce the UCC
from column 8 minus column 8) DIEP reported column 12) properties (AlIP) or enter "0") of AllP and property
that relates to the in column 4) properties included included in
DIEP reported in Classes 54 to 56 Classes 54 to 56
in column 4) See note 10 See note 11 (column 8 plus
See note 13 column 6 minus
column 13 plus
column 14 minus
column 7)
(if negative,
enter "0")
See note 14
236 E3
3. 2 Dist equip pre 88 38,707,996 38,707,996
4. 3 buildings pre 88 4,564,141 4,564,141
5. 8 8,040,396 464,422 464,422 7,575,974
6. 10 8,041,319 1,035,578 1,035,578 3,604,783 3,604,783 7,005,741 136,827
7. 12 3,650,229 3,650,229 3,650,229 3,650,229
8. 42 4,205,372 7,087 7,087 4,205,372
9. 43.2 SOLAR ASSETS 50,599 50,599
10.| 45 219 219
1. 47 727,025,299 74,405,981 74,405,981 727,025,299 5,880
12| 50 1,220,855 811,280 811,280 1,220,855
13, 141 Pre 2017 ECE 8,064,739 8,064,739
14, 141 Land Rights / Line connection 50,235,996 927,516 927,516 50,235,996
15, 17 Parking Lot 2,162,033 286,801 286,801 2,162,033
16. 43.1 EV Charger 732,695 732,695 732,695 732,695
Totals 1,073,634,806 1,500,000 1,500,000 86,588,119 86,588,119 1,072,134,806 142,707
T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001
— Part 2 — CCA calculation (continued)
1 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Class Description Net capital cost UCC adjustment UCC adjustment CCA Recapture Terminal loss CCA UCC at the
number additions of AlIP for AlIP and for property rate of CCA (for declining end of the year
and property property included acquired during % See note 19 balance method, (column 10 minus
included in in Classes 54 t0 56 | the year other than See note 18 the result column 23)
Classes 54 to 56 acquired during AlIP and property See of column 15 plus
acquired during the year included in note 17 column 18 minus
the year (column 17 Classes 54 to 56 column 19, multiplied
(column 14 minus multiplied by (0.5 multiplied by column 20, or
column 16) the relevant factor) by the result of a lower amount,
(if negative, column 13 minus plus column 12)
enter "0") See note 15 column 14 minus
column 6 plus See note 20
column 7 minus
column 8)
(if negative,
enter "0")
See note 16
[224] 212] 213 215] 217 EQ
1. 1 4 0 0 5,372,135 128,931,246
2] 1b 2,161,747 1,080,874 6 0 0 5,022,625 77,606,912
3. Dist equip pre 88 6 0 0 2,322,480 36,385,516
4. 3 buildings pre 88 5 0 0 228,207 4,335,934
5. 8 20 0 0 1,979,617 6,060,779
6. 10 3,467,956 1,733,978 30 0 0 3,657,494 4,383,825
7. 12 3,650,229 100 0 0 3,650,229
8. 42 7,087 3,544 12 0 0 505,070 3,700,302
9. 43.2 SOLAR ASSETS 50 0 0 25,300 25,299
10.| 45 45 0 0 99 120
1. 47 74,400,101 37,200,051 8 0 0 61,138,028 665,887,271
12| 50 811,280 405,640 55 0 0 894,572 326,283
13. 141 Pre 2017 ECE 5 0 0 564,532 7,500,207
14, 141 Land Rights / Line connection 927,516 463,758 5 0 0 2,534,988 47,701,008
15, 17 Parking Lot 286,801 143,401 8 0 0 184,435 1,977,598
16. 43.1 EV Charger 732,695 1,709,621 30 0 0 732,695
Totals 86,445,412 42,740,867 88,812,506 984,822,300

Enter the total of column 21 on line 107 of Schedule 1.
Enter the total of column 22 on line 404 of Schedule 1.
Enter the total of column 23 on line 403 of Schedule 1.
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If a class number has not been provided in Schedule Il of the Income Tax Regulations for a particular class of property, use the subsection provided in Regulation 1101.

Include any property acquired in previous years that has now become available for use, net of any government assistance received or entitled to be received in the year from a government, municipality or other public authority,
or a reduction of capital cost after the application of section 80. This property would have been previously excluded from column 3. List separately any acquisitions of property in the class that are not subject to the 50% rule.
See Income Tax Folio S3-F4-C1, General Discussion of Capital Cost Allowance, for exceptions to the 50% rule. Do not include any amount in column 3 in respect of property included in column 5 (see note 6).

A DIEP reported in column 4 is a property acquired after April 18, 2021, by a corporation that was a Canadian-controlled private corporation (CCPC) throughout the year, which became available for use in the tax year

(before 2024) and was designated as such on or before the day that is 12 months after the filing-due date for the tax year to which the designation relates. It includes all capital property subject to the CCA rules, if

certain conditions are met, other than property included in Classes 1 to 6, 14.1, 17, 47, 49, and 51. A property can only qualify as DIEP in the year in which it becomes available for use. See subsection 1104(3.1) of the
Regulations for more information.

Enter in column 5, "Adjustments and transfers", amounts that increase or reduce the UCC (column 10). ltems that increase the UCC include amounts transferred under section 85, or transferred on amalgamation or winding-up
of a subsidiary. Iltems that reduce the UCC (show amounts that reduce the UCC in brackets) include assistance received or receivable during the year for a property, subsequent to its disposition, if such assistance would have
decreased the capital cost of the property by virtue of paragraph 13(7.1)(f). See the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide for other examples of adjustments and transfers to include in column 5.

Also include property acquired in a non-arm's length transaction (other than by virtue of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b) of the Act) if the property was a depreciable property acquired by the transferor at least 364 days
before the end of your tax year and continuously owned by the transferor until it was acquired by you.

Include all amounts of assistance you received (or were entitled to receive) after the disposition of a depreciable property that would have decreased the capital cost of the property by virtue of

paragraph 13(7.1)(f) if received before the disposition.

T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

— Part 2 — CCA calculation (continued)

Note 8: Include all amounts you have repaid during the year for any legally required repayment, made after the disposition of a corresponding property, of:
— assistance that would have otherwise increased the capital cost of the property under paragraph 13(7.1)(d) and
— an inducement, assistance, or any other amount contemplated in paragraph 12(1)(x) received, that otherwise would have increased the capital cost of the property under paragraph 13(7.4)(b)
Include the UCC of each property of a prescribed class acquired in the course of a corporate reorganization described under paragraph 55(3)(b) of the Act (also known as "butterfly reorganization") or include property acquired
in a non-arm's length transaction (other than by virtue of a right referred to in paragraph 251(5)(b) of the Act) if the property was a depreciable property acquired by the transferor less than 364 days before the end of your tax
year and continuously owned by the transferor until it was acquired by you.

Note 9:  For each property disposed of during the year, deduct from the proceeds of disposition any outlays and expenses to the extent that they were made or incurred for the purpose of making the disposition(s). The amount reported
in respect of the property cannot exceed the property's capital cost, unless that property is a timber resource property as defined in subsection 13(21).
If the cost of a zero-emission passenger vehicle (or a passenger vehicle that was, at any time, a DIEP) exceeds the prescribed amount and it is disposed of to a person or partnership with which you deal at arm's length, the
proceeds of disposition will be adjusted based on a factor equal to the prescribed amount as a proportion of the actual cost of the vehicle. The actual cost of the vehicle will be adjusted for payment or repayment of government
assistance.

Note 10: If the amount in column 5 (as shown in brackets) reduces the undepreciated capital cost, you must subtract it for the purposes of the calculation. Otherwise, add the amount in column 5 for the purposes of the calculation.

Note 11: The amount to enter in column 11 must not exceed the amount in column 10. If it does, enter in column 11 the amount from column 10. If the amount determined in column 10 is zero or a negative amount, enter zero. The only
amounts incurred before April 19, 2021, to be included in this column are certain inventory purchases from arm's length persons or partnerships where the conditions in paragraphs 1100(0.3)(a) to (c) are met.

Note 12: Immediate expensing applies to a DIEP included in column 11. The total immediate expensing for the tax year (total of column 12) should not exceed the lesser of:

1. Immediate expensing limit: it is equal to one of the following five amounts, whichever is applicable:

— $1.5 million, if you are not associated with any other EPOP in the tax year

— amount from line 125, if you are associated in the tax year with one or more EPOPs

— nil, if the total of the percentages assigned in Part 1 is more than 100% or you are associated in the tax year with one or more EPOPs and have not filed an agreement in prescribed form as required under subsection 1104(3.3)
of the Regulations

— the amount determined under subsection 1104(3.5) of the Regulations for any second or subsequent tax years ending in a calendar year, if you have two or more tax years ending in the calendar year in which you are
associated with another EPOP that has a tax year ending in that calendar year

— any amount allocated by the minister under subsection 1104(3.4) of the Regulations

The immediate expensing limit has to be prorated if your tax year is less than 365 days. You cannot carry forward any unused amount of the immediate expensing limit.

2. UCC of the DIEP: total of column 11
You have to maintain the CCPC status throughout the relevant tax year in order to claim the immediate expensing.

Note 13: An AlIP is a property (other than property included in Classes 54 to 56) that you acquired after November 20, 2018, and that became available for use before 2028.
Classes 54 and 55 include zero-emission vehicles that you acquired after March 18, 2019, and that became available for use before 2028.
Class 56 applies to eligible zero-emission automotive equipment and vehicles (other than motor vehicles) that are acquired after March 1, 2020, and that became available for use before 2028.
See the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide for more information.
Note 14: Include only elements from columns 6 and 7 that are not related to the DIEP.
Note 15: The relevant factors for property of a class in Schedule Il, that is an AlIP or included in Classes 54 to 56, available for use respectively before 2024 are:
— 2 1/3 for property in Classes 43.1, 54, and 56
— 1 1/2 for property in Class 55
— 1 for property in Classes 43.2 and 53
— 0 for property in Classes 12, 13, 14, 15, and 59, as well as properties that are Canadian vessels included in paragraph 1100(1)(v) of the Regulations (see note 20 for additional information) and
— 0.5 for all other property that is an AlIP

T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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The UCC adjustment for property acquired during the year (also known as the half-year rule or 50% rule) does not apply to certain property (including AlIP and property included in Classes 54 to 56).

Include only elements from columns 6 and 7 that are not related to the DIEP.

For special rules and exceptions, see Income Tax Folio S3-F4-C1, General Discussion of Capital Cost Allowance.

Enter a rate only if you are using the declining balance method. For any other method (for example, the straight-line method, where calculations are always based on the cost of acquisitions),

enter N/A. Then enter the amount you are claiming in column 23.

If the amount in column 10 is negative, you have a recapture of CCA. If applicable, enter the negative amount from column 10 in column 21 as a positive. The recapture rules do not apply to passenger vehicles in Class 10.1.

However, they do apply to a passenger vehicle that was, at any time, a DIEP.

If no property is left in the class at the end of the tax year and there is still a positive amount in the column 10, you have a terminal loss. If applicable, enter the positive amount from column 10 in column 22. The terminal loss rules

do not apply to:

— passenger vehicles in Class 10.1

— property in Class 14.1, unless you have ceased carrying on the business to which it relates

— limited-period franchises, concessions, or licences in Class 14 if, at the time of acquisition, the property was a former property of the transferor or any similar property attributable to the same fixed place of business,
and you had jointly elected with the transferor to have the replacement property rules apply, unless certain conditions are met

If the tax year is shorter than 365 days, prorate the CCA claim. Some classes of property do not have to be prorated. See the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide for more information. For property

in class 10.1 disposed of during the year, deduct a maximum of 50% of the regular CCA deduction if you owned the property at the beginning of the tax year. For AlIP listed below, the maximum first

year allowance you can claim is determined as follows:

— Class 13: the lesser of 150% of the amount calculated in Schedule Il of the Regulations and the UCC at the end of the tax year (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 14: the lesser of 150% of the allocation for the year of the capital cost of the property apportioned over the remaining life of the property (at the time the cost was incurred) and the UCC at
the end of the tax year (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 15: the lesser of 150% of an amount computed on the basis of a rate per cord, board foot, or cubic metre cut in the tax year and the UCC at the end of the tax year (before any CCA deduction)

— Canadian vessels described under paragraph 1100(1)(v) of the Regulations: the lesser of 50% of the capital cost of the property and the UCC at the end of the tax year (before any CCA deduction)

— Class 41.2: use a 25% CCA rate. The additional allowance under paragraphs 1100(1)(y.2) (for single mine properties) and 1100(1)(ya.2) (for multiple mine properties) of the Regulations is not eligible for the
accelerated investment incentive. The additional allowance in respect of natural gas liquefaction under paragraph 1100(1)(yb) of the Regulations is eligible for the accelerated investment incentive

The AIIP also apply to property (other than a timber resource property) that is a timber limit or a right to cut timber from a limit as well as to industrial mineral mine or a right to remove minerals from an

industrial mineral mine. See the Income Tax Regulations for more detail.

T2 SCH 8 E (24)
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SCHEDULE 9

Name of corporation

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business Number

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

e Complete this schedule if the corporation is related to or associated with at least one other corporation.
e For more information, see the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide.

N NN NN NNRB 2 B 2 2 B2 92 92 92 &2
O U1 A WN RO W®NOU DA WNER O

Name

Country
of resi-
dence
(other
than
Canada)

Business number
(see note 1)

Rela-
tion-
ship
code
(see
note 2)

Number of
common shares
you own

% of
common
shares
you own

Number of
preferred shares
you own

% of
preferred
shares
you own

Book value of
capital stock

700

Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc./Societe

89411 0816 RC0001

Energy Ottawa Inc./Energie Ottawe

86338 9961 RC0001

Telecom Ottawa Holding Inc. / Soci

86202 9337 RC0001

PowerTrail Inc.

82829 3944 RC0001

Moose Creek Energy Inc.

82851 1311 RC0001

Chaudiere Hydro Inc. Hydro Chaud

81281 3103 RC0001

Chaudiere Water Power Inc/Energie

10093 1955 RC0001

2425932 ONTARIO INC.

80053 3846 RC0001

W R NN, WD

CHAUDIERE HYDRO NORTH INC.

79821 6321 RC0001

EO GENERATION GP INC.

83966 8308 RC0001

| THE GANANOQUE WATER POWER

10521 4068 RC0001

| EONY GENERATION HOLDING INC.

us

NR

| EONY GENERATION LIMITED

us

NR

| 9927891 CANADA INC.

74962 8699 RC0001

| ENERGY OTTAWA CABLE TESTING

74276 6892 RCO001

| HULL ENERGY GP INC.

74882 0321 RC0001

| Smart City Lighting Inc.

79280 8719 RC0001

| Envari Holding Inc.

72236 3918 RC0001

| _Envari Energy Solutions Inc.

72236 3710 RC0001

| CHAUDIERE SERVICES INC./SERVI

79782 7730 RCO001

| CHAUDIERE FINANCIAL INC./FINAI

79664 9739 RC0001

| 2725163 Ontario Inc.

76314 3070 RC0001

| Hiboo Networks Inc.

77966 1701 RC0001

WWWWWWWwWWWW W WWWWWWwWwww|w

Note 1: Enter "NR" if the corporation is not registered or does not have a business number.
Note 2: Enter the code number of the relationship that applies from the following order: 1 - Parent 2 - Subsidiary 3 - Associated 4 - Related but not associated
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Schedule 13

Name of corporation

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business number

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

e For use by corporations to provide a continuity of all reserves claimed which are allowed for tax purposes.

e File one completed copy of this schedule with the corporation's T2 Corporation Income Tax Return.

e For more information, see the T2 Corporation Income Tax Guide.

— Part 1 — Capital gains reserves

Description of property

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

3
002}

Transfer on an
amalgamation or
the wind-up of
a subsidiary

5

Add Deduct

Balance at the
end of the year

$

Totals

008

=

The amount from line 008 plus the amount from line 009 should be entered on line 880 of Schedule 6, Summary of Dispositions of Capital Property.
The amount from line 010 should be entered on line 885 of Schedule 6.

— Part 2 — Other reserves

addition.

Description Balance at the Transfer on an Add Deduct Balance at the
beginning of amalgamation or $ $ end of the year
the year the wind-up of $
$ a subsidiary
$
Reserve for doubtful debts . . . ... ..... 4,006,232 134,309 4,140,541
130 135 m
Reserve for undelivered goods
and services notrendered . ........... D 2,790,000 155,000 2,635,000
Reserve for prepaidrent . ............ D
Reserve for refundable containers .. ..... D
Reserve for unpaid amounts . . ......... D
Othertaxreserves . ................ D
Totals 6,796,232 134,309 155,000 6,775,541

The amount from line 280 should be entered on line 413 of Schedule 1 as a deduction.

The amount from line 270 plus the amount from line 275 should be entered on line 125 of Schedule 1, Net Income (Loss) for Income Tax Purposes, as an

T2 SCH 13 E (22)
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Continuity of financial statement reserves (not deductible)

Financial statement reserves (not deductible)
Description Balance at the Transfer on an Add Deduct Balance at the
beginning of amalgamation or end of the year
the year the wind-up of
a subsidiary
1
Reserves from
Part 2 of Schedule 13 4,006,232 134,309 4,140,541
Totals 4,006,232 134,309 4,140,541
The total opening balance plus the total transfers should be entered on line 414 of Schedule 1 as a deduction.
The total closing balance should be entered on line 126 of Schedule 1 as an addition.
Page 1
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Schedule 15

Corporation's name

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business number

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

e Complete the information below if the corporation deducted payments from its income made to a registered pension plan (RPP), a registered supplementary
unemployment benefit plan (RSUBP), a deferred profit sharing plan (DPSP), a pooled registered pension plan (PRPP), or an employee profit sharing

plan (EPSP).

e If the trust that governs an employee profit sharing plan is not resident in Canada, please indicate if the T4PS, Statement of Employees Profit Sharing
Plan Allocations and Payments, Supplementary slip(s) were filed for the last calendar year, and whether they were filed by the trustee or the employer.

Type of
plan
(see

note 1)

Amount
of contribution

$

(see note 2)

Registration
number
(RPP, RSUBP,
PRPP, and
DPSP only)

Name of EPSP trust

Address of EPSP trust T4PS

slip(s)
(see
note

5,340,000

345983

Note 1

Enter the applicable
code number:

Note 2

You do not need to add to Schedule 1 any payments you made to deferred income plans.

To reconcile such payments, calculate the following amount:
Total of all amounts indicated in column 200 of this schedule

5,340,000 A

1 — RPP ...................
2 - RSUBP Less:
3 -DPSP Total of all amounts for deferred income plans deducted in your financial statements . . . . . 5,340,000 B
4 — EPSP Deductible amount for contributions to deferred income plans
5 — PRPP (amount A minus amount B) (if negative, enter "0") .. ... .. Lo o oL C

Enter amount C on line 417 of Schedule 1

Note 3

T4PS slip(s) filed by: 1 — Trustee

2 — Employer
(EPSP only)
T2 SCH 15 (13) Canad'é'
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Schedule 23

Agreement Among Associated Canadian-Controlled Private Corporations
to Allocate the Business Limit

® For use by a Canadian-controlled private corporation (CCPC) to identify all associated corporations and to assign a percentage for each associated
corporation. This percentage will be used to allocate the business limit for the small business deduction. Information from this schedule
will also be used to determine the date the balance of tax is due and to calculate the reduction to the business limit.

e An associated CCPC that has more than one tax year ending in a calendar year must file an agreement for each tax year ending in that
calendar year.

Column 1:

Column 2:

Column 3:

Column 4:
Column 5:

Column 6:

— Allocating the business limit

Date filed (do not use this area)

Enter the calendar year the agreement applies to

the Income Tax Act.

Enter the association code from the list below that applies to each corporation:

Provide the business number for each corporation (if a corporation is not registered, enter "NR").

1 — Associated for purposes of allocating the business limit (unless association code 5 applies)
2 — CCPC that is a third corporation as referred to in subsection 256(2) and has filed Schedule 28, Election not to be Associated

Through a Third Corporation
3 — Non-CCPC that is a third corporation

4 — Associated non-CCPC

5 — Associated CCPC to which association code 1 does not apply because a third corporation has filed Schedule 28

The total of all percentages in column 5 cannot exceed 100%.

limits allocated in column 6 and enter the total at line A.
Ensure that the total at line A does not exceed $500,000.

Enter the legal name of each of the corporations in the associated group, including those deemed to be associated under subsection 256(2) of

Enter the business limit for the year of each corporation in the associated group. Enter "0" if the corporation has association code 2, 3 or 4 in
column 3 (except if the corporation is a cooperative or a credit union eligible for the SBD and it has association code 4).

Assign a percentage to allocate the business limit to each corporation that has association code 1 in column 3.

Enter the business limit allocated to each corporation by multiplying the amount in column 4 by the percentage in column 5. Add all business

Is this an amended agreement for the above calendar year that is intended to replace
an agreement previously filed by any of the associated corporations listed below?

Year Month Day

Year

2023

| ves

No

1 2 3 4 5 6
Name of associated corporations Business Asso- Business limit Percentage Business
number of ciation for the year of the limit
associated code | before the allocation | business allocated”
corporations limit
%
100 200 300 B 400
1| Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 1 500,000| 100.0000 500,000
2| Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc./Societe De Portefeui| 89411 0816 RC0001 1 500,000
3| Energy Ottawa Inc./Energie Ottawa Inc. 86338 9961 RC0001 1 500,000
4| Telecom Ottawa Holding Inc. / Societe De Porte| 86202 9337 RC0001 1 500,000
5| PowerTrail Inc. 82829 3944 RC0001 1 500,000
6| Moose Creek Energy Inc. 82851 1311 RC0001 1 500,000
7| Chaudiere Hydro Inc. Hydro Chaudiere Inc. 81281 3103 RC0O001 1 500,000
8| Chaudiere Water Power Inc/Energie Hydrauliqu¢) 10093 1955 RC0001 1 500,000
9| 2425932 ONTARIO INC. 80053 3846 RC0001 1 500,000
10| CHAUDIERE HYDRO NORTH INC. 79821 6321 RC0001 1 500,000
11| EO GENERATION GP INC. 83966 8308 RC0O001 1 500,000
12| THE GANANOQUE WATER POWER COMPANY 10521 4068 RC0001 1 500,000
13| EONY GENERATION HOLDING INC. NR 1 500,000
14| EONY GENERATION LIMITED NR 1 500,000
15| 9927891 CANADA INC. 74962 8699 RC0001 1 500,000
16| ENERGY OTTAWA CABLE TESTING SERVICES II'| 74276 6892 RC0001 1 500,000
17| HULL ENERGY GP INC. 74882 0321 RC0001 1 500,000
18| Smart City Lighting Inc. 79280 8719 RC0001 1 500,000
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1 2 3 4 5 6
Name of associated corporations Business Asso- Business limit Percentage Business
number of ciation for the year of the limit
associated code | before the allocation | business allocated”
corporations $ limit $
%

19| Envari Holding Inc. 72236 3918 RC0001 1 500,000
20| Envari Energy Solutions Inc. 72236 3710 RC0001 1 500,000
21| CHAUDIERE SERVICES INC./SERVICES CHAUDI| 79782 7730 RC0001 1 500,000
22| CHAUDIERE FINANCIAL INC./FINANCIERE DE L| 79664 9739 RC0001 1 500,000
23| 2725163 Ontario Inc. 76314 3070 RC0O001 1 500,000
24| Hiboo Networks Inc. 77966 1701 RC0O001 1 500,000

Total |_100.0000 500,000 A

Business limit reduction under subsection 125(5.1) of the Act

The business limit reduction is calculated in the small business deduction area of the T2 return. One of the factors used in this calculation is the "large
corporation amount" at line 415 of the T2 return. The amount at line 415 is determined using the formula 0.225% x (C - $10,000,000). Another factor is the
"adjusted aggregate investment income" from lines 744 and 745 of Schedule 7, Aggregate Investment Income and Income Eligible for the Small Business
Deduction. Details of these formulas and variable C are in subsection 125(5.1) of the Act.

* Each corporation will enter on line 410 of the T2 return, the amount allocated to it in column 6. However, if the corporation's tax year is less than 51 weeks,
prorate the amount in column 6 by the number of days in the tax year divided by 365, and enter the result on line 410 of the T2 return.

Special rules for business limit

Special rules apply under subsection 125(5) if a CCPC has more than one tax year ending in the same calendar year and it is associated in more than one of
those tax years with another CCPC that has a tax year ending in that calendar year. The business limit for the second or later tax year will be equal to the
lesser of: the business limit determined for the first tax year ending in the calendar year or the business limit determined for the second or later tax year
ending in the same calendar year.

i+l
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I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Schedule 31
Agency du Canada

Investment Tax Credit — Corporations

~ General information

e Use this schedule:
— to calculate an investment tax credit (ITC) earned during the tax year
— to claim a deduction against Part | tax payable
— to claim a refund of credit earned during the current tax year
— to claim a carryforward of credit from previous tax years
— to transfer a credit following an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary, as described under subsections 87(1) and 88(1)
— to request a credit carryback to one or more previous years
— if you are subject to a recapture of ITC
e Unless otherwise stated, all legislative references are to the federal Income Tax Act and Income Tax Regulations.

e Certain ITCs are eligible for a three-year carryback (if not deductible in the year earned) and are also eligible for a twenty-year carryforward. This does not
apply to the clean economy ITCs, which are refundable tax credits.

e Investments or expenditures, described in subsection 127(9) and Regulation Part XLVI, that earn an ITC are:

— qualified property and qualified resource property (Parts 4 to 7 of this schedule)
— You can no longer claim the ITC for the qualified resource property expenditures. Only unused credits that have not expired can be carried forward
for up to 20 tax years following the tax year in which you incurred the expenditures.

— qualified scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) expenditures (Parts 8 to 17). File Form T661, Scientific Research and Experimental
Development (SR&ED) Expenditures Claim

— pre-production mining expenditures (Part 18)
— You can no longer claim the ITC for the pre-production mining expenditures. Only unused credits that have not expired can be carried forward for up
to 20 tax years following the tax year in which you incurred the expenditures.

— apprenticeship job creation expenditures (Parts 19 to 21)

— child care spaces expenditures (Part 22)
— You can no longer claim the ITC for the child care spaces expenditures. Only unused credits that have not expired can be carried forward for up to
20 tax years following the tax year in which you incurred the expenditures.
® |nvestments or expenditures for clean economy, described in sections 127.44 or 127.45, that earn an ITC are:

— investment in carbon capture, utilization, or storage (CCUS) projects, for qualifying expenditures made after 2021 (Part 25)
— investment in clean technology property that is acquired and that becomes available for use after March 27, 2023 (Part 24)
® File this schedule with the T2 Corporation Income Tax Return. If you need more space, attach additional schedules.

® For more information on ITCs, see Investment Tax Credit in Guide T4012, T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.
® For more information on SR&ED, see Guide T4088, Scientific Research and Experimental Development (SR&ED) Expenditures Claim — Guide to Form T661.

~ Detailed information

® For the purpose of this schedule, investment means the capital cost of the property (excluding amounts added by an election under section 21), determined
without reference to subsections 13(7.1) and 13(7.4), minus the amount of any government or non-government assistance that the corporation has received,
is entitled to receive, or can reasonably be expected to receive for that property at the time it files the income tax return for the year in which the property was
acquired. See subsection 127.44(9) for similar rules for capital cost for the CCUS ITC and subsection 127.45(5) for similar rules for capital cost for the clean
technology ITC.

An ITC deducted in a tax year for a depreciable property reduces both the capital cost of that property and the undepreciated capital cost of that class in the
next tax year. An ITC for SR&ED deducted or refunded in a tax year will reduce the balance in the pool of deductible SR&ED expenditures and the adjusted
cost base (ACB) of an interest in a partnership in the next tax year. An ITC from pre-production mining expenditures deducted in a tax year reduces the
balance in the pool of deductible cumulative Canadian exploration expenses in the next tax year.

Property acquired has to be available for use (AFU) before a claim for an ITC can be made. See subsections 127(11.2), 127.45(4) and 248(19) for more
information. The AFU rules do not apply to claims for the CCUS ITC.

Expenditures for SR&ED qualifying for an ITC must be identified by the claimant on Form T661 and Schedule 31 no later than 12 months after the claimant's
income tax return is due for the tax year in which it incurred the expenditures. A claimant that does not meet this reporting deadline will not be able to file
Schedule 508, Ontario Research and Development Tax Credit, and Schedule 566, Ontario innovation Tax Credit.

Expenditures for an apprenticeship ITC or a clean economy ITC must be identified by the claimant on Schedule 31 no later than 12 months after the
claimant's income tax return is due for the tax year in which it incurred the expenditures.

i+l
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~ Detailed information (continued)
® Partnership allocations — Subsection 127(8) provides for the allocation of the amount that may reasonably be considered to be a partner's share of the ITCs
of the partnership at the end of the fiscal period of the partnership. An allocation of ITCs is generally considered to be the partner's reasonable share of the
ITCs if it is made in the same proportion in which the partners have agreed to share any income or loss and if section 103 is not applicable for the agreement
to share any income or loss. Special rules apply to specified members of a partnership and limited partners. For more information, see Guide T4068, Guide
for the Partnership Information Return (T5013 Forms). See section 127.47 for rules that apply to partnerships for the clean economy ITCs generally. For more
information on partnership allocations for CCUS ITC, see subsection 127.44(11), and for clean technology ITC, subsection 127.45(8).
® For tax purposes, Canada includes the exclusive economic zone of Canada as defined in the Oceans Act (which generally consists of an area of the sea
that is within 200 nautical miles from the Canadian coastline), including the airspace, seabed and subsoil of that zone. For the clean technology ITC,
Canada includes the exclusive economic zone of Canada only for property that is described in subparagraph d(v) or (xiv) of Class 43.1 in Schedule Il of
the Regulations.
e For the purpose of this schedule, the expression Atlantic Canada includes the Gaspé Peninsula and the provinces of Newfoundland and Labrador,
Prince Edward Island, Nova Scotia, and New Brunswick, as well as their respective offshore regions (prescribed in Regulation 4609).
® For the purpose of this schedule, qualified property means property in Atlantic Canada that is used primarily for manufacturing and processing, farming
or fishing, logging, storing grain, or harvesting peat. Qualified property includes new buildings and new machinery and equipment (prescribed in Regulation
4600), and new energy generation and conservation property (prescribed in Regulation 4600). Certain qualified property can also be used primarily to
produce or process electrical energy or steam in a prescribed area (as described in Regulation 4610). See the definition of qualified property in
subsection 127(9) for more information.
— Part 1 — Investments, expenditures and percentages
Specified
Investments percentage
Qualified property and qualified resource property (Part 5)
Qualified property acquired primarily for use in Atlantic Canada . . . . . . it e e e 10 %
Expenditures
SR&ED (Part 11)
If you are a Canadian-controlled private corporation (CCPC), this percentage may apply to the portion that you claim of the SR&ED
qualified expenditure pool that does not exceed your expenditure limit (see Part 10) . ... ... ... . . . . 35 %
Note: If your current year's qualified expenditures are more than your expenditure limit (see Part 10),
the excess is eligible for an ITC calculated at the 15 % rate.
If you are a corporation that is not a CCPC and have incurred qualified expenditures for SR&ED in any area in Canada . ........... 15 %
Apprenticeship job creation (Part 19)
If you paid salary and wages to apprentices in the first 24 months of their apprenticeship contract for employment ... ............ 10 %
Clean economy ITCs
To qualify for the investment tax credit rates below, corporations must elect (in prescribed form) to meet certain labour requirements — prevailing
wage requirements and apprenticeship requirements. They must also attest (in prescribed form) to have met these requirements. Otherwise, the
credit rate will be reduced by 10 percentage points.
Clean technology
If you invested in clean technology property that is acquired and that becomes available for use:
after March 27, 2023, and before 2034 . . e e e e e e e e e e e e 30%
after 2033 and before 2035 L i e e e e e e e e e e e 15%
CCUS (Part 25)
If you incurred qualified carbon capture expenditures to capture carbon directly from ambient air:
after 2021 and before 2031 L e e e e e e e e e e e e e 60%
after 2030 and before 2041 L e e e e e e e e e e e e e 30%
If you incurred qualified carbon capture expenditures to capture carbon other than directly from ambient air:
after 2021 and before 2031 L e e e e e e e e e e e e e 50%
after 2030 and before 2041 L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 25%
If you incurred qualified expenditures for carbon transportation, use, or storage:
after 2021 and before 2031 L e e e e e e e e e e e e e 37.5%
after 2030 and before 2041 L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 18.75 %

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

~ Part 2A — Determination of a qualifying corporation

This section does not apply to the clean economy investment tax credits.
Is the corporation a qualifying corporation? . .. .. L e m Yes D No

Enter your taxable income for the previous tax year* (prior to any loss carrybacks applied) . ................... m

For the purpose of a refundable ITC, a qualifying corporation is defined under subsection 127.1(2). The corporation has to be a CCPC and its taxable income
(before any loss carrybacks) for its previous tax year cannot be more than its qualifying income limit for the particular tax year. If the corporation is associated
with any other corporations during the tax year, the total of the taxable incomes of the corporation and the associated corporations (before any loss carrybacks),
for their last tax year ending in the previous calendar year, cannot be more than their qualifying income limit for the particular tax year.

Note: A CCPC considered associated with another corporation under subsection 256(1) will be considered not associated for the calculation of a
refundable ITC if both of the following conditions are met:

® one corporation is associated with another corporation only because one or more persons own shares of the capital stock of both corporations
® one of the corporations has at least one shareholder who is not common to both corporations

If you are a qualifying corporation, you will earn a 100% refund on your share of any ITCs earned at the 35% rate on qualified expenditures for SR&ED,
up to the allocated expenditure limit.

Some CCPCs that are not qualifying corporations may also earn a 100% refund on their share of any ITCs earned at the 35% rate on qualified expenditures
for SR&ED, up to the allocated expenditure limit. The expenditure limit can be determined in Part 10.

* |f the tax year referred to on line 390 is less than 51 weeks, multiply the taxable income by the following result: 365 divided by the number of days in that
tax year.

~ Part 2B — Determination of an excluded corporation — SR&ED

Is the qualifying corporation an excluded corporation as defined under subsection 127.1(2)? ... ... .. .. . ... @ Yes D No

Only 40% refund will be available to a qualifying corporation that is an excluded corporation as defined under subsection 127.1(2). A corporation is an excluded
corporation if, at any time during the year, it is a corporation that is either controlled by (directly or indirectly, in any manner whatever) or is related to one of the
following:

a) one or more persons exempt from Part | tax under section 149
b) Her Majesty in right of a province, a Canadian municipality, or any other public authority
c) any combination of persons referred to in a) or b) above

~ Part 3 — Corporations in the farming industry

Complete this area if the corporation is making SR&ED contributions.

Is the corporation claiming a contribution in the current year to an agricultural organization whose goal is to finance SR&ED
work (for example, check-off dues)? . ... e m Yes D No

If yes, complete Schedule 125, Income Statement Information, to identify the type of farming industry the corporation is involved in.

Contributions to agricultural organizations for SR&ED* .. .............. X 80% =
Enter on line 350 of Part 8.

* Enter only contributions not already included on Form T661.

Qualified Property and Qualified Resource Property

~ Part 4 — Eligible investments for qualified property from the current tax year

Capital cost Description of investment Date Location used in Amount of
allowance available Atlantic Canada investment
class number for use (province)

Total of investments for qualified property 4A

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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— Part 5 — Current-year credit and account balances — ITC from investments in
qualified property and qualified resource property
ITC atthe end of the previous tax year . .. . o e e 5A
Credit deemed as a remittance of co-op corporations . ............. .. .. ...... m
Creditexpired ..o e e m
Subtotal (line 210 plus line 215) > 5B
ITC at the beginning of the tax year (amount 5A minus amount5B) . ... ... ... . . . . i m
Credit transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary . ... ...........
ITC from repayment of assistance . . ... .. i e
Qualified property (amount4A) .. .......... X 10 % = m
Credit allocated from a partnership . . . .. ... . e m
Subtotal (total of lines 230 to 250) > 5C
Total credit available (line 220 plus amount 5C) . . . . . L e e 5D
Creditdeducted from Part [ tax . ... ... m
Credit carried back to previous years (amount BA) . . . . ... 5E
Credit transferred to offset Part Vil tax liability . . ........ ... ... ... . . . ... m
Subtotal (total of line 260, amount 5E, and line 280) > 5F
Credit balance before refund (amount 5D minus amount 5F) . . . .. .. L e 5G
Refund of credit claimed on investments from qualified property (from Part7) . ........ ... ... ... .. m
ITC closing balance of investments from qualified property and qualified resource property
(@amount 5G minus line 310) . .. e e e m
— Part 6 — Request for carryback of credit from investments in qualified property
Year Month Day
1stprevious tax year | e Credit to be applied Bl
2nd previous tax year | e Credit to be applied EA3
3rd previous tax year | Credit to be applied EA%]
Total of lines 901 to 903 6A
Enter at amount 5E.
— Part 7 — Refund of ITC for qualifying corporations on investments from qualified property
Current-year ITCs (line 240 plus line 250 in Part 5) . . . . o i e e e e e e 7A
Credit balance before refund (from amount 5G) . . . . . L e e 7B
Refund ( 40 % of amount 7A or 7B, whicheverisless) .. .. ... . e 7C
Enter amount 7C or a lesser amount on line 310 in Part 5 (also include in line 780 of the T2 return if you do not claim an SR&ED ITC refund).
T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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SR&ED

~ Part 8 — Qualified SR&ED expenditures

Qualified SR&ED expenditures (line 559 on Form T661) .. . .. v it it it i e 5,628,514

Contributions to agricultural organizations for SR&ED . .......
Deduct:
Government assistance, non-government assistance, or contract
payment L e e e
Subtotal
X 80 %
Contributions to agricultural organizations for SR&ED for the federal

ITC (this amount is updated to line 103 of Part 3. For more details, +
consultthe Help.)* . ... ... . .. >

Qualified SR&ED expenditures (line 559 on Form T661 plus line 103 in Part3)* . ... ...... 5,628,514 » EE 5,628,514
Repayments made in the year (from line 560 0n FOMM TE61)  + + + v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Total qualified SR&ED expenditures (line 350 plus line 370) .. ...ttt m 5,628,514

* If you are claiming only contributions made to agricultural organizations for SR&ED, line 350 should equal line 103 in Part 3. Do not file Form T661.

~ Part 9 — Components of the SR&ED expenditure limit calculation

Part 9 only applies if you are a CCPC.
Note: A CCPC considered associated with another corporation under subsection 256(1) will be considered not associated for the calculation of an SR&ED
expenditure limit if both of the following apply:
® one corporation is associated with another corporation solely because one or more persons own shares of the capital stock of the corporation
® one of the corporations has at least one shareholder who is not common to both corporations

Is the corporation associated with another CCPC for the purpose of calculating the SR&ED expenditure limit? . . . . . . . . ER e No| |
If you answered no to the question on line 385 or if you are not associated with any other corporations, complete line 398.
If you answered yes, complete Schedule 49, Agreement Among Associated Canadian-Controlled Private Corporations to Allocate the Expenditure Limit, to

determine the amounts for associated corporations.

Enter your taxable capital employed in Canada for the previous tax year minus $10 million.
If this amount is nil or negative, enter "0". If this amount is over $40 million, enter $40 million .. ... ... ........... m

~ Part 10 — SR&ED expenditure limit for a CCPC

For a stand-alone (not associated) corporation

$ 40,000,000 minus line 398 inPart9  ........ . ... ... e 10A
Amount 10A divided by $ 40,000,000 L e e e e 10B
Expenditure limit for the stand-alone corporation ($ 3,000,000 multiplied by amount 10B)* . . ................. 10C

For an associated corporation
If associated, the allocation of the SR&ED expenditure limit, as provided on Schedule 49* .+« v v v e e 400

If your tax year is less than 51 weeks, calculate the amount of the expenditure limit as follows:

Amount 10C or line 400 X Number of days in the tax year 365 =  ........ 10D
365
Your SR&ED expenditure limit for the year (enter amount 10C, line 400, or amount 10D, whichever applies) ........ m

* Amount 10C or line 400 cannot be more than $3,000,000.

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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~ Part 11 — Investment tax credits on SR&ED expenditures

Qualified SR&ED expenditures (from line 350 in Part 8) or
the expenditure limit (from line 410 in Part 10), whichever is less* . . . . . . . . 420 X 35% = 1A
Line 350 minus line 410 (if negative, enter"0") ... ... ... ... 430 5,628,514 X 15% = 844,277 11B

If a corporation makes a repayment of any government or non-government assistance, or contract payments that reduced the
amount of qualified expenditures for ITC purposes, the amount of the repayment is eligible for a credit.

Repayments (amount from line 370 in Part 8)

Enter the amount of the repayment on the line that corresponds to the appropriate rate.

Repayment of assistance that reduced a
qualifying expenditure fora CCPC*™* . ...... m

Repayment of assistance made after
September 16, 2016, that reduced a
qualifying expenditure incurred before 2015 . . . [GtdU X 20 %

Repayment of assistance made after
September 16, 2016, that reduced a
qualifying expenditure incurred after 2014 . . .. m

X 35 % 1C

11D

X 15% = ME

Subtotal (total of amounts 11C to 11E) > 11F

Current-year SR&ED ITC (total of amounts 11A, 11B, and 11F; enteron line 540 in Part 12) . ... ... ... ... .. .. 844,277 11G

* For corporations that are not CCPCs, enter "0" for amount 11A.

** If you were a CCPC, this percentage was applied to the portion that you claimed of the SR&ED qualified expenditure pool that did not exceed your
expenditure limit at the time. This percentage includes the rate under subsection 127(10.1), Additions to investment tax credit. See subsection 127(10.1)
for details about exceptions. For expenditures not eligible for this rate use line 480 or 490 as appropriate.

~ Part 12 — Current-year credit and account balances - ITC from SR&ED expenditures

ITC at the end of the Previous tax YEar . . . v ittt et et et e e et et et et e e e e e 494,149 12A
Credit deemed as a remittance of co-op corporations . ............. .. .. ...... m
Creditexpired ..o e m
Subtotal (line 510 plus line 515) > 12B
ITC at the beginning of the tax year (amount 12A minus amount 12B) . . . ot ottt it ettt e e e m 494,149
Credit transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary . .............. 530
Total current-year credit (from amount 11G) . . . ..ottt it e e e m 844,277
Credit allocated from a partnership . . . .. ... . m
Subtotal (total of lines 530 to 550) 844,277 » 844,277 12¢
Total credit available (line 520 plus @MoUNt T2C) .+t v it e e e e e e e e e 1,338,426 12D
Creditdeducted from Part [ tax . ... .. . . m
Credit carried back to previous years (@amount 13A) . .. .. ittt i e 460,000 12
Credit transferred to offset Part Vil tax liability . . ........ ... ... ... . . . ... m
Subtotal (total of line 560, amount 12E, and line 580) 460,000 » 460,000 12F
Credit balance before refund (amount 12D minus amount 12F) .. .ottt it e e e e 878,426 12G
Refund of credit claimed on SR&ED expenditures (from Part 14 or 15, whichever applies) .. .................. m
ITC closing balance on SR&ED (amount 12G minus liNe 610) . o oo vttt e et et et e e e e e e m 878,426

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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~ Part 13 — Request for carryback of credit from SR&ED expenditures

Year Month Day
1st previous tax year 2022-12-31 | Credit to be applied Eil
2nd previous tax year 2021-12-31 | Credit to be applied El¥ 460,000
3rd previous tax year 2020-12-31 | e Credit to be applied EiE]
Total of lines 911 to 913 460,000 13A

Enter at amount 12E.

~ Part 14 — Refund of ITC for qualifying corporations — SR&ED

Complete this part if you are a qualifying corporation as determined on line 101 in Part 2A.*

Current-year ITC (lines 540 plus 550 in Part 12 minus amount 11F) . . ................. 14A

Refundable credits (amount 14A or amount 12G, whicheverisless) ... ... . . . . e 14B
Amount 14B or amount 11A, Whichever is €SS . . . . i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e 14C
Net amount (amount 14B minus amount 14C; if negative, enter "0") . . . . . . . . L e 14D
Amount 14D multiplied by A0 b e e e 14E
AMOUNt 14C e e e e 14F
Refund of ITC (amount 14E plus amount 14F — enter this, or a lesser amount, on line 610 in Part12) .. .............. 14G

Include the total of line 310 in Part 5 and line 610 in Part 12 in line 780 of the T2 return.

* |f you are also an excluded corporation, as determined in Part 2B, amount 14B must be multiplied by 40%. Claim this, or a lesser amount, as your refund
of ITC for amount 14G.

— Part 15 — Refund of ITC for CCPCs that are neither qualifying nor excluded corporations — SR&ED

Complete this part only if you are a CCPC that is not a qualifying corporation as determined on line 101 in Part 2A or an excluded corporation as determined on
line 650 in Part 2B.

Credit balance before refund (@Mount 12G) . . oottt et e e e e e 878,426 15A

Refund of ITC (amount 15A or amount 11A, whicheverisless) ... ... . . . i i e e et 15B
Enter amount 15B, or a lesser amount, on line 610 in Part 12 and also include it in line 780 of the T2 return.

T2 SCH 31 E (24)

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11 ~ VERSION 2024 V1.0 Page 7



2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL
Page 115 of 155

2023-12-31 Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

Recapture — SR&ED

~ Part 16 — Recapture of ITC for corporations and partnerships — SR&ED

You will have a recapture of ITC in a year when all of the following conditions are met:

e you acquired a particular property in the current year or in any of the 20 previous tax years, and the credit was earned in a tax year ending after 1997 and
did not expire before 2008

® you claimed the cost of the property as a qualified expenditure for SR&ED on Form T661

e the cost of the property was included in calculating your ITC or was the subject of an agreement made under subsection 127(13) to transfer qualified

expenditures

you disposed of the property or converted it to commercial use after February 23, 1998. This condition is also met if you disposed of or converted to

commercial use a property that incorporates the particular property previously referred to

Note:

The recapture does not apply if you disposed of the property to a non-arm's-length purchaser who intended to use it all or substantially all for SR&ED.
When the non-arm's-length purchaser later sells or converts the property to commercial use, the recapture rules will apply to the purchaser based on the
historical ITC rate of the original user.

You will report a recapture on the T2 return for the year in which you disposed of the property or converted it to commercial use. In the following tax year,
add the amount of the ITC recapture to the SR&ED expenditure pool.

formats below.

If you have more than one disposition for calculations 1 and 2, complete the columns for each disposition for which a recapture applies, using the calculation

— Calculation 1 - If you meet all of the above conditions
Amount of ITC you originally calculated Amount calculated using ITC rate Amount from column 700 or 710,
for the property you acquired, or the at the date of acquisition whichever is less
original user's ITC where you acquired the (or the original user's date of acquisition)
property from a non-arm's length party, as on either the proceeds of disposition
described in the note above (if sold in an arm's length transaction)
or the fair market value of the property
(in any other case)
)
Subtotal 16A
Enter at amount 17A.
— Calculation 2 — Only if you transferred all or a part of the qualified expenditure to another person under an agreement
described in subsection 127(13); otherwise, enter nil at amount 16B.
A B (o D E F
Rate that the transferee | Proceeds of disposition Amount, if any, Amount ITC earned by the Amount from
used in determining its | of the property if you already provided for determined by transferee for the column D or E,
ITC for qualified dispose of it to an in Calculation 1 the formula qualified expenditures whichever is less
expenditures under a arm's length person; (This allows for the (AxB)-C that were transferred
subsection 127(13) or, in any other case, situation where only
agreement enter the fair market part of the cost of a
value of the property | property is transferred
at conversion or under a subsection
disposition 127(13) agreement.)
720 730 740 750
Subtotal (total of column F) | 168
Enter at amount 17B.
— Calculation 3
As a member of the partnership, you will report your share of the SR&ED ITC of the partnership after the SR&ED ITC has been reduced by the
amount of the recapture. If this amount is a positive amount, you will report it on line 550 in Part 12. However, if the partnership does not have
enough ITC otherwise available to offset the recapture, then the amount by which reductions to ITC exceed additions (the excess) will be
determined and reported on line 760.
Corporate partner's share of the excess of SR&ED ITC
Enter at amount 17C.
T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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~ Part 17 — Total recapture of SR&ED investment tax credit

Recaptured ITC from calculation 1, amount 16A . . . o ot e e e e e e e 17A
Recaptured ITC from calculation 2, amount 16B . . . . . o o e e e e 17B
Recaptured ITC from calculation 3, line 760 in Part 16 . . . . . i i e e e e 17C
Total recapture of SR&ED investment tax credit (total of amounts 17At0 17C) ... ... . . . . i i i 17D
Enter at amount 26A.
Pre-Production Mining

~ Part 18 — Account balances — ITC from pre-production mining expenditures

ITC atthe end of the previous tax year . . . . e 18A
Credit deemed as a remittance of co-op corporations . ............. ... ....... m

Creditexpired ..o e e m

Subtotal (line 841 plus line 845) > 18B

ITC at the beginning of the tax year (amount 18A minus amount 18B) . . ... ... .. . . . it @

Credit transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary ... .. ... .. ... i i i

Total credit available (line 850 plus line 860) . . . . . .. e 18C
Amount of unused credit carried forward from previous years and applied to reduce Part | tax payable in the current year .

ITC closing balance from pre-production mining expenditures (amount 18C minus line885) . ...............

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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2023-12-31

Apprenticeship Job Creation

~ Part 19 — Total current-year credit — ITC from apprenticeship job creation expenditures

If you are a related person as defined under subsection 251(2), has it been agreed in writing that you are the only employer
who will be claiming the apprenticeship job creation tax credit for this tax year for each apprentice whose contract number
(or social insurance number (SIN) or name) appears below? (If not, you cannot claim the tax credit.)

NOD

For each apprentice in their first 24 months of the apprenticeship, enter the apprenticeship contract number registered with Canada, or a province or territory,
under an apprenticeship program designed to certify or license individuals in the trade. For the province, the trade must be a Red Seal trade. If there is no
contract number, enter the SIN or the name of the eligible apprentice.

A B C D E
Contract number Name of eligible trade Eligible salary Column C x Lesser of
(SIN or name of apprentice) and wages* 10 % column D or
$ 2,000

601] 602 604 605

I -

Total current-year credit (total of column
Enter on line 640 in Part 20.

12,000 19A

* Other than qualified expenditure incurred, and net of any other government or non-government assistance received or to be received. Eligible salary and
wages, and qualified expenditures are defined under subsection 127(9).

~ Part 20 — Current-year credit and account balances — ITC from apprenticeship job creation expenditures

ITC atthe end of the previous tax year . ... o e 20A

Credit deemed as a remittance of co-op corporations

Credit expired after 20 tax years

Subtotal (line 612 plus line 615) | 2 20B

ITC at the beginning of the tax year (amount 20A minus amount 20B)

Credit transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary

ITC from repayment of assistance

Total current-year credit (@amount 19A) . .. ... e m 12,000
Credit allocated from a partnership . .. . .. ... @
Subtotal (total of lines 630 to 655) 12,000 p 12,000 20C
Total credit available (line 625 plus aMOUNt 20C) .« vttt e e e e e e e e e 12,000 20D
Creditdeducted from Part [tax .. .. ... e m
Credit carried back to previous years (amount 21A) . ... ... .. . 20E
Subtotal (line 660 plus amount 20E) | 4 20F
ITC closing balance from apprenticeship job creation expenditures (amount 20D minus amount 20F) .. ........ m 12,000
— Part 21 — Request for carryback of credit from apprenticeship job creation expenditures
Year Month Day
Istprevious tax year | e e Credit to be applied EEL
2nd previous tax year | e e e e Credit to be applied EEY3
3rd previous tax year | e Credit to be applied EEE]
Total of lines 931 to 933 21A

Enter at amount 20E.

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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Child Care Spaces

~ Part 22 — Account balances — ITC from child care spaces expenditures

ITC atthe end of the previous tax year . ... o e 22A
Credit deemed as a remittance of co-op corporations . . ... ...t 765
Credit expired after 20 taX YEArs .o v vt it e e 770

Subtotal (line 765 plus line 770) > 228
ITC at the beginning of the tax year (amount 22A minus amount 22B) .. . ..ottt ittt e 775
Credit transferred on an amalgamation or the wind-up of a subsidiary . . ............. 777
Credit allocated from @ partnership . . . oo v ittt it e 782

Subtotal (line 777 plus line 782) > 22C
Total credit available (line 775 plus amount 22C) . . . . . L L e 22D
Credit deducted from Part [ taX oottt e et e et e e e e e 785
ITC closing balance from child care spaces expenditures (amount 22D minus line 785) ... ................ 790

Recapture — Child Care Spaces

~ Part 23 — Recapture of ITC for corporations and partnerships — Child care spaces
The ITC will be added to the taxpayer's tax otherwise payable under Part | of the Act if, at any time within 60 months of the day on which the taxpayer acquired
the property, one of the following situations takes place:
® the new child care space is no longer available
® property that was an eligible expenditure for the child care space is
— disposed of or leased to a lessee
— converted to another use

If the property disposed of is a child care space, the amount that can reasonably be
considered to have been included in the original ITC (paragraph 127(27.12)(@)) v v vt v vttt e e e e e e as 792

In the case of eligible expenditures (paragraph 127(27.12)(b)), the lesser of:

The amount that can reasonably be considered to have been included in the original ITC . . . &S

25% of either the proceeds of disposition (if sold in an arm's length transaction) or

the fair market value (in any other case) of the property ... ..., 797

Amount from line 795 or line 797, whichever is less . . . . . i i e e e e e e e e e e 23A

Partnerships

As a member of the partnership, you will report your share of the child care spaces ITC of the partnership after the child care
spaces ITC has been reduced by the amount of the recapture. If this amount is a positive amount, you will report it on line 782
in Part 22. However, if the partnership does not have enough ITC otherwise available to offset the recapture, then the amount
by which reductions to ITC exceed additions (the excess) will be determined and reported on line 799 below.

Corporate partner's share of the excess of ITC

Total recapture of child care spaces investment tax credit (total of line 792, amount 23A, and line 799) . ............. 23B
Enter at amount 26B.

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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Part 24 — Clean technology ITC

Cleantechnology ITC ... . e e e e e e es

Include in line 780 of the T2 return.

Carbon Capture, Utilization, and Storage

Part 25 — Carbon capture, utilization, and storage ITC

Carbon capture, utilization, and storage ITC . .. ... ... ... i

Include in line 780 of the T2 return.

Summary of Investment Tax Credits

~ Part 26 — Total recapture of investment tax credit

Recaptured SR&ED ITC (@amount 17D) . Lo oo e e et e 26A
Recaptured child care spaces ITC (amount 23B) . . . it e e e e 26B
Total recapture of investment tax credit (amount 26A plus amount26B) ... ... ... .. ... i e 26C
Enter on line 602 of the T2 return.
— Part 27 — Total ITC deducted from Part | tax

ITC from investments in qualified property deducted from Part | tax (line 260 in Part5)  .......... ... .. .. ... ... 27A
ITC from SR&ED expenditures deducted from Part | tax (line 560 in Part 12) . ... ... . i et 27B
ITC from pre-production mining expenditures deducted from Part | tax (line 885inPart18) . ......... ... ... ..... 27C
ITC from apprenticeship job creation expenditures deducted from Part | tax (line 660 in Part 20) ... ................. 27D
ITC from child care space expenditures deducted from Part | tax (line 785 in Part22) . ..................... .. ... 27E
Total ITC deducted from Part | tax (total of amounts 27A10 27E) . . . . . o i i e e e e 27F
Enter on line 652 of the T2 return.

T2 SCH 31 E (24)
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— Continuity of investment tax credit carryovers

CCA class number 97 Apprenticeship job creation ITC

Current year
Addition Applied
current year current year
(A) (B)

12,000

Claimed
as a refund
(&)

Carried back ITC end
of year
(D) (A-B-C-D)

12,000

Prior years
Taxation year ITC beginning
of year

(E)
2022-12-31

Adjustments

(F)

Applied ITC end
current year of year
(G) (E-F-G)

2021-12-31

2020-12-31

2019-12-31

2018-12-31

2017-12-31

2016-12-31

2015-12-31

2014-12-31

2013-12-31

2012-12-31

2011-12-31

2010-12-31

2009-12-31

2008-12-31

2007-12-31

2006-12-31

2005-12-31

2004-12-31

2003-12-31

Total

B+C+D+G

Total ITC utilized

* The ITC end of year includes the amount of ITC expired from the 20" preceding year. Note that this credit expires at the end of the tax year and any expired
credit will be posted to line 215, 515, 615, 770 or 845, as applicable, in Schedule 31 the following year.
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— Continuity of investment tax credit carryovers

CCA class number 99 Cur. or cap. R&D for ITC

Current year
Addition Applied
current year current year
(A) (B)

844,277

Claimed
as a refund
(&)

Carried back ITC end

of year
(D)

460,000

(A-B-C-D)
384,277

Prior years
Taxation year ITC beginning
of year

(E)
2022-12-31

Adjustments

(F)

Applied
current year
G)

ITC end
of year
(E-F-G)

2021-12-31

2020-12-31 494,149

494,149

2019-12-31

2018-12-31

2017-12-31

2016-12-31

2015-12-31

2014-12-31

2013-12-31

2012-12-31

2011-12-31

2010-12-31

2009-12-31

2008-12-31

2007-12-31

2006-12-31

2005-12-31

2004-12-31

2003-12-31

Total 494,149

494,149

B+C+D+G

Total ITC utilized 460,000

* The ITC end of year includes the amount of ITC expired from the 20" preceding year. Note that this credit expires at the end of the tax year and any expired
credit will be posted to line 215, 515, 615, 770 or 845, as applicable, in Schedule 31 the following year.
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Operator
Description (Note) Amount
Increase in ITC from 2020 amended tax return 494,149|00
+
Total 494,149/00

Note: The calculations are performed one at a time, from the first to the last line, and not according to the priority rules of the operations. For example, the

formula 1+2*3 will not result in the same thing as the formula 1+3*2.
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I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Schedule 33
Agency du Canada

Taxable Capital Employed in Canada — Large Corporations

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

e Use this schedule in determining if the total taxable capital employed in Canada of the corporation (other than a financial institution or an insurance
corporation) and its related corporations is greater than $10,000,000.

o |f the total taxable capital employed in Canada of the corporation and its related corporations is greater than $10,000,000, file a completed Schedule 33 with
your T2 Corporation Income Tax Return no later than six months from the end of the tax year.

e Unless otherwise noted, all legislative references are to the Income Tax Act and the Income Tax Regulations.
e Subsection 181(1) defines the terms financial institution, long-term debt, and reserves.

e Subsection 181(3) provides the basis to determine the carrying value of a corporation's assets or any other amount under Part 1.3 for its capital, investment
allowance, taxable capital, or taxable capital employed in Canada, or for a partnership in which it has an interest.

e |f the corporation was a non-resident of Canada throughout the year and carried on a business through a permanent establishment in Canada, go to Part 4,
Taxable capital employed in Canada.

— Part 1 — Capital

Add the following year-end amounts:

Reserves that have not been deducted in calculating income for the year under Part| .. .... m

Capital stock (or members' contributions if incorporated without share capital) ... ....... 167,081,000
Retained @armings . .ot ittt it et e e m 299,032,000
Contributed surplus . ... e e e m

Any other surpluses . . . . . L m

Deferred unrealized foreign exchange gains . ... ... .. . . i

All loans and advances to the corporation . . . ... vttt e m 895,819,523
All indebtedness of the corporation represented by bonds, debentures, notes, mortgages,

hypothecary claims, bankers' acceptances, or similar obligations ... ............... m

Any dividends declared but not paid by the corporation before the end of theyear . ....... m

All other indebtedness of the corporation (other than any indebtedness for a lease)

that has been outstanding for more than 365 days before the end of theyear . .......... m

The total of all amounts, each of which is the amount, if any, in respect of a partnership in which
the corporation held a membership interest at the end of the year, either directly or indirectly
through another partnership (see note below) .. .................. ... .. ..., m

Subtotal (add lines 101 to 112) 1,361,932,523 » 1,361,932,523 A

Note:
Line 112 is determined by the formula (A — B) x C/D (as per paragraph 181.2(3)(g)) where:

A is the total of all amounts that would be determined for lines 101, 107, 108, 109, and 111 in respect of the partnership for its last fiscal period that
ends at or before the end of the year if

a) those lines applied to partnerships in the same manner that they apply to corporations, and
b) those amounts were computed without reference to amounts owing by the partnership
(i) to any corporation that held a membership interest in the partnership either directly or indirectly through another partnership, or

(ii) to any partnership in which a corporation described in subparagraph (i) held a membership interest either directly or indirectly through
another partnership.

B is the partnership's deferred unrealized foreign exchange losses at the end of the period,

C is the share of the partnership's income or loss for the period to which the corporation is entitled either directly or indirectly through another
partnership, and

D is the partnership's income or loss for the period.

i+l
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— Part 1 — Capital (continued)

A loan or advance to, or a bond, debenture, note, mortgage, hypothecary claim or similar obligation of, a partnership each
member of which was, throughout the year, another corporation (other than a financial institution) that was not exempt from

Subtotal A (from page 1) 1,361,932,523 A
Deduct the following amounts:
Deferred tax debit balance atthe end of theyear .. .......... ... ... ........ m
Any deficit deducted in calculating its shareholders' equity (including, for this purpose, the
amount of any provision for the redemption of preferred shares) at the end of theyear ... .. E
To the extent that the amount may reasonably be regarded as being included in any of lines
101 to 112 above for the year, any amount deducted under subsection 135(1) in calculating
income under Part [ fortheyear. . ... ... . . ... .
Deferred unrealized foreign exchange losses at the end of theyear . ............... m
Subtotal (add lines 121 to 124) > B
Capital for the year (amount A minus amount B) (if negative, enter “0”) . . . . . . i m 1,361,932,523
— Part 2 — Investment allowance
Add the carrying value at the end of the year of the following assets of the corporation:
Ashare of another corporation . . . .. e m
A loan or advance to another corporation (other than a financial institution) .. .. ... .. .. ... ... . ..., m 6,172,000
A bond, debenture, note, mortgage, hypothecary claim, or similar obligation of another corporation
(other than a financial institution) . . . ... e e e e e
Long-term debt of a financial institution . . . .. L e e m
A dividend payable on a share of the capital stock of another corporation ... ......... ... ... .. . ... ... m

1. Lines 401 to 405 should not include the carrying value of a share of the capital stock of, a dividend payable by, or indebtedness of a corporation that is
exempt from tax under Part |.3 (other than a non-resident corporation that at no time in the year carried on business in Canada through a permanent
establishment).

2. Where the corporation has an interest in a partnership held either directly or indirectly through another partnership, refer to subsection 181.2(5) for
additional rules regarding the carrying value of an interest in a partnership.

3. Where a trust is used as a conduit for loaning money from a corporation to another related corporation (other than a financial institution), the loan will be
considered to have been made directly from the lending corporation to the borrowing corporation. Refer to subsection 181.2(6) for special rules that may

apply.

tax under this Part (otherwise than because of paragraph 181.1(3)(d)), or another partnership described in

PArAGraph 181,200 1)+ et et e e e e 406 |

Aninterest in a partnership (see note 2 below) .. .. e

Investment allowance for the year (add liNes 40110 407) .« ot vttt ettt e e e e e 490 6,172,000
Notes:

— Part 3 — Taxable capital

Capital forthe year (line 190) . . ittt ittt e e et e e e e e e 1,361,932,523 C
Deduct: Investment allowance for the year (line 490) . . .. e e 6,172,000 p
Taxable capital for the year (amount C minus amount D) (if negative, enter "0") .. . ...t i ii e 500 | 1,355,760,523
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— Part 4 — Taxable capital employed in Canada

To be completed by a corporation that was resident in Canada at any time in the year

Taxable capital for Taxable income earned Taxable capital
p 610 690 1,355,760,523

the year (line 500) 1,355,760,523 x in Canada 1,000 = employed in Canada
Taxable income 1,000

Notes: 1. Regulation 8601 gives details on calculating the amount of taxable income earned in Canada.
2. Where a corporation's taxable income for a tax year is "0," it shall, for the purposes of the above calculation, be deemed
to have a taxable income for that year of $1,000.
3. In the case of an airline corporation, Regulation 8601 should be considered when completing the above calculation.

To be completed by a corporation that was a non-resident of Canada throughout the year
and carried on a business through a permanent establishment in Canada

Total of all amounts each of which is the carrying value at the end of the year of an asset of the corporation used in the year or
held in the year, in the course of carrying on any business during the year through a permanent establishment in Canada .

Deduct the following amounts:

Corporation's indebtedness at the end of the year [other than indebtedness described in any of
paragraphs 181.2(3)(c) to (f)] that may reasonably be regarded as relating to a business it carried
on during the year through a permanent establishmentin Canada  ..................

Total of all amounts each of which is the carrying value at the end of year of an asset

described in subsection 181.2(4) of the corporation that it used in the year, or held in the

year, in the course of carrying on any business during the year through a permanent

establishmentin Canada . . . . ... . i e e 712

Total of all amounts each of which is the carrying value at the end of year of an asset of the

corporation that is a ship or aircraft the corporation operated in international traffic, or

personal or movable property used or held by the corporation in carrying on any business

during the year through a permanent establishment in Canada (see note below) ..........

Total deductions (add lines 711, 712, and 713) > E

Taxable capital employed in Canada (line 701 minus amount E) (if negative, enter “0) ... ... ... ... ....... 790

Note: Complete line 713 only if the country in which the corporation is resident did not impose a capital tax for the year on similar assets, or a tax for the
year on the income from the operation of a ship or aircraft in international traffic, of any corporation resident in Canada during the year.

— Part 5 — Calculation for purposes of the small business deduction

This part is applicable to corporations that are not associated in the current year, but were associated in the prior year.

Taxable capital employed in Canada (amount from line 690) . . . . . . i it e e F
DEAUCE. ottt e e e 10,000,000 G

Excess (amount F minus amount G) (if negative, enter "0") H

Calculation for purposes of the small business deduction (amount Hx 0.225%) . .......... ... . . ... |
Enter this amount at line 415 of the T2 return.
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Operator
Description (Note) Amount

Notes Payable 837,185,000/00
Customer deposits + 910,454/00
Customer deposits + 43,273,520/00
Customer credit balances + 14,450,549/00

+

+

Total 895,819,523/00

Note: The calculations are performed one at a time, from the first to the last line, and not according to the priority rules of the operations. For example, the

formula 1+2*3 will not result in the same thing as the formula 1+3*2.
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Canada Revenue Agence du revenu
I * I Agency du Canada Schedule 50

Shareholder Information

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

® All private corporations must complete this schedule for any shareholder who holds 10% or more of the corporation's common and/or preferred shares.

® Provide only one number (business number, partnership account number, social insurance number or trust number) per shareholder.

Name of shareholder Business number Social Trust Percentage |Percentage
(after name, indicate in brackets or partnership insurance number common | preferred
if the shareholder is a corporation, account number number (T followed shares shares
partnership, individual, or trust) (9 digits, 2 letters, (9 digits) by 8 digits)
and 4 digits.
If not registered,
enter "NR")
1| Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. (Corporation) 894110816RC0001 100.000
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
1+l
T2 SCH 50 E (19) Canada
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I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Schedule 53
Agency du Canada

General Rate Income Pool (GRIP) Calculation

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

On: 2023-12-31

® |f you are a Canadian-controlled private corporation (CCPC) or a deposit insurance corporation (DIC), use this schedule to determine the general rate
income pool (GRIP).

® Credit unions are not required to complete this schedule.

® All legislative references are to the federal Income Tax Act and Income Tax Regulations.

® When an eligible dividend was paid in the tax year or there was a change in the GRIP balance, file a completed copy of this schedule with your T2
Corporation Income Tax Return. Do not send your worksheets with your return, but keep them in your records in case we ask to see them later.

® Subsection 89(1) defines the terms eligible dividend, excessive eligible dividend designation, general rate income pool, and low rate income pool.

— Eligibility for the various additions
Answer the following questions to determine the corporation’s eligibility for the various additions:

2006 addition
1. Is this the corporation's first taxation year that includes January 1, 20067 . . . . . . . . i i e D Yes No
2. If not, what is the date of the taxation year end of the corporation's first year that includes January 1, 2006?
Enter the date and go directly to QUESHION 4 L . L . L e e e 2006-12-31
3. During that first year, was the corporation a CCPC or would it have been a CCPC if not for the election
Of SUDSECHiON BO(11) ITA? e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes D No

If the answer to question 3 is yes, complete Part "GRIP addition for 2006".

Change in the type of corporation
4. Was the corporation a CCPC during its preceding taxation year? . . . . . . i e Yes D No

5. Corporations that become a CCPC or a DIC . . oo i e e e e e ettt e e e et e e e D Yes No
If the answer to question 5 is yes, complete Part 4.

Amalgamation (first year of filing after amalgamation)
6. Corporations that were formed as a result of an amalgamation . . . . . . . . e e D Yes No
If the answer to question 6 is yes, answer questions 7 and 8. If the answer is no, go to question 9.

7. Was one or more of the predecessor corporations neithera CCPC nora DIC? . . . . . .. i e e e e D Yes D No
If the answer to question 7 is yes, complete Part 4.

8. Was one or more of the predecessor corporation a CCPC or a DIC during the taxation year that ended immediately
before amalgamation? L e e e e e e D Yes D No

If the answer to question 8 is yes, complete Part 3.

Winding-up
9. Has the corporation wound-up a subsidiary in the preceding taxation year? . . . . . . . i e D Yes No
If the answer to question 9 is yes, answer questions 10 and 11. If the answer is no, go to Part 1.
10. Was the subsidiary neither a CCPC nor a DIC during its last taxation year? . . . .. . . . i et D Yes D No
If the answer to question 10 is yes, complete Part 4.
11. Was the subsidiary a CCPC or a DIC during its last taxation year? .. . . .. i e e i e e D Yes D No

If the answer to question 11 is yes, complete Part 3.

i+l
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— Part 1 — General rate income pool (GRIP)

GRIP at the end of the Previous tax Year . .ot i ittt it et et et e e e e m 236,035,242
Taxable income for the year (DICs enter "0")* .. ... ... i i m

Amount on line 400, 405, 410, or 428

of the T2 return, whichever is the least* .. ...........

For a CCPC, the lesser of aggregate investment income

(line 440 of the T2 return) and taxable income* . ....... m

Subtotal (line 130 plus line 140) > A
Income taxable at the general corporate rate (line 110 minus amount A)
(if negative enter "0") .. e m
After-tax income (line 150 multiplied by 0.72 (the general rate factor for the tax year)) . .................. m
Eligible dividends received inthe taxyear ... ... ... . . . . i e m
Dividends deductible under section 113 received in the taxyear .. ...............
Subtotal (line 200 plus line 210) > B
Becoming a CCPC (amount W5 inPart4) ... ... ittt i ie e 220
Post-amalgamation (total of amount E4 in Part 3 and amount W5 in Part4) . ......... 230
Post-wind-up (total of amount E4 in Part 3 and amount W5 inPart4) .............. 240
Subtotal (add lines 220, 230, and 240) Al >
Subtotal (add lines 100, 190, 290, and amount B) 236,035,242 cC

Eligible dividends paid in the previous taxyear . ... ... ... ... i m
Excessive eligible dividend designations made in the previous taxyear . ............

(If becoming a CCPC (subsection 89(4) applies), enter "0" on lines 300 and 310.)

Subtotal (line 300 minus line 310) | 2 D
GRIP before adjustment for specified future tax consequences (amount C minus amount D) (amount can be negative) - m 236,035,242
Total GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to previous tax years (amount L3inPart2)  ............ 560 | 1,536,286
GRIP at the end of the tax year (line 490 minus iN€ 560) . . . ot vttt ettt ettt e e e e e e m 234,498,956

Enter this amount on line 160 of Schedule 55, Part 11l.1 Tax on Excessive Eligible Dividend Designations.

* Forlines 110, 130, and 140, the income amount is the amount before considering specified future tax consequences. This phrase is defined in
subsection 248(1). It includes the deduction of a loss carryback from subsequent tax years, a reduction of Canadian exploration expenses and
Canadian development expenses that were renounced in subsequent tax years (for example, flow-through share renunciations), reversals of income
inclusions where an option is exercised in subsequent tax years, and the effect of certain foreign tax credit adjustments.

T2 SCH53 E (22)
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defined in subsection 248(1) from the current tax year. Otherwise, enter "0" on line 560.

First previous tax year 2022-12-31

Taxable income before specified future tax consequences
from the currenttaxyear  .......... ... .. ..o A1

Enter the following amounts before specified future tax
consequences from the current tax year:

Amount on line 400, 405, 410,
or 428 of the T2 return,

— Part 2 — GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to previous tax years
Complete this part if the corporation's taxable income of any of the previous three tax years took into account the specified future tax consequences

2026-2030 Custom IR

EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6
Tab2
Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 130 of 155

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee
86339 1363 RC0001

whicheveristheleast ........... B1
Aggregate investment income
(line 440 of the T2 return) . ........ C1
Subtotal (amount B1 plus amount C1) | 4 D1
Subtotal (amount A1 minus amount D1) (if negative, enter "0") > E1
Future tax consequences that occur for the current year
Amount carried back from the current year to a prior year
Non-capital loss
carry-back Capital loss Restricted farm Farm loss Other Total
(paragraph 111 carry-back loss carry-back carry-back carrybacks
(1)(a) ITA)
Taxable income after specified future tax consequences . ...... F1
Enter the following amounts after specified future tax consequences:
Amount on line 400, 405, 410,
or 428 of the T2 return,
whicheveristheleast ........... G1
Aggregate investment income
(line 440 of the T2 return) . ........ H1
Subtotal (amount G1 plus amount H1) | 4 1
Subtotal (amount F1 minus amount I1) (if negative, enter "0") > J1
Subtotal (amount E1 minus amount J1) (if negative, enter "0") K1
GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to the first previous tax year
(amount K1 multiplied by 072 ) 500

T2 SCH53 E (22)
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Second previous tax year 2021-12-31

Taxable income before specified future tax consequences from

the current tax year 8,886,264 A2

Enter the following amounts before specified future tax
consequences from the current tax year:

Amount on line 400, 405, 410,
or 428 of the T2 return,
whicheveristheleast ........... B2

Aggregate investment income
(line 440 of the T2 return) . ........

826,786 c2
826,786 »

Subtotal (amount A2 minus amount D2) (if negative, enter "0")

826,786 D2
8,059,478 »

Subtotal (amount B2 plus amount C2)
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Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

— Part 2 — GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to previous tax years (continued)

8,059,478 E2

86339 1363 RC0001

Future tax consequences that occur for the current year
Amount carried back from the current year to a prior year

5,925,748 p

Non-capital loss
carry-back Capital loss Restricted farm Farm loss Other Total
(paragraph 111 carry-back loss carry-back carry-back carrybacks
(1)(a) ITA)
2,960,516 2,960,516
Taxable income after specified future tax consequences . ...... 5,925,748 F2
Enter the following amounts after specified future tax consequences:
Amount on line 400, 405, 410,
or 428 of the T2 return,
whicheveristheleast ........... G2
Aggregate investment income
(line 440 of the T2 return) . ........ H2
Subtotal (amount G2 plus amount H2) > 12

5,925,748 J2

Subtotal (amount F2 minus amount 12) (if negative, enter "0")
Subtotal (amount E2 minus amount J2) (if negative, enter "0")

GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to the second previous tax year

2,133,730 K2

(amount K2 multiplied by 072 ) 520 1,536,286
T2 SCH53 E (22)
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Third previous tax year 2020-12-31

Taxable income before specified future tax consequences from
the currenttaxyear ... ... ...t 927,952 A3

Enter the following amounts before specified future tax
consequences from the current tax year:

Amount on line 400, 405, 410,
or 428 of the T2 return,

— Part 2 — GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to previous tax years (continued)
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GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to the third previous tax year
Total GRIP adjustment for specified future tax consequences to previous tax years:

Enter amount L3 on line 560

(amount K3 multiplied by 0.7 ) e e

(add lines 500, 520, and 540) (if negative, enter "0") . ... e e e e

whicheveristheleast ........... B3
Aggregate investment income
(line 440 of the T2 return) . ........ C3
Subtotal (amount B3 plus amount C3) | 4 D3
Subtotal (amount A3 minus amount D3) (if negative, enter "0") 927,952 » 927,952 E3
Future tax consequences that occur for the current year
Amount carried back from the current year to a prior year
Non-capital loss
carry-back Capital loss Restricted farm Farm loss Other Total
(paragraph 111 carry-back loss carry-back carry-back carrybacks
(1)(a) ITA)
Taxable income after specified future tax consequences . ...... F3
Enter the following amounts after specified future tax consequences:
Amount on line 400, 405, 410,
or 428 of the T2 return,
whicheveristheleast ........... G3
Aggregate investment income
(line 440 of the T2 return) . ........ H3
Subtotal (amount G3 plus amount H3) | 4 13
Subtotal (amount F3 minus amount I3) (if negative, enter "0") > J3
Subtotal (amount E3 minus amount J3) (if negative, enter "0") K3

1,536,286 L3
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— Part 3 — Worksheet to calculate the GRIP addition post-amalgamation or post-wind-up
(predecessor or subsidiary was a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year)

nb. 1 Post amalgamation . . . D Postwind-up ...... D
® Complete this part when there has been an amalgamation (within the meaning assigned by subsection 87(1)) or a wind-up (to which subsection 88(1)
applies) and the predecessor or subsidiary corporation was a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year. The last tax year for a predecessor corporation was its tax
year that ended immediately before the amalgamation and for a subsidiary corporation was its tax year during which its assets were distributed to the parent
on the wind-up.

® Calculate the GRIP addition of a successor corporation following an amalgamation at the end of its first tax year.
® Calculate the GRIP addition of a parent corporation upon wind-up at the end of the tax year that ends immediately after the tax year in which the parent has
received the assets of the subsidiary.

® |n the calculation below, corporation means a predecessor or a subsidiary. Complete a separate worksheet for each predecessor and each subsidiary that
was a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year. Keep a copy of this calculation for your records, in case we ask to see it later.

Corporation's GRIP atthe end of its last tax year . . . . . .o A4
Eligible dividends paid by the corporation inits last taxyear . ... ................... B4
Excessive eligible dividend designations made by the corporation in its last taxyear ......... C4

Subtotal (amount B4 minus amount C4) | 2 D4
GRIP addition post-amalgamation or post-wind-up (predecessor or subsidiary was a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year)
(@mount A4 minus amount DA) L L. e e e e e e e E4

After you complete this calculation for each predecessor and each subsidiary, calculate the total of all the E4 amounts. Enter this total amount on:
— line 230 for post-amalgamation; or
— line 240 for post-wind-up.
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— Part 4 — Worksheet to calculate the GRIP addition post-amalgamation, post-wind-up
(predecessor or subsidiary was not a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year),
or the corporation is becoming a CCPC

nb. 1 Corporation becominga CCPC . . . .. D Post amalgamation . ......... D Postwind-up ............. D

® Complete this part when there has been an amalgamation (within the meaning assigned by subsection 87(1)) or a wind-up (to which subsection 88(1) applies)
and the predecessor or subsidiary was not a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year, or when a corporation has become a CCPC since the end of its previous tax
year. The last tax year for a predecessor corporation was its tax year that ended immediately before the amalgamation and for a subsidiary corporation was
its tax year during which its assets were distributed to the parent on the wind-up.

® Calculate the GRIP addition of a successor corporation following an amalgamation at the end of its first tax year.

® Calculate the GRIP addition of a parent corporation upon wind-up at the end of the tax year that ends immediately after the tax year in which the parent has
received the assets of the subsidiary.

® Calculate the GRIP addition of a corporation that became a CCPC since the end of its previous tax year.

® |n the calculation below, corporation means a predecessor or a subsidiary, or a corporation that became a CCPC since the end of its previous tax year.
Complete a separate worksheet for each predecessor and each subsidiary that was not a CCPC or a DIC in its last year. Keep a copy of this calculation for
your records, in case we ask to see it later.

Cost amount to the corporation of all property immediately before the end of its previous/last taxyear ... ............... A5

The corporation's money on hand immediately before the end of its previous/lasttax year . ... ....... .. ... ... .. ..., B5
Total of subsection 111(1) losses that would have been deductible in calculating the corporation's taxable income for

the previous/last tax year if the corporation had had unlimited income from each business carried on and each property held and
had realized an unlimited amount of capital gains for the previous/last tax year:

Non-capital losses ... ... .. C5
Netcapital losses . ........ ... . . . . ..o, D5
Farmlosses ... ... i E5
Restricted farmlosses . ........ ... . ..o oL F5
Limited partnershiplosses .. ................. ... G5
Subtotal (add amounts C5 to G5) > H5

Total of all amounts deducted under subsection 111(1) in calculating the corporation's taxable income for the previous/last tax year:

Non-capital losses .. ........ ... . .. 15
Net capital losses ... ... .. . i J5
Farmlosses ... ... i K5
Restricted farmlosses .. ...... ... .. .. .. L5
Limited partnershiplosses .. ......... ... ........ M5
Subtotal (add amounts 15 to M5) > N5
Unused and unexpired losses at the end of the corporation's previous/last tax year
(amount H5 minus amount N5) > 05
Subtotal (add amounts A5, B5, and O5) P5
All the corporation's debts and other obligations to pay that were
outstanding immediately before the end of its previous/last taxyear . ................. Q5
Paid-up capital of all the corporation's issued and outstanding shares
of capital stock immediately before the end of its previous/lasttaxyear . ............... R5
All the corporation's reserves deducted in its previous/lasttaxyear . ... ............... S5
The corporation's capital dividend account immediately before the end
ofits previous/last tax year . . ... e T5
The corporation's low rate income pool immediately before the end of
its previous/last tax year . ... e us
Subtotal (add amounts Q5 to U5) > V5

GRIP addition post-amalgamation or post-wind-up (predecessor or subsidiary was not a CCPC or a DIC in its last tax year),
or the corporation is becoming a CCPC (amount P5 minus amount V5) (if negative, enter "0")  .................... W5

After you complete this worksheet for each predecessor and each subsidiary, calculate the total of all the W5 amounts. Enter this total amount on:
— line 220 for a corporation becoming a CCPC;
— line 230 for post-amalgamation; or
— line 240 for post-wind-up.
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I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Schedule 508
Agency du Canada

Ontario Research and Development Tax Credit

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

® Use this schedule to:
— calculate an Ontario research and development tax credit (ORDTC);
— claim an ORDTC earned in the tax year or carried forward from any of the 20 previous tax years that are a tax year ending after
December 31, 2008, to reduce Ontario corporate income tax payable in the current tax year;
— carry back an ORDTC earned in the tax year to reduce Ontario corporate income tax payable in any of the three previous tax years;
— add an ORDTC that was allocated to the corporation by a partnership of which it was a member;
— add an ORDTC transferred after an amalgamation or windup; or
— calculate a recapture of the ORDTC.

® The ORDTC is a non-refundable tax credit on eligible expenditures incurred by a corporation in a tax year. The ORDTC rate is:
— 4.5% for tax years that end before June 1, 2016;
— 3.5% for tax years that start after May 31, 2016; and
— prorated for a tax year that ends on or after June 1, 2016, and includes May 31, 2016.

® An eligible expenditure is an expenditure for a permanent establishment in Ontario of a corporation, that is a qualified expenditure for the purposes
of section 127 of the federal Income Tax Act for scientific research and experimental development (SR&ED) carried on in Ontario.

® Only corporations that are not exempt from Ontario corporate income tax and none of whose income is exempt income can claim the ORDTC.
® Complete and attach this schedule to the T2 Corporation Income Tax Return for the tax year.

® To claim this credit, you must also send in completed copies of the Form T661, Scientific Research and Experimental Development (SR&ED) Expenditures
Claim, and the Schedule 31, Investment Tax Credit - Corporations, within 18 months of the tax year end.

~ Part 1 — Ontario SR&ED expenditure pool

Total eligible expenditures incurred by the corporation in Ontario in the tax year . ... ..... m 5,399,246 A
Government assistance, non-government assistance, or a contract payment
for eligible expenditures . ... e m B
Net eligible expenditures for the tax year (amount A minus amount B)
(ifnegative, enter "0") L. e e e 5,399,246 C
Eligible expenditures transferred to the corporation by another corporation . ........... m D
Subtotal (amount C plus amount D) 5,399,246 P 5,399,246 E
Eligible expenditures the corporation transferred to another corporation . .. ... ... ... . . . . m F
Ontario SR&ED expenditure pool (amount E minus amount F) (if negative, enter"0") . ..................... m 5,399,246 ¢

— Part 2 — Eligible repayments

The repayment of the ORDTC is calculated using the ORDTC rate that you used to determine your tax credit at the time your eligible expenditures were
reduced because of the government or non-government assistance, or contract payments. Enter the amount of the repayment on the line that corresponds
to the appropriate rate.

Repayments for tax years that end before June 1,2016 . ....... m X 45% = m H

Repayment for a tax year that ends on or after June 1, 2016 and includes May 31, 2016. Complete the proration calculation below.
Number of days
in the tax year
before June 1, 2016 152 X 45% = 1.8689 % 1
Number of days 366
in the tax year

Number of days
in the tax year
after May 31, 2016 yZv3 214 X 35% = 2.0464% 2
Number of days Y%y 366
in the tax year

Subtotal (percentage 1 plus percentage 2) ___3.9153 o, 3

Repayments for a tax year that ends on or after
June 1, 2016 and includes May 31,2016 . ..... m X percentage 3 3.9153 % = m

i+l

T2 SCH 508 E (17) Canada
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— Part 2 — Eligible repayments (continued)

Repayments for tax years that start after May 31,2016 ... ... .. m X 35% = J

Repayments made in the tax year

of government or non-government

assistance or contract payments

that reduced eligible expenditures

for first term or second term

shared-use equipment

acquired before 2014 . . . . Y x 1/ 4 = X 459% =g K

Eligible repayments (total of amounts Hto K) . . . .. o e @ L

— Part 3 — Calculation of the current part of the ORDTC

For tax years that end before June 1, 2016

Ontario SR&ED expenditure pool (amount GinPart1) ............ X 45% = m M
ORDTC allocated to the corporation by a partnership of which it is a member (other than a specified member)

for a fiscal period that ends in the corporation’s tax year * . . . .. ... e m

Eligible repayments (amount Lin Part2) . ... e (0]
Current part of the ORDTC for tax years that end before June 1, 2016 (total of amounts MtoO) .. ............

For a tax year that ends on or after June 1, 2016, and includes May 31, 2016

Number of days
in the tax year

before June 1, 2016 X 45% = % 4
Number of days
in the tax year
Number of days
in the tax year
after May 31, 2016 X 35% = % 5
Number of days
in the tax year
Subtotal (percentage 4 plus percentage5) — % 6
Ontario SR&ED expenditure pool (amount Gin Part 1) . . X percentage 6 % = m Q
ORDTC allocated to the corporation by a partnership of which it is a member (other than a specified member)
for a fiscal period that ends in the corporation’s tax year * .. . . . ... . e m R
Eligible repayments (amount Lin Part2) . ... e S
Part of the ORDTC for a tax year that ends on or after June 1, 2016, and includes May 31, 2016
(total of amounts Q10 S) . . o i e e e e e e e e 231 T
For tax years that start after May 31, 2016
Ontario SR&ED expenditure pool (amount GinPart1) . ........... 5,399,246 X 35% = m 188,974 u
ORDTC allocated to the corporation by a partnership of which it is a member (other than a specified member)
for a fiscal period that ends in the corporation’s tax year * . . .. . ... . e Y
Eligible repayments (amount Lin Part2) . ... e w
The ORDTC for tax years that start after May 31, 2016 (total of amounts Ut W) .+« v v v e v e e e eeee s 188,974 x

* If there is a disposal or change of use of eligible property, see Part 7 on page 4.
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~ Part 4 — Calculation of ORDTC available for deduction and ORDTC balance

ORDTC balance at the end of the previous taxyear .. ...... .. ... . . . . ..

(amount P, T or X in Part 3 whichever applies)

Are you waiving all or part of the
current part of the ORDTC? . . . . . . BEves1| | no2
If you answered yes at line 315, enter the amount of

the tax credit waived on line 320.

If you answered no at line 315, enter "0" on line 320.

Waiver of the current part of the ORDTC .+« oo v vt ... 320 DD

Subtotal (amount CC minus amount DD) 188,974 p»

ORDTC available for deduction (total of amounts AA,BBandEE) ....................
ORDTC claimed ** . . e e e e e e e e e e
(Enter amount GG on line 416 on page 5 of Schedule 5, Tax Calculation Supplementary —
Corporations)

ORDTC carried back to previous tax years (from Part5) . .............. ... ... .....

Subtotal (amount GG plus amount HH)

** This amount cannot be more than the lesser of the following amounts:
— ORDTC available for deduction (amount FF); or

273,299 Y

z

273,299 AA

BB

ORDTC expired after 20 tax years . ... ... ... ... i m
ORDTC at the beginning of the tax year (amount Y minus amountZ) . .............. m
ORDTC transferred to the corporation on amalgamation orwindup ... .............. m
Currentpartof ORDTC . ...............uiuuuun. 188,974 cc

188,974 EE

462,273 » 462,273 FF

GG

........... 325 462,273 44

ORDTC balance at the end of the tax year (amount FF minus amountll) . ..................

— Ontario corporate income tax payable before the ORDTC and the Ontario corporate minimum tax credit (amount from line E6 on page 5 of Schedule 5).

~ Part 5 — Request for carryback of tax credit

Year ‘ Month ‘ Day
1% previous tax year 2022-12-31 |
2" previous tax year 2021-12-31 | e
3" previous tax year 2020-12-31 |

Credit to be applied m
Credit to be applied m
Credit to be applied

Total (total of amount 901 to 903)(enter at amount HH in Part 4)
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— Part 6 — Analysis of tax credit available for carryforward by tax year of origin

You can complete this part to show all the credits from previous tax years available for carryforward, by year of origin. This will help you determine
the amount of credit that could expire in following years.

Tax year of origin Tax year of origin
(earliest tax year first) (earliest tax year first)
Year ‘ Month ‘ Day Credit available Year ‘ Month ‘ Day Credit available
2003-12-31 2013-12-31
2004-12-31 2014-12-31
2005-12-31 2015-12-31
2006-12-31 2016-12-31
2007-12-31 2017-12-31
2008-12-31 2018-12-31
2009-12-31 2019-12-31
2010-12-31 2020-12-31 141,034
2011-12-31 2021-12-31
2012-12-31 2022-12-31 132,265
Current tax year 2023-12-31 188,974
Total (equals line 325 in Part 4) 462,273

The amount available from the 20th previous tax year will expire after this year. When you file your return for the next year, you will enter the expired
amount on line 300 of Schedule 508 for that year.

~ Part 7 — Calculation of a recapture of ORDTC

You will have a recapture of ORDTC in a tax year when you meet all of the following conditions:

e you acquired a particular property in the current year or in any of the 20 previous tax years if the ORDTC was earned in a tax year ending
after 2008;

® you claimed the cost of the property as an eligible expenditure for the ORDTC;

e the cost of the property was included in computing your ORDTC or was subject to an agreement made under subsection 127(13) of the federal Act
to transfer qualified expenditures and section 42 of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) applied; and

e you disposed of the property or converted it to commercial use in a tax year ending after December 31, 2008. You also meet this condition if you
disposed of or converted to commercial use a property which incorporates the particular property previously referred to.

Note: The recapture does not apply if you disposed of the property to a non-arm's length purchaser who intended to use it all or substantially all for
SR&ED in Ontario. When the non-arm's length purchaser later sells or converts the property to commercial use, the recapture rules will apply to the
purchaser based on the historical federal investment tax credit (ITC) rate *** of the original user in Calculation 1 below.

You have to report the recapture on Schedule 5 for the year in which you disposed of the property or converted it to commercial use. If the corporation
is a member of a partnership, report its share of the recapture.

Complete the columns for each disposition for which a recapture applies, using the calculation formats below.

*** Federal ITC in calculations 1 and 2 should be determined without reference to paragraph (e) of the definition investment tax credit in subsection
127(9) of the federal Act.

Calculation 1 — Complete this part If you meet all of the above conditions

KK LL MM
Amount of federal ITC you originally calculated Amount calculated using the federal ITC rate at the Amount from column 700 or 710,
for the property you acquired, or the original date of acquisition (or the original user's date of whichever is less
user's federal ITC where you acquired the acquisition) on either the proceeds of disposition
property from a non-arm's length party, as (if sold in an arm's length transaction) or the fair
described in the note above market value of the property (in any other case)
700 710
1.
Total of column MM (enter at amount WW in Part 8 ) NN
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00

under an agreement under

720

Rate percentage that the transferee
used to determine its federal ITC for
qualified expenditure that was transferred

subsection 127(13) of the federal Act

PP

Proceeds of disposition of the property if you
dispose of it to a person at arm's length;
or, in any other case, the fair market value
of the property at conversion or disposition

730

QQ

Amount, if any, already provided for in
Calculation 1 (this allows for the situation
where only part of the cost of a property

is transferred for an agreement under

subsection 127(13) of the federal Act)

740

RR

(OO xPP) -QQ
(using the columns above)

Amount determined by the formula

SS

Federal ITC earned by the transferee for the
qualified expenditure that was transferred

750

TT

Amount from column RR or SS,
whichever is less

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11

Total of column TT (enter at amount XX in Part 8) uu

Calculation 3

As a member of a partnership, you will report your share of the ORDTC of the partnership after the ORDTC has been reduced by the amount of the

recapture. If this is a positive amount, you will report it on line 205, 206, or 207 in Part 3, whichever applies. However, if the partnership does not have

enough ORDTC otherwise available to offset the recapture, then the amount by which reductions to the ORDTC exceeds additions (the excess) will be
determined and reported on line VV.

Corporate partner's share of the excess of ORDTC (enter atamount ZZin Part 8) . ... ... ... ...t on. 760 A%
— Part 8 — Total recapture of ORDTC

Recaptured federal ITC for Calculation 1 (amount NN from Part7) .......... Ww

Recaptured federal ITC for Calculation 2 (amount UU from Part7) .......... XX

Amount WW plus amount XX ..ottt e e X 23.56 % = YY
Corporate partner's share of the excess of ORDTC for Calculation 3 (amount VV from Part7)  ...................... Y4
Recapture of ORDTC (amount YY plus amount ZZ) (enter amount AAA on line 277 on page 5 of Schedule 5) .. .......... AAA
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This worksheet allows you to report the amount of eligible expenditures entered on Form T661, Scientific Research and Experimental Development (SR&ED)
Expenditures Claim which represents eligible expenditures as defined in section 127 of the Income Tax Act (ITA) with regard to scientific research and

experimental development (SR&ED) carried on in Ontario and attributable to a permanent establishment in Ontario of a corporation.

Data on the worksheet is calculated based on the amounts on Form T661, but will have to be adjusted according to the rules of Ontario, if applicable, in
particular when the corporation has had a permanent establishment in more than one jurisdiction. This data will be used when calculating Schedule 508

and Schedule 566.

Total expenditures for SR&ED

Add

e payment of prior years' unpaid expenses
(other than salary or wages)

e prescribed proxy amount
(Enter "0" if you use the traditional method)

e other additions

Less

e current expenditures (other than salary or wages) not paid within 180 days
of the tax year end

e amounts paid in respect of an SR&ED contract to a person or partnership
that is not taxable supplier

20% of contract expenditures for SR&ED performed on your behalf
prescribed expenditures not allowed by regulations
other deductions
non-arm's length transactions

— expenditures for non-arm's length SR&ED contracts
— purchases (limited to costs) of goods and services from non-arm's

Enter amount | on line 100 of Schedule 508.

length suppliers ..

+

+ +

4,885,921

1,085,505

5,971,426

572,180

5,399,246 |
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Operator
Description (Note) Amount
Increase in ORDTC from 2020 amended tax return 141,034/00
+
Total 141,034/00

Note: The calculations are performed one at a time, from the first to the last line, and not according to the priority rules of the operations. For example, the

formula 1+2*3 will not result in the same thing as the formula 1+3*2.
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I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu Schedule 510
Agency du Canada

Ontario Corporate Minimum Tax

Corporation's name Business number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

e File this schedule if the corporation is subject to Ontario corporate minimum tax (CMT). CMT is levied under section 55 of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario),
referred to as the "Ontario Act".

e Complete Part 1 to determine if the corporation is subject to CMT for the tax year.

e A corporation not subject to CMT in the tax year is still required to file this schedule if it is deducting a CMT credit, has a CMT credit carryforward,
or has a CMT loss carryforward or a current year CMT loss.

e A corporation that has Ontario special additional tax on life insurance corporations (SAT) payable in the tax year must complete Part 4 of this
schedule even if it is not subject to CMT for the tax year.

e A corporation is exempt from CMT if, throughout the tax year, it was one of the following:
1) a corporation exempt from income tax under section 149 of the federal Income Tax Act;
2) a mortgage investment corporation under subsection 130.1(6) of the federal Act;
3) a deposit insurance corporation under subsection 137.1(5) of the federal Act;
4) a congregation or business agency to which section 143 of the federal Act applies;
5) an investment corporation as referred to in subsection 130(3) of the federal Act; or
6) a mutual fund corporation under subsection 131(8) of the federal Act.
e File this schedule with the T2 Corporation Income Tax Return.

~ Part 1 — Determination of CMT applicability

Total assets of the corporation at the end of the tax year * . . ... .. . it ettt e e m 1,974,017,000
Share of total assets from partnership(s) and joint venture(s) * . . . .. . L m

Total assets of associated corporations (amount from line 450 on Schedule 511) ... ot i it ittt i e e 116 ] 1,586,094,938
Total assets (total Of NES 11210 116) .« .ttt ittt e e et e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e 3,560,111,938
Total revenue of the corporation for the tax year ** ... .. . it e e e e e m 1,118,413,000
Share of total revenue from partnership(s) and joint venture(s) ** .. . . . . . L e m

Total revenue of associated corporations (amount from line 550 on Schedule 511) .. .. oottt i e 146 99,257,484
Total revenue (total 0f iNES 14210 14B) . o v it ittt e et e e et e e e e e 1,217,670,484

The corporation is subject to CMT if:
— for tax years ending before July 1, 2010, the total assets at the end of the year of the corporation or the associated group of corporations are more than
$5,000,000, or the total revenue for the year of the corporation or the associated group of corporations is more than $10,000,000.
— for tax years ending after June 30, 2010, the total assets at the end of the year of the corporation or the associated group of corporations are equal to or more
than $50,000,000, and the total revenue for the year of the corporation or the associated group of corporations is equal to or more than $100,000,000.
If the corporation is not subject to CMT, do not complete the remaining parts unless the corporation is deducting a CMT credit, or has a CMT credit
carryforward, a CMT loss carryforward, a current year CMT loss, or SAT payable in the year.

* Rules for total assets

— Report total assets according to generally accepted accounting principles, adjusted so that consolidation and equity methods are not used.

— Do not include unrealized gains and losses on assets and foreign currency gains and losses on assets that are included in net income for
accounting purposes but not in income for corporate income tax purposes.

— The amount on line 114 is determined at the end of the last fiscal period of the partnership or joint venture that ends in the tax year of the
corporation. Add the proportionate share of the assets of the partnership(s) and joint venture(s), and deduct the recorded asset(s) for the
investment in partnerships and joint ventures.

— A corporation's share in a partnership or joint venture is determined under paragraph 54(5)(b) of the Ontario Act and, if the partnership or joint venture
had no income or loss, is calculated as if the partnership's or joint venture's income were $1 million. For a corporation with an indirect interest in a
partnership or joint venture, determine the corporation's share according to paragraph 54(5)(c) of the Ontario Act.

** Rules for total revenue

— Report total revenue in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, adjusted so that consolidation and equity methods are not used.

— If the tax year is less than 51 weeks, multiply the total revenue of the corporation or the partnership, whichever applies, by 365 and divide by the
number of days in the tax year.

— The amount on line 144 is determined for the partnership or joint venture fiscal period that ends in the tax year of the corporation. If the
partnership or joint venture has 2 or more fiscal periods ending in the filing corporation’s tax year, multiply the sum of the total revenue for each
of the fiscal periods by 365 and divide by the total number of days in all the fiscal periods.

— A corporation's share in a partnership or joint venture is determined under paragraph 54(5)(b) of the Ontario Act and, if the partnership or joint venture
had no income or loss, is calculated as if the partnership's or joint venture's income were $1 million. For a corporation with an indirect interest in a
partnership or joint venture, determine the corporation's share according to paragraph 54(5)(c) of the Ontario Act.

i+l
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~ Part 2 — Adjusted net income/loss for CMT purposes

Net income/loss per financial Statements * ... ... e m 28,798,000
Add (to the extent reflected in income/loss):

Provision for current income taxes/cost of currentincome taxes . ................

Provision for deferred income taxes (debits)/cost of future income taxes . ........... 77,334

Equity losses from corporations . . . ... s

Financial statement loss from partnerships and joint ventures .. ................

Dividends deducted on financial statements (subsection 57(2) of the Ontario Act),

excluding dividends paid by credit unions under subsection 137(4.1) of the federal Act . ...
Other additions (see note below):
Share of adjusted net income of partnerships and joint ventures ** . . .............. 228
Total patronage dividends received, not already included in net income/loss . ......... 232
281 | 282
283 | 284
Subtotal 77,334 » 77,334 A

Deduct (to the extent reflected in income/loss):

Provision for recovery of current income taxes/benefit of current income taxes .. ...... 257,000
Provision for deferred income taxes (credits)/benefit of future income taxes . .........
Equity income from corporations . . . ... s
Financial statement income from partnerships and jointventures . ................
Dividends deductible under section 112, section 113, or subsection 138(6) of the federal Act
Dividends not taxable under section 83 of the federal Act (from Schedule 3) ..........
Gain on donation of listed security or ecological gift . ........... ... ... ... ...
Accounting gain on transfer of property to a corporation under section 85 or 85.1
of the federal Act ** L . e e e e e e e
Accounting gain on transfer of property to/from a partnership under section 85 or 97
of the federal Act *** L e e e e e e
Accounting gain on disposition of property under subsection 13(4),
subsection 14(6), or section 44 of the federal Act ***** . . ... ... . . . . . .
Accounting gain on a windup under subsection 88(1) of the federal Act
or an amalgamation under section 87 of the federal Act . .....................
Other deductions (see note below):
Share of adjusted net loss of partnerships and joint ventures ** ... .............. 328
Tax payable on dividends under subsection 191.1(1) of the federal Act multiplied by 3 ... EXE]
Interest deducted/deductible under paragraph 20(1)(c) or (d) of the federal Act,
not already included in netincome/loss . . . . . . . i e
Patronage dividends paid (from Schedule 16) not already included in net income/loss
257,000 » 257,000 B
Adjusted net income/loss for CMT purposes (line 210 plus amount Aminus amountB) . ... ... iiennnnnnn. m 28,618,334

If the amount on line 490 is positive and the corporation is subject to CMT as determined in Part 1, enter the amount on line 515 in Part 3.
If the amount on line 490 is negative, enter the amount on line 760 in Part 7 (enter as a positive amount).

Note
In accordance with Ontario Regulation 37/09, when calculating net income for CMT purposes, accounting income should be adjusted to:
— exclude unrealized gains and losses due to mark-to-market changes or foreign currency changes on specified mark-to-market property (assets only);
— include realized gains and losses on the disposition of specified mark-to-market property not already included in the accounting income, if the
property is not a capital property or is a capital property disposed in the year or in a previous tax year ended after March 22, 2007.
"Specified mark-to-market property" is defined in subsection 54(1) of the Ontario Act.
These rules also apply to partnerships. A corporate partner's share of a partnership's adjusted income flows through on a proportionate basis
to the corporate partner.
* Rules for net income/loss

— Banks must report net income/loss as per the report accepted by the Superintendent of Financial Institutions under the federal Bank Act, adjusted so
consolidation and equity methods are not used.
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~ Part 2 — Calculation of adjusted net income/loss for CMT purposes (continued)

— Life insurance corporations must report net income/loss as per the report accepted by the federal Superintendent of Financial Institutions or equivalent
provincial insurance regulator, before SAT and adjusted so consolidation and equity methods are not used. If the life insurance corporation is resident
in Canada and carries on business in and outside of Canada, multiply the net income/loss by the ratio of the Canadian reserve liabilities divided by
the total reserve liability. The reserve liabilities are calculated in accordance with Regulation 2405(3) of the federal Act.

— Other corporations must report net income/loss in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, except that consolidation and equity
methods must not be used. When the equity method has been used for accounting purposes, equity losses and equity income are removed from
book incomel/loss on lines 224 and 324 respectively.

— Corporations, other than insurance corporations, should report net income from line 9999 of the GIFI (Schedule 125) on line 210.

** The share of the adjusted net income of a partnership or joint venture is calculated as if the partnership or joint venture were a corporation and the
tax year of the partnership or joint venture were its fiscal period. For a corporation with an indirect interest in a partnership through one or more
partnerships, determine the corporation's share according to clause 54(5)(c) of the Ontario Act.

= A joint election will be considered made under subsection 60(1) of the Ontario Act if there is an entry on line 342, and an election has been made
for transfer of property to a corporation under subsection 85(1) of the federal Act.

=+ A joint election will be considered made under subsection 60(2) of the Ontario Act if there is an entry on line 344, and an election has been made
under subsection 85(2) or 97(2) of the federal Act.

=+ A joint election will be considered made under subsection 61(1) of the Ontario Act if there is an entry on line 346, and an election has been made
under subsection 13(4) or 14(6) and/or section 44 of the federal Act.

For more information on how to complete this part, see the T2 Corporation — Income Tax Guide.

— Part 3 — CMT payable

Adjusted net income for CMT purposes (line 490 in Part 2, if pOSItive)  « . .« v« v oo oo .. 515 28,618,334

Deduct:

CMT loss available (amountR fromPart7) . ............
Minus: Adjustment for an acquisition of control * . ... .. m
Adjusted CMT loss available . ... vvveernnennnnnn. > c

Net income subject to CMT calculation (if negative, enter "0") ... ............... 520 28,618,334

Amount from Number of days in the tax
line 520 28,618,334 X  year before July 1, 2010 X 4% = 1
Number of days 365
in the tax year

Amount from Number of days in the tax
line 520 28,618,334 X _ year after June 30, 2010 365 X 2.7 % = 772,695 2
Number of days 365
in the tax year

Subtotal (amount 1 plus amount2) . ............ 772,695 3

Gross CMT: amount on line 3 above X OAF ** L e e m 772,695
Deduct:

Foreign tax credit for CMT purposes ™ L . i e e m
CMT after foreign tax credit deduction (line 540 minus line 550) (if negative, enter "0") . . . . . .\ttt it e 772,695 D
Deduct:

Ontario corporate income tax payable before CMT credit (amount F6 from Schedule 5) ... ... .. .. ... ... ...
Net CMT payable (if negative, @nter "0") .ttt et ettt e e e e e e e 772,695 E
Enter amount E on line 278 of Schedule 5, Tax Calculation Supplementary — Corporations, and complete Part 4.

* Enter the portion of CMT loss available that exceeds the adjusted net income for the tax year from carrying on a business before the acquisition of
control. See subsection 58(3) of the Ontario Act.

= Enter "0" on line 550 for life insurance corporations as they are not eligible for this deduction. For all other corporations, enter the cumulative total
of amount J for the province of Ontario from Part 9 of Schedule 21 on line 550.

** Calculation of the Ontario allocation factor (OAF):
If the provincial or territorial jurisdiction entered on line 750 of the T2 return is "Ontario," enter "1" on line F.
If the provincial or territorial jurisdiction entered on line 750 of the T2 return is "multiple," complete the following calculation, and enter the result on line F:

Ontario taxable income **** =
Taxable income *****

Ontario allocation factor . . . L e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1.00000 F

=+ Enter the amount allocated to Ontario from column F in Part 1 of Schedule 5. If the taxable income is nil, calculate the amount in column F as if the
taxable income were $1,000.

*****Enter the taxable income amount from line 360 or amount Z of the T2 return, whichever applies. If the taxable income is nil, enter "1,000".
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~ Part 4 — Calculation of CMT credit carryforward

CMT credit carryforward at the end of the previous taxyear* ... ... ..... ..., 2,801,315 G
Deduct:

CMT Credit XPITEd *  + v v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 600

CMT credit carryforward at the beginning of the current tax year * (see note below) . ........ 2,801,315 ’m
Add:

CMT credit carryforward balances transferred on an amalgamation or the windup of a subsidiary (see note below) . ..... m
CMT credit available for the tax year (amount on line 620 plus amountonline 650) . ... .......... .. . . ...
Deduct:

CMT credit deducted in the current tax year (amount P from Part5) ... .. ... . . . .
Subtotal (amount H minus amount I)

Add:
Net CMT payable (@amount Efrom Part 3) ... .. ittt et et e et e 772,695
SAT payable (amount O from Part 6 of Schedule 512) ... ....... ... ... . . ...
Subtotal 772,695 p
CMT credit carryforward at the end of the tax year (amount J plus amountK) — .................. ... ......

* For the first harmonized T2 return filed with a tax year that includes days in 2009:
— do not enter an amount on line G or line 600;

For other tax years, enter on line G the amount from line 670 of Schedule 510 from the previous tax year.

Note: If you entered an amount on line 620 or line 650, complete Part 6.

2,801,315

2,801,315 H

2,801,315 J

772,695 K

3,574,010 L

— for line 620, enter the amount from line 2336 of Ontario CT23 Schedule 101, Corporate Minimum Tax (CMT), for the last tax year that ended in 2008.

~ Part 5 — Calculation of CMT credit deducted from Ontario corporate income tax payable
CMT credit available for the tax year (amount H from Part4) ... ... . . e

Ontario corporate income tax payable before CMT credit (amount F6 from Schedule 5) .. ... .. 1

For a corporation that is not a life insurance corporation:

2,801,315 ™

CMT after foreign tax credit deduction (amount D from Part 3) . . 772,695 2
For a life insurance corporation:
Gross CMT (line 540 fromPart3) .. ................. 3
Gross SAT (line 460 from Part 6 of Schedule 512) . ........ 4
The greater of amounts 3and4 .. ................. 5
Deduct: line 2 or line 5, whichever applies: 772,695 6

Subtotal (if negative, enter "0") > N
Ontario corporate income tax payable before CMT credit (amount F6 from Schedule 5) .. ... ..
Deduct:
Total refundable tax credits excluding Ontario qualifying environmental trust tax credit
(amount J& minus line 450 from Schedule 5) . . . oottt e e e 80,387

Subtotal (if negative, enter "0") > (0]
CMT credit deducted in the current tax year (least of amounts M, N, and O) . .. . . .. i i e e e e s P
Enter amount P on line 418 of Schedule 5 and on line | in Part 4 of this schedule.
Is the corporation claiming a CMT credit earned before an acquisition of control? ... .......... ... ... .... 1 Yes D 2 No
If you answered yes to the question at line 675, the CMT credit deducted in the current tax year may be restricted. For information on how the deduction
may be restricted, see subsections 53(6) and (7) of the Ontario Act.
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— Part 6 — Analysis of CMT credit available for carryforward by year of origin

Complete this part if:
— the tax year includes January 1, 2009; or
— the previous tax year-end is deemed to be December 31, 2008, under subsection 249(3) of the federal Act.

Year of origin CMT credit balance *

10th previous
tax year
9th previous
tax year
8th previous
tax year
7th previous
tax year
6th previous
tax year
5th previous
tax year
4th previous
tax year
3rd previous
tax year
2nd previous
tax year
1st previous
tax year

Total **

*  CMT credit that was earned (by the corporation, predecessors of the corporation, and subsidiaries wound up into the corporation) in each of the
previous 10 tax years and has not been deducted.

** Must equal the total of the amounts entered on lines 620 and 650 in Part 4.

— Part 7 — Calculation of CMT loss carryforward

CMT loss carryforward at the end of the previous taxyear* .. ........ .. ... . ....... Q
Deduct:
CMT 0SS eXPIred * o ot et e e e e e e e e 700
CMT loss carryforward at the beginning of the tax year * (see note below) .. ............. >
Add:
CMT loss transferred on an amalgamation under section 87 of the federal Act ** (see note below) . ............... 750
CMT loss available (line 720 plus line 750) . . . o i e e s R
Deduct:
CMT loss deducted against adjusted net income for the tax year (lesser of line 490 (if positive) and line CinPart3)  .........
Subtotal (if negative, enter "0") S
Add:
Adjusted net loss for CMT purposes (amount from line 490 in Part 2, if negative) (enter as a positive amount) . ........ 760
CMT loss carryforward balance at the end of the tax year (amount S plus line 760) . . ... . ...ttt 770 T

* For the first harmonized T2 return filed with a tax year that includes days in 2009:
— do not enter an amount on line Q or line 700;
— for line 720, enter the amount from line 2214 of Ontario CT23 Schedule 101, Corporate Minimum Tax (CMT), for the last tax year that ended in 2008.
For other tax years, enter on line Q the amount from line 770 of Schedule 510 from the previous tax year.

** Do not include an amount from a predecessor corporation if it was controlled at any time before the amalgamation by any
of the other predecessor corporations.

Note: If you entered an amount on line 720 or line 750, complete Part 8.
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Year of origin

Balance earned in a tax year ending Balance earned in a tax year ending

before March 23, 2007 *

after March 22, 2007 **

10th previous
tax year

9th previous
tax year

8th previous
tax year

7th previous
tax year

6th previous
tax year

5th previous
tax year

4th previous
tax year

3rd previous
tax year

2nd previous
tax year

1st previous
tax year

Total ***

been deducted.

*** The total of these two columns must equal the total of the amounts entered on lines 720 and 750.

* Adjusted net loss for CMT purposes that was earned (by the corporation, by subsidiaries wound up into or amalgamated with the corporation before
March 22, 2007, and by other predecessors of the corporation) in each of the previous 10 tax years that ended before March 23, 2007, and has not

** Adjusted net loss for CMT purposes that was earned (by the corporation and its predecessors, but not by a subsidiary predecessor) in each of
the previous 20 tax years that ended after March 22, 2007, and has not been deducted.
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Operator
Description (Note) Amount
2019 CMT credit from 2022 tax return 800,054/00
+
+
Total 800,054/00

Note: The calculations are performed one at a time, from the first to the last line, and not according to the priority rules of the operations. For example, the

formula 1+2*3 will not result in the same thing as the formula 1+3*2.
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ONTARIO CORPORATE MINIMUM TAX — TOTAL ASSETS
AND REVENUE FOR ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

86339 1363 RC0001

SCHEDULE 511

Name of corporation

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

Business Number

86339 1363 RC0001

Tax year-end
Year Month Day

2023-12-31

® For use by corporations to report the total assets and total revenue of all the Canadian or foreign corporations with which the filing corporation was
associated at any time during the tax year. These amounts are required to determine if the filing corporation is subject to corporate minimum tax.

e Total assets and total revenue include the associated corporation's share of any partnership(s)/joint venture(s) total assets and total revenue.

e Attach additional schedules if more space is required.

e File this schedule with the T2 Corporation Income Tax Return.
Names of associated corporations (Canfdui:ir?izipr:)urg%?\ronly) '(I';)(taaél ﬁzigtg; Tc(;;aéler?\}/ciréuze)**
(see Note 1)
200] 300 400 500 I
1| Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc./Societe De Portefeuille D'H| 89411 0816 RC0001 1,171,550,000 42,085,000
2| Energy Ottawa Inc./Energie Ottawa Inc. 86338 9961 RC0001 197,351,000 18,609,000
3| Telecom Ottawa Holding Inc. / Societe De Portefeuille | 86202 9337 RC0001 12,133,000 12,000
4| PowerTrail Inc. 82829 3944 RC0001 9,823,000 3,865,000
5| Moose Creek Energy Inc. 82851 1311 RC0001 201 0
6| Chaudiere Hydro Inc. Hydro Chaudiere Inc. 81281 3103 RC0001 100 0
7| _Chaudiere Water Power Inc/Energie Hydraulique De L¢) 10093 1955 RC0001 450,000 2,075,000
8| 2425932 ONTARIO INC. 80053 3846 RC0001 87,095,298 533,635
9| CHAUDIERE HYDRO NORTH INC. 79821 6321 RC0O001 101 0
10| EO GENERATION GP INC. 83966 8308 RC0001 100 0
11| THE GANANOQUE WATER POWER COMPANY 10521 4068 RC0001 55,000 0
12| EONY GENERATION HOLDING INC. NR 0 0
13| EONY GENERATION LIMITED NR 0 0
14| 9927891 CANADA INC. 74962 8699 RC0001 36,901,101 0
15| ENERGY OTTAWA CABLE TESTING SERVICES INC. 74276 6892 RC0O001 2,052,000 261,000
16| HULL ENERGY GP INC. 74882 0321 RC0O001 1 0
17| Smart City Lighting Inc. 79280 8719 RC0001 1 0
18| Envari Holding Inc. 72236 3918 RC0001 26,890,000 0
19| Envari Energy Solutions Inc. 72236 3710 RC0001 28,258,000 29,971,000
20| CHAUDIERE SERVICES INC./SERVICES CHAUDIERE IN 79782 7730 RC0001 606,830 1,105,132
21| CHAUDIERE FINANCIAL INC./FINANCIERE DE LA CHA| 79664 9739 RC0001 100 0
22| 2725163 Ontario Inc. 76314 3070 RC0001 6,323,105 561,717
23| Hiboo Networks Inc. 77966 1701 RC0001 6,606,000 179,000
Total E 1,586,094,938 E 99,257,484
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Enter the total assets from line 450 on line 116 in Part 1 of Schedule 510, Ontario Corporate Minimum Tax.
Enter the total revenue from line 550 on line 146 in Part 1 of Schedule 510.

Note 1: Enter "NR" if a corporation is not registered.

Note 2: If the associated corporation does not have a tax year that ends in the filing corporation's current tax year but was associated with the filing
corporation in the previous tax year of the filing corporation, enter the total revenue and total assets from the tax year of the associated

corporation that ends in the previous tax year of the filing corporation.

* Rules for total assets
— Report total assets in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, adjusted so that consolidation and equity methods are not used.
— Include the associated corporation's share of the total assets of partnership(s) and joint venture(s) but exclude the recorded asset(s) for the
investment in partnerships and joint ventures.
— Exclude unrealized gains and losses on assets that are included in net income for accounting purposes but not in income for corporate income
tax purposes.

** Rules for total revenue
— Report total revenue in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, adjusted so that consolidation and equity methods are not used.
— If the associated corporation has 2 or more tax years ending in the filing corporation's tax year, multiply the sum of the total revenue for each of
those tax years by 365 and divide by the total number of days in all of those tax years.
— If the associated corporation's tax year is less than 51 weeks and is the only tax year of the associated corporation that ends in the filing corporation's
tax year, multiply the associated corporation's total revenue by 365 and divide by the number of days in the associated corporation's tax year.
— Include the associated corporation's share of the total revenue of partnerships and joint ventures.
— If the partnership or joint venture has 2 or more fiscal periods ending in the associated corporation's tax year, multiply the sum of the total revenue
for each of the fiscal periods by 365 and divide by the total number of days in all the fiscal periods.
1+l

Canadi

T2 SCH 511
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I*I Canada Revenue Agence du revenu SCHEDULE 550
Agency du Canada

ONTARIO CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION TAX CREDIT

Name of corporation Business Number Tax year-end
Year Month Day
Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee 86339 1363 RC0001 2023-12-31

® Use this schedule to claim an Ontario co-operative education tax credit (CETC) under section 88 of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario).

® The CETC is a refundable tax credit that is equal to an eligible percentage (10% to 30%) of the eligible expenditures incurred by a corporation for
a qualifying work placement. The maximum credit amount is $1,000 for each qualifying work placement ending before March 27, 2009, and $3,000
for each qualifying work placement beginning after March 26, 2009. For a qualifying work placement that straddles March 26, 2009, the maximum
credit amount is prorated.

e Eligible expenditures are salaries and wages (including taxable benefits) paid or payable to a student in a qualifying work placement, or fees paid or
payable to an employment agency for services performed by the student in a qualifying work placement. These expenditures must be paid on account
of employment or services, as applicable, at a permanent establishment of the corporation in Ontario. Expenditures for a work placement (WP) are not
eligible expenditures if they are greater than the amounts that would be paid to an arm's length employee.

* A WP must meet all of the following conditions to be a qualifying work placement:

— the student performs employment duties for a corporation under a qualifying co-operative education program (QCEP);

— the WP has been developed or approved by an eligible educational institution as a suitable learning situation;

— the terms of the WP require the student to engage in productive work;

— the WP is for a period of at least 10 consecutive weeks or, in the case of an internship program, not less than 8 consecutive months and
not more than 16 consecutive months;

— the student is paid for the work performed in the WP;

— the corporation is required to supervise and evaluate the job performance of the student in the WP;

— the institution monitors the student's performance in the WP; and

— the institution has certified the WP as a qualifying work placement.

® Make sure you keep a copy of the letter of certification from the Ontario eligible educational institution containing the name of the student, the employer,
the institution, the term of the WP, and the name/discipline of the QCEP to support the claim. Do not submit the letter of certification with the
T2 Corporation Income Tax Return.

® File this schedule with the T2 Corporation Income Tax Return.

EPart 1 — Corporate information

Name of person to contact for more information Telephone number including area code
Bettina Yau (613) 738-5499
Is the claim filed for a CETC earned through a partnership?* . ... ... . . i m 1Yes D 2 No
If you answered yes to the question at line 150,
what is the name of the partnership? . ................... m

Enter the percentage of the partnership's CETC allocated to the corporation .. ....... . ... .. ... %

* When a corporate member of a partnership is claiming an amount for eligible expenditures incurred by a partnership, complete a Schedule 550 for the
partnership as if the partnership were a corporation. Each corporate partner, other than a limited partner, should file a separate Schedule 550 to claim
the partner's share of the partnership's CETC. The allocated amounts can not exceed the amount of the partnership’s CETC.

Part 2 — Eligibility
1. Did the corporation have a permanent establishment in Ontario in the tax year? .. ... ... .. ... ... .. ... m 1 Yes 2 No D
2. Was the corporation exempt from tax under Part lll of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario)? . ... ... . i m 1 Yes D 2 No

If you answered no to question 1 or yes to question 2, then the corporation is not eligible for the CETC.

i+l

T2 SCH 550 E (09) Canada
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~ Part 3 — Eligible percentage for determining the eligible amount

Corporation's salaries and wages paid in the previous tax year * . ... ... ittt e e e m 77,625,000
For eligible expenditures incurred before March 27, 2009:
— If line 300 is $400,000 or less, enter 15% on line 310.
— If line 300 is $600,000 or more, enter 10% on line 310.
— If line 300 is more than $400,000 and less than $600,000, enter the percentage on line 310 using the following formula:
amount on line 300
Eligible percentage = 15% - 5% X ( minus _$ 400,000 )
$ 200,000
Eligible percentage for determining the eligible amount . . ... . ... ... L L m 10.000 %
For eligible expenditures incurred after March 26, 2009:
— If line 300 is $400,000 or less, enter 30% on line 312.
— If line 300 is $600,000 or more, enter 25% on line 312.
— If line 300 is more than $400,000 and less than $600,000, enter the percentage on line 312 using the following formula:
amount on line 300
Eligible percentage = 30% — 5% X ( minus_$ 400,000 )
$ 200,000
Eligible percentage for determining the eligible amount .. ... . ... ... .. L m 25.000 %

* [f this is the first tax year of an amalgamated corporation and subsection 88(9) of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) applies, enter the salaries and
wages paid in the previous tax year by the predecessor corporations.

~ Part 4 — Calculation of the Ontario co-operative education tax credit

Complete a separate entry for each student for each qualifying work placement that ended in the corporation's tax year. If a qualifying work placement would
otherwise exceed four consecutive months, divide the WP into periods of four consecutive months and enter each full period of four consecutive months as
a separate WP. If the WP does not divide equally into four-month periods and if the period that is less than 4 months is 10 or more consecutive weeks, then
enter that period as a separate WP. If that period is less than 10 consecutive weeks, then include it with the WP for the last period of 4 consecutive months.
Consecutive WPs with two or more associated corporations are deemed to be with only one corporation, as designated by the corporations.

A
Name of university, college,
or other eligible educational institution

B
Name of qualifying
co-operative education program

1. Powerline Technician

2. Electrical Engineering Technician

3. Electrical Engineering Technician

4. Powerline Technician

5. Powerline Technician

6. Powerline Technician

7. Electrical Engineering Technician

8. Electrical Engineering Technician

9. Energy Management
10. Powerline Technician

1. Powerline Technician
12. Powerline Technician
13. Powerline Technician
14. Bachelor of Computer Science, Computer & Internet Se
15. Bachelor of Computer Science, Computer & Internet Se
16. Bachelor of Engineering, Sustainable & Renewable Enei
17 Bachelor of Engineering, Sustainable & Renewable Enel
18. Bachelor of Engineering, Computer Systems
19. Bachelor of Engineering, Computer Systems
20. Bachelor of Engineering, Computer Systems
21. Bachelor of Computer Science, Software Engineering
22. Bachelor of Computer Science, Software Engineering
23. Bachelor of Computer Science
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A
Name of university, college,
or other eligible educational institution

B

Name of qualifying
co-operative education program

Computer Eng.

Master of Management

Biomedical Mechanical Engineering

Business Tech. Management

© N g h NS

D E
Name o?student Start date of WP End date of WP
(see note 1 below) (see note 2 below)
410 430 435
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-09-11 2023-12-22
2023-01-03 2023-04-29
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-01-03 2023-04-29
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-09-11 2023-12-22
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-31
2023-09-01 2023-12-23
2023-01-03 2023-04-30
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-01-09 2023-04-30
2023-05-01 2023-08-31
2023-09-01 2023-12-01
2023-05-01 2023-08-31
2023-09-01 2023-12-22
2023-05-01 2023-08-31
2023-05-15 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-08-25
2023-05-01 2023-09-01
2023-05-01 2023-08-25

Note 1: When the WP has been divided into separate periods because it exceeds four consecutive months, enter the start date for the separate WP.

Note 2: When the WP has been divided into separate periods because it exceeds four consecutive months, enter the end date for the separate WP.
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F1 F2 X Y
Eligible expenditures before Eligible Eligible expenditures after Eligible Number of consecutive Total number of consecutive
March 27, 2009 percentage March 26, 2009 percentage weeks of the WP completed | weeks of the student's WP
(see note 1 below) before (see note 1 below) after by the student before (see note 3 below)
March 27, 2009 March 26, 2009 March 27, 2009
(from line 310 (from line 310a (see note 3 below)
m in Part 3) m in Part 3)
10.000 % 25.000 %
G H | J K
Eligible amount Maximum CETC CETC on eligible CETC on repayment of CETC for each WP
(eligible expenditures per WP expenditures government assistance (column | or column J)

multiplied
by eligible percentage)
(see note 2 below)

(see note 3 below)

(column G or H,
whichever is less)

470

(see note 4 below)

480

VERSION 2024 V1.0

Page 4



2023-12-31

2026-2030 Custom IR
EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 2

Schedule 1
Attachment A
ORIGINAL

Page 155 of 155

Hydro Ottawa Limited/Hydro Ottawa Limitee

86339 1363 RC0001

G
Eligible amount
(eligible expenditures
multiplied
by eligible percentage)
(see note 2 below)

H
Maximum CETC
per WP
(see note 3 below)

|
CETC on eligible
expenditures
(column G or H,
whichever is less)

470

J
CETC on repayment of
government assistance
(see note 4 below)

480

K
CETC for each WP
(column | or column J)

N
*®

Ontario co-operative education tax credit (total of amounts in column K) m 80,387 L
or, if the corporation answered yes at line 150 in Part 1, determine the partner's share of amount L:
Amount L X percentage on line 170 in Part 1 Yo = M

Enter amount L or M, whichever applies, on line 452 of Schedule 5, Tax Calculation Supplementary — Corporations. If you are filing more than one
Schedule 550, add the amounts from line L or M, whichever applies, on all the schedules and enter the total amount on line 452 of Schedule 5.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Reduce eligible expenditures by all government assistance, as defined under subsection 88(21) of the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario), that the
corporation has received, is entitled to receive, or may reasonably expect to receive, for the eligible expenditures, on or before the filing due
date of the T2 Corporation Income Tax Return for the tax year.

Calculate the eligible amount (Column G) using the following formula:
Column G = (column F1 x percentage on line 310) + (column F2 x percentage on line 312)

If the WP ends before March 27, 2009, the maximum credit amount for the WP is $1,000.
If the WP begins after March 26, 2009, the maximum credit amount for the WP is $3,000.
If the WP begins before March 27, 2009, and ends after March 26, 2009, calculate the maximum credit amount using the following formula:

($1,000 x X/Y) + [$3,000 x (Y — X)/Y]

where "X" is the number of consecutive weeks of the WP completed by the student before March 27, 2009,
and "Y" is the total number of consecutive weeks of the student's WP.

When claiming a CETC for repayment of government assistance, complete a separate entry for each repayment and complete
columns A to E and J and K with the details for the previous year WP in which the government assistance was received.

Include the amount of government assistance repaid in the tax year multiplied by the eligible percentage for the tax year in which
the government assistance was received, to the extent that the government assistance reduced the CETC in that tax year.

CORPORATE TAXPREP / TAXPREP DES SOCIETES - GE11

VERSION 2024 V1.0
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OTHER REVENUE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

4 This Schedule provides a summary of Other Revenue for the 2026-2030 term. Other Revenue,

5 also referred to as Revenue Offsets, relates to all utility revenues other than distribution and

6 cost of power revenues. Hydro Ottawa has classified these into categories, each of which is

7 described in more detail within the following Schedules:

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Schedule 6-3-2 - Specific Service Charge Revenue: Specific Service Charges (SSCs)
are applied for service requests or activities which primarily benefit or are attributed to
the requesting customer or are necessitated by customer inaction.

Schedule 6-3-3 - Late Payment Charge Revenue: Revenue generated from the
OEB-approved monthly interest rate applied to outstanding account balances.

Schedule 6-3-4 - Other Operating Revenue: Revenue associated from the provision of
Standard Supply, Retailer, and Generator services, as well as rent from electric property.
Schedule 6-3-5 - Other Income and Deductions: Revenue through the provision of
services to customers and third parties, property rental income from leased plant, gains
(or losses) on the disposal or retirement of utility property, the provision of services to

Hydro Ottawa’s affiliates, and earning interest income on short-term investments.

21 2. OTHER REVENUE SUMMARY
22 Table 1 below summarizes the 2021-2025 OEB Approved Other Revenue as per Hydro

23 Ottawa’s 2021-2025 Approved Settlement Agreement,’ including annual updates for inflation

24 where applicable. Refer to Table 4 and Table 5 below for information on reclassifications

25 between Uniform System of Accounts (USofA) accounts.

' Hydro Ottawa Limited, 20271-2025 Custom Incentive Rate-Setting Approved Settlement Agreement Proposal,
EB-2019-0261 (September 18, 2020).

Other Revenue Other Revenue Summary
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1 Table 1 - OEB Approved Other Revenue Summary 2021-2025 ($°000s)?

OEB Approved

2026-2030 Custom IR

EB-2024-0115
Exhibit 6

Tab 3
Schedule 1
ORIGINAL
Page 2 of 7

Other Revenue
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Specific Service Charges (4235) $5,119 $ 5,243 $4,827 $ 5,150 $ 5,450
Late Payment Charges (4225) $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Ségjf %’Seg:“ﬂgg ;eve”“e (4082, $ 1,456 $ 1,462 $ 1,460 $ 1,459 $ 1,472
Other Income & Deductions
(4315, 4325, 4330, 4362, 4375, $2,105 $ 1,691 $2,017 $2,181 $ 2,081
4405)
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $ 9,680 $ 9,397 $ 9,304 $9,790 $ 10,003
2
3 Table 2 details the Historical and Bridge Year Other Revenue amounts for 2021-2025.
4
5 Table 2 - Historical and Bridge Years Other Revenue Summary 2021-2025 ($°000s)*

Other Revenue

Historical Years

Bridge Years

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Specific Service Charges (4235) $1,978 $ 1,929 $ 1,806 $2,170 $2,231
Late Payment Charges (4225) $ 1,535 $ 1,464 $ 1,605 $ 1,650 $1,700
Other Operating Revenue (4082,
4084, 4086, 4090, 4210 ) $6,196 $6,116 $ 6,059 $ 6,209 $6,435
Other Income & Deductions
(4315, 4325, 4330, 4362, 4375, $ (1,663) $(1,103) $ (965) $ (1,252) $(1,681)
4405)
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $ 8,046 $ 8,406 $ 8,504 $ 8,777 $ 8,686

7 A detailed breakdown of Total Other Revenue, by USofA is provided in Excel Attachment
8 6-3-1(A) - OEB Appendix 2(H) - Other Revenue.

2 Totals may not sum due to rounding.
% Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Other Revenue

Other Revenue Summary
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1 Table 3 below provides Hydro Ottawa’s 2026-2030 Test Year Other Revenue Summary.
2
3 Table 3 — Test Years Other Revenue Summary 2026-2030 ($°000s)*
Test Years
Other Revenue
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
Specific Service Charges (4235) $ 1,008 $ 1,019 $ 1,030 $ 1,043 $ 1,057
Late Payment Charges (4225) $ 1,751 $1,788 $1,825 $ 1,864 $ 1,903
Other Operating Revenue (4082,
4084, 4086, 4090,4210) $ 12,083 $ 12,421 $12,749 $ 13,083 $ 13,425
Other Income & Deductions (4315,
4325, 4330, 4362, 4375, 4405) $(3.824) $4.531) $(4.745) $(4.866) $(4.926)
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $ 11,018 $ 10,697 $ 10,859 $ 11,123 $ 11,460

10

11

12

13

3. OEB APPROVED AND HISTORICAL (2021 to 2023) OTHER REVENUE AMOUNTS

VARIANCE ANALYSIS

The most notable annual variances are due to the USoA reclassification of certain Other
Revenue. Through internal review, Hydro Ottawa has now included pole attachment, duct rental
and property rental revenues in USofA 4210 - Rent from Electric Property whereas previously
these amounts were in USofA 4235 or 4315. Table 4 provides a summary of these USofA

coding changes and Table 5 restates the 2021-2025 OEB Approved amounts after the

reclassifications.

4 Totals may not sum due to rounding

Other Revenue

Other Revenue Summary
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Table 4 - Other Revenue USofA Reclassifications

2021-2025

OEB Approved

2021-2023
Actual

2024-2025
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2026-2030
Test Years

7

Pole Attachment Revenue UsofA 4235 USofA 4210 USofA 4210 USofA 4210
Duct Rental Revenue USofA 4315 USofA 4210 USofA 4210 USofA 4210
Property Rental Revenue USofA 4315 USofA 4210 USofA 4210 USofA 4210

Table 5 - OEB Approved Other Revenue 2021-2025 After USofA Coding Changes($°000s)’

Other Revenue

OEB Approved

2025

Specific Service Charges (4235) $ 1,803 $1,874 $ 1,946 $ 2,021 $ 2,093
Late Payment Charges (4225) $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Other Operating Revenue (4082,

4084, 4086, 4090,4210) $ 6,747 $ 6,806 $6,317 $ 6,563 $ 6,804
Other Income & Deductions (4315,

4325, 4330, 4362, 4375, 4405) $130 $ (284) $42 $ 206 $106
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $ 9,680 $ 9,397 $ 9,304 $ 9,790 $ 10,003

In 2021, Hydro Ottawa’s actual total Other Revenue was $1.6M lower than the OEB Approved

amount, primarily in Other Income & Deductions. This variance was driven by a net loss in

Services to Third Parties, attributed to increased costs and the non-billable activities. Layout

volumes increased significantly, but the associated costs were not offset by revenue as many

customers did not proceed with their projects.

In 2022 total Other Revenue was $1.0M lower than the OEB Approved amount. The main driver

of this variance within Other Operating Revenue is due to 2022 pole attachment revenue. The

2022 estimate used the 2021 OEB generic pole attachment rate. However, the actual 2022 pole

® Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Other Revenue

Other Revenue Summary
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attachment rate was subsequently reduced after the OEB approved Hydro Ottawa’s Other
Revenue amounts. Please refer to Schedule 9-1-3 - Group 2 Accounts for information on Hydro
Ottawa’s proposal on the disposition of the 1508 - Pole Attachment Revenue Variance Account.
The main driver within Other Income and Deductions is Services to Third Parties loss, as noted

in the 2021 variance.

Hydro Ottawa’s total Other Revenue in 2023 was $0.8M lower than the OEB Approved amount.
The primary factor in Other Income and Deductions was a loss from Services to Third Parties

loss, consistent with the variances 2021 and 2022.

4. 2021-2026 HIGH LEVEL VARIANCE ANALYSIS

Total Other Revenue increased by $0.4M in 2022 compared to 2021. This increase was
primarily driven by an increase in Services to Third Parties (net of costs) in the Income &

Deductions.

Other Revenue increased by $0.1M in 2023 compared to 2022. This included a $0.1M increase
in late payment and a $0.1M increase in Other Income & Deductions, partially offset by a $0.1M
decrease in Specific Service Charge. Please refer to Schedule 6-3-2 Specific Service Charge
Revenue, Schedule 6-3-3 Late Payment Charge Revenue, and Schedule 6-3-5 Other Income &

Deductions for further details.

Other Revenue increased $0.3M in 2024 compared to 2023. SSC revenues for the 2024 Bridge
Year are forecasted to increase by $0.4M (20%). The main driver to this rise is a projected

increase in Account Set Up revenue, due to forecasted moving activities.

Other Revenue Other Revenue Summary
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Other operating revenues are also forecasted to be $0.2M (2%) higher in 2024 than in 2023.

The main driver is an increase in Wireline Attachment revenue driven by inflation.

Partially offsetting these increases, Other Income & Deductions is projected to show a $0.3M
loss in 2024. This is due to additional costs allocated to Services to Third Parties following a

recent review.

Other Revenue is projected to decrease by $0.1M in 2025 compared to 2024. While SSC
revenues for 2025 bridge year are forecasted to be $0.1M (3%) higher than the 2024 Bridge
Year forecast, Other operating Revenues in 2025 are forecasted $0.2M (4%) higher than 2024,

primarily due to inflationary increases in Wireline Attachment revenue

Other Income & Deductions are forecasted to experience an increased general loss of $0.4M in

2025. Primarily due to additional costs allocated to Services to Third Parties.

Overall Other Revenue is projected to increase $2.3M in 2026 compared to 2025.

SSC revenue is projected to be $1.2M (55%) lower in 2026 compared to the 2025 Bridge Year
forecast. This is primarily attributed to planned rate reductions, particularly the proposed
decrease in the Account Set Up Charge from $29 in 2025 to $10 in 2026. Please refer to
Schedule 8-4-1 - Specific Service Charges for further details on the decrease in the Account Set

Up Charge.

Other operating revenues are projected to be $5.6M (88%) higher in 2026 than in 2025. The
main driver of this increase is the expected increase in Standard Supply Administration of

$5.6M, as Hydro Ottawa proposes to implement a utility-specific Standard Supply Service (SSS)

Other Revenue Other Revenue Summary
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rate charged per customer per month. Please refer to Schedule 8-3-2 - Standard Supply Service

Charge for further details on the SSS Charge rate design.

4 Other Income & Deductions is forecasted to have an increased loss of $2.1M in 2026. This is
5 primarily due to the Non-Wire Customer Solutions Program, which is explained in Schedule
6 6-3-5 - Other Income & Deductions, and Section 9.2 of Schedule 2-5-4 - Asset Management

7 Process.

Other Revenue Other Revenue Summary
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Attachment 6-3-1(A) - OEB Appendix 2-H - Other Revenue

(Refer to the attachment in Excel format)
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SPECIFIC SERVICE CHARGE REVENUE

1. INTRODUCTION

Specific Service Charges (SSCs) cover the costs for service requests or activities that primarily
benefit the requesting customer, are directly attributable to them, or are required due to their
inaction. Examples include setting up an account for a new customer or special billing service

requests.

The revenue from these charges are included in Other Revenue and offset the total revenue
requirement. Please see Schedule 6-3-1 - Other Revenue Summary and Schedule 6-1-1 - Revenue
Requirement and Revenue Deficiency or Sufficiency for more details regarding revenue

requirement and revenue offsets.

As part of this Application, Hydro Ottawa undertook a review of each SSC to ensure appropriate
cost recovery for providing these services and to reflect efficiencies achieved during the 2021-2025

period were reflected in the proposed charges.

2. SERVICES, PROPOSED RATE CHANGES AND REVENUE IMPACTS

Changes to Hydro Ottawa’s SSCs for the 2026-2030 period are discussed in more detail below.
Additional information, including the SSC rate table and details on proposed rate adjustments, can
be found in Schedule 8-4-1 - Specific Service Charges and Attachment 8-4-1(A) - Proposed and
New Specific Service Charge Calculations. Schedule 8-4-1 provides detailed information on the

specific services covered by SSCs and the rationale behind any proposed changes to rates.

In summary, Hydro Ottawa is proposing to apply a 2.10% annual inflation adjustment to most SSCs
for the years 2027-2030. However, to provide rate predictability and stability for customers, the
following charges are proposed to be held constant from 2026 to 2030: Easement Certificate,

Duplicate Invoice, Credit Reference Check, Unprocessed Payment, and Account Set Up. For the

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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2026 Test year, a reduction has been applied for the Account Set Up Charge, Unprocessed

Payment Charge, Reconnect at Meter, and Reconnect at Pole (After Hours only) .

The additional exception to this approach is with respect to Dry Core Transformer Distribution

Charges, which are based on proposed 2026-2030 distribution rates of the >50kW commercial

classes, as well as the forecasted Regulated Price Plan, transmission, low voltage, and regulatory

rates.

Table 1 provides Actual and Bridge Year revenue expected for SSC for 2021-2025.
Table 1 - Specific Service Charge Revenue 2021-2025 ($°000s)

Historical

Customer Administration

Arrears Certificate - - - - -
Easement Certificate for Unregistered Easements $8 $8 $4 $6 $6
Duplicate invoices for previous billing $3 $1 $2 $2 $2
Special Billing Service, per hour $18 $20 $14 $20 $20
S(;:?SI; Reference/Credit Check (+ credit agency $ 1 i i $ 1 $ 1
Unprocessed Payment Charge $ 60 $ 69 $ 86 $99 $ 108
éﬁ;?szt Set Up Charge / Change of Occupancy $1666| $1548| $1415| $1.677| $1,700
Interval Meter - Field Reading - - - - -
High Bill Investigation - If Billing is Correct $1 $2 $1 $2 $2
Non-Payment of Account

Reconnect at Meter - Regular Hours $ 50 $ 99 $122 $ 180 $ 198
Reconnect at Meter - After Regular Hours $1 $24 $ 26 $62 $ 66
Reconnect at Pole - Regular Hours - $1 - $2 $2
Reconnect at Pole - After Regular Hours - - - - -

' Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Other Revenue

Specific Service Charges
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Historical
Other
Temporary Service - Install and Remove ("TS-I&R") - $ 45 $ 44 $17 $13 $13
Overhead - no transformer
TS-I&R - Underground - no transformer $43 $37 $ 48 $28 $29
TS-I&R Overhead - with transformer $32 $ 20 $7 $10 $ 11
Drycore Transformer Distribution Charge $48 $ 56 $62 $ 68 $73
Energy Resource Facilities Administration Charge - - - - -
TOTAL $1,978| $1,929| $1,806( $2170| $ 2,231

Table 2 provides a summary of the forecasted revenue expected for SSCs for 2026-2030. Each

SSC is forecasted based on the rate factored by the estimated volume.

Other Revenue

Specific Service Charges
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Customer Administration

Easement Certificate for Unregistered Easements $7 $7 $7 $7 $7
Duplicate invoices for previous billing $3 $3 $3 $3 $3
Special Billing Service, per hour $20 $ 20 $ 21 $ 21 $22
(C:(;:;jsl; Reference/Credit Check (+ credit agency $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1
Unprocessed Payment Charge $77 $77 $77 $77 $77
éﬁ(;c:szt Set Up Charge / Change of Occupancy $ 594 $ 594 $ 504 $ 594 $ 594
Interval Meter - Field Reading - - - - -
High Bill Investigation - If Billing is Correct $2 $2 $2 $2 $2
Non-Payment of Account

Reconnect at Meter - Regular Hours $126 $127 $129 $133 $ 136
Reconnect at Meter - After Regular Hours $22 $23 $23 $24 $24
Reconnect at Pole - Regular Hours $1 $1 $1 $1 $1
Reconnect at Pole - After Regular Hours - - $1 $1 $1
Other

sy Srve et Rorone (TSR |50 sl sw sw s
TS-I&R - Underground - no transformer $ 40 $ 41 $42 $42 $43
TS-I&R Overhead - with transformer $5 $5 $5 $5 $5
Drycore Transformer Distribution Charge $78 $85 $ 91 $98 $ 106
Energy Resource Facilities Administration Charge - - - - -
TOTAL $ 1,008 $1,019 $ 1,030 $ 1,043 $ 1,057

Other Revenue

Specific Service Charges
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Hydro Ottawa proposes discontinuing the Arrears Certificate service and therefore the associated
charge. This certificate serves to identify any outstanding payments on an account. Since Hydro
Ottawa does not hold a new occupant responsible for previous occupants unpaid bills, this charge is

no longer necessary.

Variance analysis:

There is no revenue for the Historical 2021-2023 period, nor in the forecast for the 2024-2025
Bridge Years. As Hydro Ottawa proposes discontinuing the Arrears Certificate service, zero revenue
has been budgeted for the 2026-2030 period.

An Easement Certificate provides confirmation of any property easements Hydro Ottawa may have
on a property. Hydro Ottawa is seeking approval to increase the Easement Certificate fee from $29
in 2025 to $30 in 2026 and maintain the rate for the 2026-2030 period.

Variance analysis:

There are immaterial deltas between 2021 and 2030. The slight increase in 2026 is due to the
proposed rate increase. Maintaining a constant rate in the 2026-2030 period, with an estimated
volume of 232 requests annually based on historical trends, revenue is projected to remain stable

throughout this period.

Hydro Ottawa continues to offer duplicate bills by email, reducing the cost of printing and postage.

Variance analysis:

There are immaterial deltas between 2021 and 2030. The slight increase in 2026 is due to the

proposed rate increase. Maintaining a constant rate in the 2026-2030 period, with an estimated

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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volume of 416 requests annually based on historical trends, revenue is projected to remain stable

throughout this period.

The Special Billing Service charge was introduced as part of Hydro Ottawa’s 2016-2020 rate
application.? This special billing service requires Hydro Ottawa staff to gather, organize, and present
months or even years of past billing records to customers or their representatives. This labour

intensive process necessitates a fee that reflects the effort and current labour costs.

Hydro Ottawa is seeking approval to increase its hourly rate from $140 in 2025 to $141 in 2026, and
applying an annual inflation adjustment of 2.10% for the years 2027 through 2030.

Variance analysis:
There are immaterial deltas between 2021 and 2030. The volume of requests for special billing
service is estimated to be 141 requests annually based on historical trends. A slight increase in

revenue over the 2026-2030 period is due to the proposed rate increase.

This service charge is to recover internal costs associated with completing reference checks, which

is labour driven.

Hydro Ottawa is seeking approval for an increase from the current 2025 rate of $18 to $20 in 2026,

and maintaining the rate for the 2027-2030 period.

2 Hydro Ottawa Limited, 2076-2020 Custom Incentive Rate-setting Distribution Rate Application, EB-2015-0004 (April 29,
2015).

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges



2026-2030 Custom IR

Ve EB-2024-0115
/‘ HVdro Exhibit 6

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Tab 3
Schedule 2
ORIGINAL

Page 7 of 12

Variance analysis:
There are no material differences between 2021 and 2030. Maintaining a constant rate per year
during the 2026-2030 period, with an estimated volume of 35 requests annually based on historical

trends, revenue is projected to remain stable throughout this period.

This service charge is to recover internal costs associated with unprocessable payments (i.e.
non-sufficient funds). Costs associated with this service include labour costs for administering an
unprocessable payment and bank fees. To optimize operational efficiency, part of this process is
now completed by the contact centre, which is an external service provider. This change has led to
cost savings and enables Hydro Ottawa to seek approval for a decrease from the current 2025 rate
of $29 to $25 in 2026 and maintain this rate through to 2030, ensuring rate predictability and

stability for customers.

Variance analysis:

Revenue from unprocessed payment charges increased year-over-year from 2021 to 2025 due to a
consistent rise in the volume of unprocessed payments. Based on historical trends, an annual
volume of 3,096 unprocessed payments is forecast. Assuming a constant rate and volume over the

2026-2030 period, revenue from these charges is projected to remain flat.

Hydro Ottawa has achieved a 23% automation rate for customer moves (new service start, and
service fransfers),from an online intake form through to customer confirmation emails. The
remaining moves are primarily handled by the contact centre to optimize operational efficiency. This
strategy allows Hydro Ottawa to reduce costs associated with handling high-volume, routine tasks.
By outsourcing certain routine tasks, Hydro Ottawa can leverage its internal team's expertise to

address more complex customer needs and provide higher-value support.

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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These improvements have generated cost savings, allowing Hydro Ottawa to propose a reduced
rate of $10 in 2026, reflecting a $19 reduction from the 2025 rate. Hydro Ottawa proposes
maintaining this rate at $10 annually over the 2027-2030 period, ensuring rate predictability and

stability for customers.

Variance analysis:

The fluctuation in revenue during the 2021-2023 Historical and 2024-2025 Bridge Years is attributed
to varying annual volume. Reducing the rate in 2026 will result in a $1.1M reduction in annual
revenue. For the Test Years, volume is estimated at approximately 59K annually based on current
trends. With a consistent $10 rate and stable volume, revenue is projected to remain stable over the
2026-2030 period.

Hydro Ottawa installs utility-owned communication equipment for commercial services. Although
some customers still use their own communication equipment, instances requiring manual meter
reads due to equipment failure are rare; Hydro Ottawa has not applied this charge since 2019 and
forecasts none between 2026 and 2030. Nevertheless, this charge has proved effective in
encouraging customers to address communication issues. Hydro Ottawa requests approval to
increase the rate from $359 in 2025 to $366 in 2026, with a further proposed annual inflation
adjustment of 2.10% for the period 2027-2030.

Variance analysis:
There has not been any charges for this service since 2019. Hydro Ottawa projects zero volume for

the Test Years, resulting in no associated revenue.

The high bill investigation service involves dispatching a field agent on site to check the meter and

staff to facilitate the request and compile the results. To reflect the increase in labour costs, Hydro

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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Ottawa is seeking approval to increase the service charge from $270 in 2025 to $322 in 2026, with

an additional proposed annual inflation adjustment of 2.10% from 2027 to 2030.

Variance analysis:
Immaterial deltas are expected between 2021 and 2030. Applying an inflationary increase of 2.10%
per year between 2027 and 2030, and an estimated annual volume of six requests based on

historical trends, revenue is projected to increase minimally each year.

Hydro Ottawa continues to roll out remote meter reconnection technology. This technology is
particularly valuable in areas with limited accessibility and high customer turnover. It also offers

customers greater convenience and faster service restoration.

As a result of remote meter cost efficiencies, Hydro Ottawa is applying to reduce Reconnect at the
meter - regular hours from the current $76 in 2025 to $70 in 2026. The Reconnect at the meter -
after hours rate is proposed to decrease from $115 to $94 in 2026. For both charges, Hydro Ottawa

proposes a 2.10% annual inflation adjustment from 2027 to 2030.

Variance analysis:

Revenue from this charge in 2021 was low due the OEB’s Decision and Order preventing Local
Distribution Companies from disconnecting customers during the COVID-19 pandemic.® There are
immaterial deltas between 2022 and 2025. The lower revenue forecast from 2026 onwards reflects
the proposed reduction in the rate. With a 2.10% annual inflation adjustment from 2027 to 2030,
and based on an estimated annual volume of approximately 1.8K regular hours requests and 236
after hours requests (based on historical trends), revenue is projected to increase minimally

year-over-year.

% Ontario Energy Board, Decision and Order - Amending Electricity Distributor Licences to Prohibit the Issuance of
Disconnection Notices for Non-Payment to Residential Consumers in Light of the COVID-19 Stay-at-Home Order,
EB-2021-0137 (May 14, 2021).

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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This service charge covers service reconnections requiring a qualified linesperson at the distribution
pole. For reconnections during regular hours, Hydro Ottawa is seeking approval to increase the rate
from $286 in 2025 to $318 in 2026. For after regular hours reconnections, Hydro Ottawa is seeking
approval to reduce the rate from $483 in 2025 to $480 in 2026. The utility also proposes to apply an
annual inflationary adjustment of 2.10% for both rates from 2027 to 2030.

Variance analysis:

There are no material deltas between 2021 and 2025. With a 2.10% annual inflation adjustment
from 2027 to 2030, and based on an estimated annual volume of four regular hours requests and
one after hours request (based on historical trends), revenue is projected to increase minimally

year-over-year.

The temporary service charges cover the connection, metering, installation, and removal of required
assets to supply electricity on a planned temporary basis, as outlined in Hydro Ottawa’s Conditions

of Service.

For temporary services connected overhead with no transformer, Hydro Ottawa is seeking approval
for an increase from $1,007 in 2025 to $1,079 in 2026. Over the 2026-2030 period, 29 services are

estimated per year.

For temporary services installed underground with no transformer, Hydro Ottawa is seeking
approval for a reduction from $1,461 in 2025 to $1,422 in 2026. Over the 2026-2030 period, 28

services are forecast per year.

For temporary services connected overhead with a transformer, Hydro Ottawa is seeking approval
for an increase from $3,590 in 2025 to $5,010 in 2026, with only one estimated service annually for
the 2026-2030 period.

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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For all three temporary service charges, Hydro Ottawa proposes a 2.10% annual inflation
adjustment from 2027 to 2030.

Variance analysis:

For temporary services - overhead with no transformer, revenue fluctuations during the 2021-2023
Historical and 2024-2025 Bridge Years are due to varying request volumes. The increased revenue
forecast from 2026 onward reflects the proposed rate increase, with further increases from 2027 to

2030 due to the 2.10% annual inflation adjustment.

For temporary services - underground with no transformer, revenue fluctuations during the
2021-2023 Historical and 2024-2025 Bridge Years are due to varying request volumes. The

increased revenue forecast from 2026 onward reflects estimated higher service request volumes.

For temporary services - overhead with a transformer, revenue fluctuations during the 2021-2023
Historical and 2024-2025 Bridge Years are due to varying request volumes. The decreased revenue
forecast from 2026 onward reflects the anticipated decrease in request volume, partially offset by
the increased charge which reflects higher labour and material costs. Hydro Ottawa proposed to

apply a 2.10% annual inflation adjustment from 2027 to 2030.

Dry Core transformer charges are applied to recover energy lost in the operation of dry core
transformers. A specific charge is calculated for each transformer size. The distribution portion of

the revenues for 2026-2030 are based on historical revenue trends.

These charges are updated annually to reflect the new Regulated Price Plan prices, transmission
rates, and Hydro Ottawa’s distribution rates. As needed, Hydro Ottawa will add new dry core
transformers to the Schedule of Rates and Tariffs on an annual basis as part of the utility’s annual
rate adjustment applications during the 2026-2030 period. Please see Schedule 8-4-1 - Specific

Service Charges and Attachment 8-4-1(B) - Dry Core Calculations for more information.

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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Variance analysis:

There are no material year-over-year revenue variances for the 2021-2030 period. Hydro Ottawa
has used historical trending and estimated distribution rate increases to estimate the revenue for
2026-2030.

Energy Resource Facility Administration Charges are applied to recover costs associated with
generator ownership changes. These changes are far more complex than typical consumer account
changes, requiring detailed reviews by both legal and engineering departments to ensure proper
handling of contracts and technical specifications. This increased workload necessitates a

dedicated charge to fairly recover costs.

The charge applies solely to complex FIT contract assignments that require legal expertise. Simpler
transactions, like those typical of MicroFIT projects, involve straightforward name changes and

would not incur this charge.

Based on historical data and current projections, Hydro Ottawa anticipates minimal need for such
legal reviews, forecasting only one instance per year, generating $165 revenue in 2026. This charge
represents a transparent method to ensure cost recovery for the necessary administrative effort
involved in these complex generator ownership transitions. Hydro Ottawa also proposes to apply an

annual inflationary adjustment of 2.10% between 2027 and 2030.

Variance analysis:

There are no material year-over-year revenue variances for the 2021-2030 period. Hydro Ottawa is
seeking approval for an increase from $162 in 2025 to $165 in 2026. The forecast is low, with only
one estimated service per year. Hydro Ottawa has used historical trending and estimated

distribution rate increases to estimate the revenue for 2026-2030.

Other Revenue Specific Service Charges
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LATE PAYMENT CHARGE REVENUE

An OEB-approved monthly interest rate of 1.5% (effective annual rate of 19.56% per annum or
0.04896% compounded daily rate) is applied to outstanding account balances that exceed 20

calendar days from the date on which the bill was issued to the customer.

Hydro Ottawa projects a 3% increase in Late Payment Charge (LPC) for 2026 based on the
historical year-over-year increase from 2021 to 2023. LPC revenues are estimated to increase
2.10% for the 2027-2030 period.

Please see Schedule 6-3-1 - Other Revenue Summary for the Historical, Bridge, and Test Year
LPC Revenue.

Other Revenue Late Payment Charges
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4 Other Operating Revenues include revenue associated from the provision of Standard Supply,

5 Retailer, and Generator services, as well as rent from electric property. Tables 1 and 2 show Other
6 Operating Revenues for Historical Years 2021-2023, Bridge Years 2024-2025, and Test Years

7 2026-2030.

9 Table 1 - Other Operating Revenue 2021-2025 ($°000s)

Other Operating Revenue

Historical Years

Bridge Years

2021 2022 2023 2024
Standard Supply Administration $ 1,040 $ 1,059 $ 1,066 $ 1,079 $ 1,098
Retailer Services $126 $120 $121 $ 119 $ 130
Generator Services $ 300 $ 287 $ 292 $ 292 $ 306
Rent from Electric Property $4,730 $ 4,650 $ 4,580 $4,720 $ 4,901
TOTAL $ 6,196 $6,116 $ 6,059 $ 6,209 $ 6,435
10
11 Table 2 - Other Operating Revenue 2026-2030 ($°000s)

Other Operating Revenue

Test Years

2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
Standard Supply Administration’ $ 6,694 $ 6,929 $7,160 $ 7,395 $7,634
Retailer Services $130 $130 $130 $ 130 $ 130
Generator Services $ 251 $ 265 $ 268 $ 271 $ 274
Rent from Electric Property $ 5,006 $ 5,097 $ 5,190 $ 5,287 $ 5,387
TOTAL $ 12,083 $ 12,421 $ 12,749 $ 13,083 $ 13,425

12

12026-2030 SSS Administration Charge revenue amounts were estimated based on preliminary cost of power expense
and revenue load and customer forecast resulting in $106K variance between SSS revenues and cost amounts included

in Schedule 8-3-2.

Other Revenue

Other Operating Revenue
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2. STANDARD SUPPLY SERVICE ADMINISTRATION CHARGE

The Standard Supply Service Administration Charge (SSS Charge) is an administrative charge that
allows Hydro Ottawa to recover its costs of providing standard supply service to all customers who
are not enrolled with a Retailer. The SSS Charge was introduced on May 11, 2005 as part of the
2006 Electricity Distribution Rate Handbook.?

The monthly SSS Charge of $0.25 per customer per month has not been adjusted to reflect actual
costs or inflation since its implementation 20 years ago. For the 2026-2030 period, Hydro Ottawa is
proposing to charge a utility specific SSS rate per customer per month. The rate has been
calculated based on actual costs of providing standard supply service to customers. For further
details on the proposed SSS Charge rate design, please refer to Schedule 8-3-2 - Standard Supply

Service Charge.

Variance analysis:
Overall net customer growth has resulted in slightly higher revenue than forecasted. The increase

from 2025 to the 2026-2030 period is attributed to the proposed rate increase.

3. RETAILER SERVICES

Retailer Service Charges (RSCs) recover the costs of services that Hydro Ottawa provides to
electricity retailers or their customers in relation to the competitive supply of energy. The revenue
generated from the RSCs has declined from 2021-2023 due to a reduction in the number of
customers enrolled with a Retailer. Notwithstanding the decrease in retailer-enrolled customers,

Hydro Ottawa’s expenses related to these services have remained constant.

Hydro Ottawa intends to apply the OEB generic rates for RSCs. Please see Schedule 8-4-3 - Retail
Service Charges for more information on the 2026-2030 RSCs.

2 Ontario Energy Board, 2006 Electricity Distribution Rate Handbook (May 11, 2005), page 126.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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Variance analysis:

The differences in RSC revenue over the 2021-2030 period are negligible.

4. GENERATOR SERVICES

Monthly fixed charges for generation customers, other than the microFIT charge, were introduced in
Hydro Ottawa’s 2016-2020 Custom IR Application® to reflect the cost of managing these accounts.
At that time, the microFIT charge was requested to be a utility-specific charge in order to reflect the
cost of managing related accounts. Hydro Ottawa has reviewed these charges and proposes to

update and continue using them for the 2026-2030 period.

As a result of greater efficiencies and automating processes in managing monthly MicroFIT
charges, Hydro Ottawa is proposing to reduce the current 2025 monthly rate of $16 for MicroFit*
customers to $11 in 2026. Hydro Ottawa proposes a decrease to the rate for managing a small
number of larger generators® from the 2025 rate of $347 to $266 in 2026 as a result of increased

efficiencies in the monthly processing of these accounts.

As part of 2021-2025 Approved Settlement Agreement,® the Parties” agreed that in respect to the
City of Ottawa’s Energy & Emissions Plan (Energy Evolution): “Hydro Ottawa agrees to
meaningfully consider the goals of the plan with a view to pursuing cost efficiencies, reduced
emissions, and enhanced energy outcomes for consumers in the City of Ottawa. The utility will

consider these elements in its next Distribution System Plan and Business Plan. Hydro Ottawa will

% Hydro Ottawa Limited, 2076-2020 Custom Incentive Rate-Setting Distribution Rate Application, EB-2015-0004 (April 29,
2015).

* Includes other generators <10KW that require settlement services from Hydro Ottawa. For further details, please
attachments 8-5-1(B) - 2027-2030 Proposed Tariff of Rates and Charges and 8-5-1(C) - 2026-2030 Bill Impacts Model.

5 An electricity generation facility contracted under the Independent Electricity System Operator's

Hydroelectric Contract Initiative (HCI), Renewable Energy Standard OFfer Program (RESOP) and Other Energy Resource
programs

% Hydro Ottawa Limited, 2021-2025 Custom Incentive Rate-Setting Approved Settlement Agreement, EB-2019-0261
(September 18, 2020).

" Hydro Ottawa and the following intervenor groups: Building Owners and Managers Association, Consumers Council of
Canada, Distributed Resource Coalition, Environmental Defence, Energy Probe Research Foundation, Pollution Probe,
School Energy Coalition, Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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report on realized areas of cost-efficiency and coordination related to Energy Evolution in its next
rebasing application.” As a result of this agreement and to promote self-generation in support of the
grid, Hydro Ottawa stopped charging net metered customers the monthly net metering service

charge effective November 1, 2021.

Net metering customers, unlike other generation customers, also incur a monthly fixed service
charge based on the rate class they are assigned. During the 2021-2025 rate period Hydro Ottawa
automated the residential and small commercial net metering billing activities. In addition, per
Ontario Regulation 393/07, Hydro Ottawa’s residential and small commercial net meter customer
bi-directional smart meter data is now collected through the Meter Data Management/Repository
(MDM/R). While automation of the commercial class net metering customers was planned for
2022-2023, it was ultimately put on hold in order to achieve the OEB deadlines to connect
residential and small commercial net metered customers to the MDM/R, and thus commercial net
metering account billing remains a manual process. Please see Schedule 1-3-4 - Facilitating

Innovation and Continuous Improvement for more details on net metering automation.

As a result of the efficiencies gained through automation of residential and small commercial net
metered customers and to support Hydro Ottawa’s Rate Plan Framework to encourage self
generation in support of the grid, Hydro Ottawa is proposing to remove the net metering charge. Net
metering customers will continue to be charged a monthly fixed charge based on their rate class.
Please see Schedule 1-3-1 - Rate Setting Framework for more details regarding Hydro Ottawa

proposed rate setting framework.

Hydro Ottawa proposes an increase to the rate for Feed In Tarrif (FIT)® customers from the 2025
monthly rate of $84 to $87 in 2026. Please see Schedule 8-4-2 - Generation Charges for more

information.

8 Includes other generators >10KW that require settlement services from Hydro Ottawa that do not fit the classification of
Larger Generators. For further details, please see Attachments 8-5-1(B) - 2027-2030 Proposed Tariff of Rates and
Charges and 8-5-1(C) - 2026-2030 Bill Impacts Model.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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Hydro Ottawa proposes to increase all generation charges by an annual inflationary adjustment of
2.1% over the 2027-2030 period. This rate is consistent with the inflation rate applied to other
revenue rates as part of this Application. For more details regarding the utility’s proposed custom

escalation rate for its 2026-2030 rate term, please see Schedule 1-3-1 - Rate Setting Framework.

For complete details on the design of generation charges, please refer to Schedule 8-4-2 -

Generation Charges.

Variance analysis:
There are immaterial differences in revenue between 2021 and 2025. Applying an annual inflation

rate of 2.1% between 2027 and 2030, revenue is projected to increase minimally year-over-year.

5. RENT FROM ELECTRIC PROPERTY

To support utility efficiency and the efficient use of Hydro Ottawa assets, Hydro Ottawa engages
with other utilities to jointly operate assets where possible. However, in order to support multiple
utility use, Hydro Ottawa incurs expenses. These costs are recorded in Hydro Ottawa’s OM&A.
Please see Schedule 4-1-2 - Operations, Maintenance and Administration Program Costs for more
details. Please see Hydro Ottawa’s rate setting framework for a discussion on joint use assets,

Schedule 1-3-1 - Rate Setting Framework.

The types of revenue under Rent from Electric Property includes pole attachments, duct rental and

property rental. Tables 3 and 4 below summarize the revenues by type for the 2021-2030 period.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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Table 3 - Rent from Electric Property 2021-2025 ($°000s)

Rent from Electric Historical Years Bridge Years

Property 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Pole Attachment Revenue $ 3,178 $ 2,525 $ 2,658 $2,817 $ 2,962
Duct Rental Revenue $1,108 $1,164 $1,216 $1,197 $1,233
Property Rental Revenue $ 445 $ 961 $ 706 $ 706 $ 706
TOTAL $4,730 $ 4,650 $ 4,580 $4,720 $ 4,901

Table 4 - Rent from Electric Property 2026-2030 ($°000s)

Rent from Electric Test Years

Property 2027 2028 2029 2030

Pole Attachment Revenue $ 3,006 $ 3,051 $ 3,098 $ 3,147 $ 3,197
Duct Rental Revenue $1,272 $ 1,310 $ 1,348 $ 1,387 $ 1,428
Property Rental Revenue $728 $736 $ 745 $ 753 $ 762
TOTAL $ 5,006 $ 5,097 $ 5,190 $ 5,287 $ 5,387

Hydro Ottawa generates joint use revenue from third parties who place attachments on the utility’s
poles. There are currently pole attachment agreements with 11 telecommunication companies, and
agreements with the City of Ottawa and Village of Casselman for streetlight attachments. Hydro
Ottawa has seen modest increases in the number of pole attachments from 2021-2025. This
historical trend is the basis for the 2026-2030 forecasted volume. Hydro Ottawa will continue to use
the provincially approved rate annually. The generic provincial rate is adjusted on January 1st each
year, based upon the OEB-approved inflation factor. Please refer to Schedule 8-4-1 - Specific

Service Charges for complete details.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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Variance analysis:
The decrease in 2022 revenue compared to 2021 is due to the reduction in provincial rate from

$44.50 to $34.76 per attachment. Revenues between 2023-2025 increase modestly due to rate

inflationary increase. Volumes and revenue are expected to remain flat for the 2026-2030 period.
Hydro Ottawa has existing wireless pole attachment agreements. The number of wireless pole
attachments has increased annually from 2021-2023 and continued growth is expected for
2024-2025 bridge years. Future volume and revenues for wireless attachments have been based
on estimates.
Variance analysis:
Revenues between 2026 and 2030 are expected to increase modestly due to increased volume of
100 attachments annually.
Hydro Ottawa rents out its underground civil capacity to third parties, on a temporary basis, through
access agreements.
Variance analysis:
There are immaterial differences between 2021 and 2025. Revenues between 2026 and 2030 are
expected to increase by 3% annually.
Property rental relates primarily to rental fees paid by Hydro One for land and buildings owned by
Hydro Ottawa. Hydro Ottawa and Hydro One have joint facilities for transformer stations in several
locations throughout the City of Ottawa.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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Variance analysis:

The increase from 2021 to 2022 is due to new lease rates being negotiated with Hydro One, with a
retro-active adjustment for 2021 billed in 2022. 2023 reflects the new annual amount of the Hydro
4 One leases, which is carried into bridge years 2024 and 2025. Revenues between 2026 and 2030

are expected to increase nominally.

Other Revenue Other Operating Revenue
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4 Hydro Ottawa earns revenue through the provision of services to customers and third parties,

5 property rental income from leased plant, gains (or losses) on the disposal or retirement of utility

6 property, the provision of services to Hydro Ottawa’s affiliates, and earning interest income on

7 short-term investments. These activities are classified under the Other Income and Deductions

8 category as follows:
9
10 e Services to Third Parties, net of costs;
11 e Gains and Losses on Disposal of Utility Property;
12 e Shared Services to Hydro Ottawa Affiliates, net of costs; and
13 e |[nterest and Dividend Income.
14
15 Tables 1 and 2 below summarize Other Income and Deductions for the 2021-2030 period.
16
17 Table 1 — Other Income and Deductions 2021-2025 ($°000s)’
o T e T e Historical Years Bridge Years
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Services to Third Parties (net of costs) $(2,059)| $(1,170) $(1,439)| $(1,757)| $(1,991)
Szgz:;d (Losses) on Disposal of Utility $ (389) $ (751) $ (323) $ (336) $ (445)
Shared Services Revenue $ 3,775 $ 4,346 $ 4,884 $ 4,898 $ 4,929
Shared Services Expenses $(3,012)| $(3,544)| $(4,137)| $(4,057)| $(4,174)
Interest and Dividend Income $22 $16 $ 50 - -
TOTAL $(1,663)| $(1,103) $(965)| $(1,252)| $(1,681)
18

' Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Other Revenue

Other Income & Deductions
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Table 2 — Other Income and Deductions 2026-2030 ($°000s)?
Test Years
Other Income and Deductions
2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
Services to Third Parties (net of costs) $(4,384)] $(4,637)] $(4,907)| $(5,032)| $(5,140)
Gains and (Losses) on Disposal of Utility
Property $ (167) $ (635) $ (596) $ (609) $ (576)
Shared Services Revenue $ 4,780 $ 4,881 $ 4,983 $ 5,088 $ 5,195
Shared Services Expenses $(4,053)| $(4,138)] $(4,225)| $(4,314)| $(4,404)
Interest and Dividend Income - - - - -
TOTAL $(3,824)| $(4,531)| $(4,745)| $(4,866)| $ (4,926)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2. SERVICES TO THIRD PARTIES

These revenues, net of expenses, relate to services provided to customers or third parties beyond
the standard temporary services included in Specific Service Charges, as detailed in Schedule
6-3-2 - Specific Service Charge Revenue. Services to Third Parties may include isolating and
re-energizing services, mutual aid services, transformer vault shutdown access services, inspection
services, and generator services. Services to the City of Ottawa and to affiliates for the
aforementioned services are included in Uniform System of Accounts (USofA) 4325 Revenues from

Merchandise and 4330 Costs and Expenses of Merchandising.

Services to Third Parties for the 2026-2030 period are expected to generate less revenue than the
expenses incurred as a part of regular business operations and as a means to promote safety and
electrification. During the course of regular business operations some expenses are incurred for
projects that do not end up reaching a stage to generate revenue. As a result, the expenses are not

allocated to programs and are classified as losses in Services to Third Parties.

Starting in 2026 Hydro Ottawa has forecasted to spend $2M per year for its Non-Wires Customer

Solutions Program. This investment will include targeted local programs expected to be in

2 Totals may not sum due to rounding.

Other Revenue
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collaboration with IESO, where viable, to address system needs, initially in the area of Kanata
North, Core 13 KV and West 13 KV planning regions. Further details on this initiative are available

in section 9.2 of Schedule 2-5-4 - Asset Management Process.

Also starting in 2026, Hydro Ottawa is proposing to offer Residential Electrical
Isolations/Re-energizations for electrical work at no charge to the customer.® This reduces the
revenue forecasts by $0.5M per year during the rate term. The primary purpose of this policy is to
promote safety, as well as enable electrification and the adoption of distributed energy resources
and back-up supply. Providing this service at no cost to the customer removes a burden which
could otherwise motivate poor safety practices. The reduced cost to the customer also incentivizes
homeowners to pursue green projects, such as installing electric vehicle chargers, battery storage
or solar panels. An added benefit to this is a better overall customer experience resulting from

shortened timelines for appointment scheduling.

Variance analysis:

Services to Third Parties, which are part of regular business operations, incurred a net loss of
$2.1M in 2021, with expenses exceeding revenue. This loss is largely attributable to the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic. While the volume of customer requests was high, many did not proceed
to finalization, leading to the substantial net cost. Forecasts for 2024 and 2025 are based on current

trends, anticipated volume, and the nature of customer requests.

As mentioned above, as of 2026, $2M is forecasted annually for the Non-Wires Customer Solutions
Program. Additionally, as of 2026 the annual revenue was reduced by $0.5M to reflect the cost of

providing isolations and re-energizations free of charge to customers.

3 Currently, per Hydro Ottawa’s Conditions of Service one free non-electrical Isolation/Re-energization is provided.

Other Revenue Other Income & Deductions



2026-2030 Custom IR

_~ - EB-2024-0115
/‘ HVdro ' Exhibit 6

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Tab 3
Schedule 5
ORIGINAL
Page 4 of 7

3. GAINS AND LOSSES ON DISPOSAL OF UTILITY PROPERTY

Hydro Ottawa periodically disposes of assets that are no longer necessary or re-usable in serving
the public (e.g. end-of-life assets, asset failure, damaged beyond repair, relocation requests from
third parties, surplus inventory, obsolescence, scrap sales etc.). Disposals for assets damaged
beyond repair due to storms and other adverse weather events are also captured here. Where the
proceeds vary from the net book value of an asset, Hydro Ottawa treats the variances as a debit or

credit to income.

Hydro Ottawa applies the associated gains and losses to USofA 1508 Other Regulatory Assets -
Sub-Account - Gains and Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets Variance Account. Please refer to
Schedule 9-1-3 - Group 2 Accounts for further details on Account 1508. Table 3 provides the actual

gains and losses before the adjustments made to Account 1508 for variance analysis.

Table 3 — Gains and Losses from Disposal of Utility Property ($’000s)*

Net Historical

UsofA ,
Gain/(Loss) 2021 2022 2023

4362 |OEB Approved | $(389)| $(751)| $(323)| $(336)| $ (445)|$ (2,243)

4362 |Actual $202| $(1,234) $ 897 $ 368 $ 273 $ 506
1508 |Variance $590| §$(483)| $1,220 $ 704 $718| $2,749

Variance analysis:

The 2022 Derecho storm resulted in asset derecognition charges of approximately $1M, which is
the major driver of the increased loss on disposal experienced in 2022 compared to the other
historical years 2021 and 2023.

Hydro Ottawa will begin implementing its Metering Upgrades Program in 2026. This will increase

asset derecognition charges from $0.4M to $0.8M per year, primarily driving the increase over the

4 Totals may not sum due to rounding.
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test years. Please refer to Schedule 2-5-7 - System Renewal Investments for additional details on
the AMI 2.0 project.

4. SHARED SERVICES TO HYDRO OTTAWA AFFILIATES AND ASSOCIATED COST
Hydro Ottawa provides shared services to its affiliates under the terms of Service Level Agreements
(SLA), which are updated annually based on transfer prices determined according to the Affiliate

Relationship Code for Electricity Transmitters and Distributors (ARC) requirements.

Hydro Ottawa provides Human Resources, Safety, Environment, Business Continuity, Facilities,
Information Technology, Finance, Regulatory, Legal, Customer Service, Communications,
Engineering, Meter data reporting, and Mechanic Services to its affiliates. Tables 3 and 4 below
provide a summary of the revenues earned from the shared services provided to affiliates, whether

through an SLA or other contractual arrangements.

Additional detail on the shared services Hydro Ottawa provides to and receives from affiliates is

available in Schedule 4-2-1 - Shared Services and Corporate Cost Allocation.

Consistent with section 2.4.3.2 of the Chapter 2 Filing Requirements for Electricity Distribution Rate
Applications - 2025 Edition for 2026 Rate Applications, dated December 9, 2024, both revenue and
costs are recorded in other revenue under USofA Accounts 4325 Revenues from Merchandise and
4330 Costs and Expenses of Merchandising.® For additional details, please see Schedule 4-2-1 -
Shared Services and Corporate Cost Allocation and Schedule 4-1-2 - Operations, Maintenance and

Administration Program Costs for additional details.

® Ontario Energy Board, Presentation re: Chapter 1 & 2 Filing Requirements Update for 2019 Applications: Summary of
Key Changes (July 19, 2018), slides 15-16.
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Table 4 — Affiliate Services Revenue Earned by Hydro Ottawa 2021-2025 ($’000s)°

Provided By

Provided To

Historical Years

Bridge Years

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Hydro Ottawa |Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. $1,161 $ 1,386 $1,335 $1,421 $ 1,480
Hydro Ottawa | 1Ydre Ottawa Capital $1352| $1.662| $2021| $1.801| $1,740
Corporation
Hydro Ottawa | Ydre Ottawa Energy $1261| $1.208| $1528] $1676| $1,709
Services Inc.
Shared Services Revenue $ 3,775 $ 4,346 $ 4,884 $ 4,898 $ 4,929
Shared Services Expenses $(3,012)| $(3,544) $(4,137)| $(4,057)| $(4,174)
Net Revenue $ 763 $ 802 $ 747 $ 840 $ 755

Table 5 — Affiliate Services Revenue Earned by Hydro Ottawa 2026-2030 ($°000s)’

Provided By

Provided To

Test Years

2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
Hydro Ottawa |Hydro Ottawa Holding Inc. $ 1,583 $ 1,616 $ 1,650 $ 1,684 $1,720
Hydro Ottawa | Ydro Ottawa Capital $1421| $1451| $1481| $1512| $1,544
Corporation
Hydro Ottawa | HY0re Ottawa Energy $1,777|  $1.814| $1,852| $1.891| $1,931
Services Inc.
Shared Services Revenue $ 4,780 $ 4,881 $ 4,983 $ 5,088 $ 5,195
Shared Services Expenses $(4,053)| $(4,138)| $(4,225)| $(4,314)| $(4,404)
Net Revenue $ 727 $ 742 $ 758 $774 $ 790

Variance analysis:

Variance details are provided in Schedule 4-2-1 - Shared Services and Corporate Cost Allocation.

€ Totals may not sum due to rounding.
7 Totals may not sum due to rounding.
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1 5. INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
2 Interest income refers to interest earned on cash balances within the year. In the years 2021-2023,

3 a modest amount of interest was recorded under USofA Account 4405. Material cash balances are
4 not anticipated between 2024 and 2030.
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